Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013
Commission file number 1-12383

Rockwell Automation, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cbgrt

Delaware 25-1797617
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

1201 South 2¢ Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
+1 (414) 382-2000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act :

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $1 Par Value New York Stock Excjea

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢iie Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%0B#turities Act. YeRI No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act. YeEl No ™

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @k filed all reports required to be filed by Seetid or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shopeniod that the registrant was required to filehsweports), and (2) has been subject to suchg
requirements for the past 90 days. ¥&s No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdsmitted electronically and posted on its corponateb site, if any, every Interactive Data
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te B of Regulation $-during the preceding 12 months (or for such sigoeriod that the registrant v
required to submit and post such files). ¥&s No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and will not be contdin® the
best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proosyinformation statements incorporated by refeeeimcPart Il of this Form 16 or any amendment to ti
Form 10-K.4

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting compa3ss
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelezd filer,” and “smaller reporting company” in Rulb-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large Accelerated Fildd Accelerated Filed Non-accelerated Filé&d Smaller reporting compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢8sO0 No ™
The aggregate market value of registrant’s votinglsheld by non-affiliates of registrant on Mag&h 2013 was approximately $12.0 billion .
138,660,664 shares of registrant's Common Stoakyg@lae $1 per share, were outstanding on Octobe?@®13 .
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE



Certain information contained in the Proxy Statetrienthe Annual Meeting of Shareowners of registita be held on February 4, 20is4incorporate
by reference into Part Ill hereof.




Table of Contents

PART |

Iltem 1. Business

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Item 2. Properties

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Company
PART Il

Item 5. Market for the CompalsyyCommon Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asddsPurchases of Equity
Securities

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Iltem 7. Managemets Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurdsofit Market Risk
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREOWNEREQUITY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotsitam Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Item 9B. Other Information
PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corper@bvernance
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficiali@rs and Management and Related Stockholder Matter
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Traimmastand Director Independence
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule
SIGNATURES

5 IS B R
Wik = 1o IN

BBISRIGEREBIEIEIEIS IR
© lo o Ix 1l IV - 10 1o 1o oo o o1 I

RIRIB IS8
- = IO 10 10

I8




Table of Contents

PART |
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains statements (includiegtain projections and business trends) that avewdrd-looking statementsas
defined in the Private Securities Litigation Refofrmt of 1995. Words such as “believe”, “estimatgdroject”, “plan”, “expect”, “anticipate;
“will”, “intend” and other similar expressions m&jentify forwardiooking statements. Actual results may differ miatsr from those projecte
as a result of certain risks and uncertainties,ynwdinvhich are beyond our control, including but fimited to:

* macroeconomic factors, including global and rediidmsiness conditions, the availability and costapital, the cyclical nature of ¢
customers’ capital spending, sovereign debt comscand currency exchange rates;

» laws, regulations and governmental policies affectur activities in the countries where we do beisg

» the successful development of advanced technolagiéslemand for and market acceptance of new astingxproducts

« the availability, effectiveness and security of sformation technology systen

e competitive products, solutions and services andry pressures, and our ability to provide highalgy products, solutions a
services;

« adisruption of our operations due to natural desasacts of war, strikes, terrorism, social unoeother cause

» intellectual property infringement claims by otharsl the ability to protect our intellectual praye

» our ability to address claims by taxing authoriiieshe various jurisdictions where we do busir

* our ability to attract and retain qualified persek;

» our ability to manage costs related to employdecraent and health care bene

» the uncertainties of litigation, including liabiéit related to the safety and security of the petgjisolutions and services we ¢

* our ability to manage and mitigate the riskagged with our solutions and servidessinesse

e adisruption of our distribution channe

» the availability and price of components and mate

» the successful integration and management of aedjbiusinesse

» the successful execution of our cost productivitgt globalization initiatives; ai

» other risks and uncertainties, including but natited to those detailed from time to time in ouc@&éies and Exchange Commiss
(SEC) filings.

These forwardeoking statements reflect our beliefs as of thie a¥ filing this report. We undertake no obligatito update or revise a
forward-looking statement, whether as a resulteaf mformation, future events or otherwise. SemlieA. Risk Factorsfor more information.

ltem 1. Business
General

Rockwell Automation, Inc. (the Company or Rockwiiitomation) is a leading global provider of indistrautomation power, conti
and information solutions that help manufacturetsieve a competitive advantage for their busines9es products and services are desis
to meet our customersieeds to reduce total cost of ownership, maximggetautilization, improve time to market and redownufacturin
business risk.

The Company continues the business founded asltbée-Bradley Company in 1903. The privately-ownedeA-Bradley Company wi
a leading North American manufacturer of industre@itomation equipment when the former Rockwell rimiéonal Corporatic
(RIC) purchased it in 1985.

The Company was incorporated in Delaware in conoeatith a taxfree reorganization completed on December 6, 1p86suant t
which we divested our former aerospace and defeusimesses (the A&D Business) to The Boeing ComgBoging). In the reorganizatic
RIC contributed all of its businesses, other thHa A&D Business, to the Company and distributeccaflital stock of the Company to REC’
shareowners. Boeing then acquired RIC. RIC wasrparated in 1928.

As used herein, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, thed@pany” or “Rockwell Automationinclude subsidiaries and predecessors unle:
context indicates otherwise. Information includedthis Annual Report on Form X0-refers to our continuing businesses unless otise
indicated.
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Whenever an Item of this Annual Report on FormKl@efers to information in our Proxy Statement four Annual Meeting ¢
Shareowners to be held on February 4, 2014 (theyP&tatement), or to information under specific ttaps in Item 7.Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition aridesults of Operation(MD&A), or in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplement:
Data (the Financial Statements), the information is mooated in that Item by reference. All date refiees to years and quarters refer tc
fiscal year and quarters unless otherwise stated.

Operating Segments

We have two operating segments: Architecture &&arfe and Control Products & Solutions. In 2013r, total sales were $6.35 billian
Financial information with respect to our operatsggments, including their contributions to saled aperating earnings for each of the t
years in the period endiSeptember 30, 2013 , is contained under the capsults of Operationsin MD&A, and in Note 17 in the Financ
Statements.

Our Architecture & Software operating segment iadwiartered in Mayfield Heights, Ohio and Singaparal our Control Products
Solutions operating segment is headquartered imvalikee, Wisconsin. Both operating segments conblusiness globally. Major mark:
served by both segments include transportatiorgrallgas, metals, mining, food and beverage, émddiences.

Architecture & Software

Our Architecture & Software operating segment rdedrsales of $2.7 billion ( 42 percent of our tatks) in 2013 The Architecture «
Software segment contains all of the hardwarewsoft and communication components of our integratedrol and information architectt
capable of controlling the customerindustrial processes and connecting with theinufecturing enterprise. Architecture & Software la
broad portfolio of products, including:

» Control platforms that perform multiple control cijglines and monitoring of applications, includidgscrete, batch and continue
process, drives control, motion control and machsiakety control. Products include controllers, gtatc operator interface devic
electronic input/output devices, communication aedworking products and industrial computers. Thf@rmationenabled Logi
controllers provide integrated multi-discipline ¢ that is modular and scalable.

» Software products that include configuration ansluglization software used to operate and supeoosérol platforms, advanc
process control software and manufacturing execwftware (MES) that enables customers to improaaufacturing productivi
and meet regulatory requirements.

»  Other products, including rotary and linear motommtrol products, sensors and machine safety coemnts

Control Products & Solutions

Our Control Products & Solutions operating segntenbrded sales of $3.7 billion ( 58 percent of mtal sales) in 2013 The Contrc
Products & Solutions segment combines a comprebhenmrtfolio of intelligent motor control and indual control products, applicati
expertise and project management capabilities. ddnsprehensive portfolio includes:

* Low and medium voltage electroechanical and electronic motor starters, motor einclit protection devices, AC/DC varia
frequency drives, push buttons, signaling devitasyination and protection devices, relays, tineard condition sensors.

e Valueadded solutions ranging from packaged solutionsh sag configured drives and motor control centeraudtomation ar
information solutions where we provide design, gmédion and start-up services for custengineered hardware and software sys
primarily for manufacturing applications.

e Services designed to help maximize a custommut®mation investment and provide total Iifgcle support, including techni
support and repair, asset management, trainingeattictive and preventative maintenance.

Geographic Information

In 2013 , sales to customers in the United Statesumted for 50 percewf our total sales. Outside the United States, @lkirs even
region. The largest sales outside the United States country-ofdestination basis are in Canada, China, the Uikiaddom, Italy, Mexicc
Germany, and Brazil. See Item 1Risk Factorsfor a discussion of risks associated with our op@na outside the United States. Sales
property information by major geographic area facteof the past three years is contained in Noti@e e Financial Statements.
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Competition

Depending on the product or service involved, ampetitors range from large diversified corporasgidhat also have business inter
outside of industrial automation to smaller comparthat specialize in niche industrial automatiosdpcts and services. Factors that influt
our competitive position include the breadth of puoduct portfolio and scope of solutions, techggldeadership, knowledge of custoi
applications, installed base, distribution netwagliality of products and services, global presesnug price. Our major competitors of b
segments include Siemens AG, ABB Ltd, Honeywelkéinational Inc., Schneider Electric SA and Emeiskattric Co.

Distribution

In the United States, Canada and certain othertdeanwe sell primarily through independent dmmttors in conjunction with our dire
sales force. In the remaining countries, we sethugh a combination of our direct sales force amé tlesser extent, through indepen
distributors. Approximately 70 percent of our glbbales are through independent distributors. Salesur largest distributor in 20132012
and 2011 were approximately 10 percent of our dfds. The independent distributors typically dbaarry products that compete with Allen:
Bradley®products.

Research and Development

Our research and development spending for the wemtsd September 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was®g6llion , $247.6 million, anc
$243.9 million, respectively. While not material to previouslgusd financial statements, we corrected certainuatsgreviously included
our classification of research and development dipgrfor the years ended September 30, 2012 andl. Z&lLa result, our previously repor
research and development spending amounts foreies yended September 30, 2012 and 2011 decreasdd Bymillion and $10.5 million
respectively. Customer-sponsored research andamsweht was not significant in 2013 , 2012 or 2011 .

Employees
At September 30, 2013 , we had approximately 22diployees. Approximately 8,500 were employed eUnited States.
Raw Materials and Supplies

We purchase a wide range of equipment, compongmished products and materials used in our businEise raw materials essentia
the manufacture of our products generally are alldlat competitive prices. We have a broad basemfliers and subcontractors. We de|
upon the ability of our suppliers and subcontractor meet performance and quality specificatiors @elivery schedules. See Item 1Risk
Factorsfor a discussion of risks associated with our red@on third party suppliers.

Backlog

Our total order backlog at September 30 was (ifian#):

2013 2012
Architecture & Software $ 183.¢ $ 181.4
Control Products & Solutions 1,091.¢ 1,016.¢

$ 12756 $ 1,197.¢

Backlog is not necessarily indicative of resultopérations for future periods due to the stgrie nature of most of our sales activil
Backlog orders scheduled for shipment beyond 204 approximately $136 million as of September28d,3 .

Environmental Protection Requirements

Information about the effect of compliance with Bommental protection requirements and resolutibnenvironmental claims
contained in Note 16 in the Financial Statementsiantem 3.Legal Proceedings
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Patents, Licenses and Trademarks

We own or license numerous patents and patentcapipins related to our products and operationsiovarclaims of patent infringeme
and requests for patent indemnification have beadaro us. We believe that none of these claimeaquests will have a material adve
effect on our financial condition. While in the aggate our patents and licenses are importanta@rofieration of our business, we do
believe that loss or termination of any one of theould materially affect our business or finan@ahdition. See Item 1ARisk Factorsfor a
discussion of risks associated with our intellecpwaperty.

The Company’s name and its registered trademarkk®ell Automation®” and other trademarks such as “Allen-Bradtey “A-B ©”
and “PlantPAx Process Automation Syst8fhare important to both of our business segmentadtition, we own other important tradem:
that we use, such as “ICS Triplék” for our control products and systems for indudtautomation, and “Rockwell Softwafe” anc
“FactoryTalk®” for our software offerings.

Seasonality

Our business segments are not subject to signifgeasonality. However, the calendarization ofregults can vary and may be affes
by the seasonal spending patterns of our custoduer$o their annual budgeting processes and thekimg schedules.

Available Information

We maintain a website at http://www.rockwellautoimatcom . Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly repam Form 109,
current reports on FormB-and any amendments to such reports filed or §lnetl pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the ®exziExchang
Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act), as well as our ahmaport to shareowners and Section 16 reportsawms 3, 4 and 5, are available fre
charge on this site through the "Investor Relatidimk as soon as reasonably practicable afterilgeof furnish these reports with the SEC.
reports we file with the SEC are also available fof charge via EDGAR through the SEC’s websitetit//www.sec.gov Our Guidelines ¢
Corporate Governance and charters for our Boarchatiees are also available on our website. Therinétion contained on and linked fr
our website is not incorporated by reference ihte Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

In the ordinary course of our business, we facéouarstrategic, operating, compliance and finandgds. These risks could have
impact on our business, financial condition, ogatatesults and cash flows. Our most significasitsiare set forth below and elsewhere ir
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) process stelkdentify and address significant risks. Our ERMcess uses the integrated
framework of the Committee of Sponsoring Organai (COSO) to assess, manage, and monitor risksbéNeve that riskaking is al
inherent aspect of the pursuit of our growth andgumance strategy. Our goal is to manage riskslgmtly rather than avoiding risks. We
mitigate risks and their impact on the Company dalg limited extent.

A team of senior executives prioritizes identifigsks and assigns an executive to address eachr idejtified risk area and lead act
plans to manage risks. Our Board of Directors mtesioversight of the ERM process and reviews saanit identified risks. The Auc
Committee also reviews significant financial ris{pesures and the steps management has taken ttomamil manage them. Our other Bc
committees also play a role in risk managemergeasorth in their respective charters.

Our goal is to proactively manage risks in a strred approach in conjunction with strategic plagniwith the intent to preserve ¢
enhance shareowner value. However, the risks sét fielow and elsewhere in this Annual Report omnFd0K and other risks ar
uncertainties could cause our results to vary radtgfrom recent results or from our anticipatedufre results and could adversely affect
business and financial condition.

Adverse changes in business or industry conditi@msl volatility and disruption of the capital and edit markets may result in decrease:
our sales and profitability.

We are subject to macroeconomic cycles and whesss@mns occur, we may experience reduced ordeysygra delays, supply ch:
disruptions or other factors as a result of theneatuic challenges faced by our customers, prospectigtomers and suppliers.

Demand for our products is sensitive to changéswiels of industrial production and the financiakfermance of major industries that
serve. As economic activity slows, credit markéghten, or sovereign debt concerns linger, comatead to reduce their levels of cay
spending, which could result in decreased demandubproducts.

Our ability to access the credit markets, and tiated costs of these borrowings, is affected lgystnength of our credit rating
current market conditions. If our access to creddluding the commercial paper market, is advgraéfiected by a change in market condit
or otherwise, our cost of borrowings may increaseun ability to fund operations may be reduced.

A substantial portion of our sales are to customenstside the U.S. and we are subject to the riskd@ing business in many countries.

We do business in more than 80 countries aroungviitiel. Approximately 50 percent of our sales irl2@vere to customers outside
U.S. In addition, many of our manufacturing operasi, suppliers and employees are located in maageplaround the world. The fut
success of our business depends in large part @mtlgrin our sales in nobkS. markets. Our global operations are subjeatuimerou
financial, legal and operating risks, such as alitand economic instability; prevalence of cotrop in certain countries; enforcement
contract and intellectual property rights and cdarple with existing and future laws, regulationd @olicies, including those related to tari
investments, taxation, trade controls, product@anand performance, employment and repatriaticgaafings. In addition, we are affectec
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, inflataites and interest rates.

New legislative and regulatory actions could adwegsaffect our business.

Legislative and regulatory action may be takenhe various countries and other jurisdictions wheee operate that may affect
business activities in these countries or may @tiser increase our costs to do business. For examglare increasingly required to cormr
with various environmental and other material, midcertification, labeling and customer requiretseThese requirements could increast
costs and could potentially have an adverse effiectur ability to ship our products into certainigdictions.
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An inability to respond to changes in customer peeénces could result in decreased demand for ousdarcts.

Our success depends in part on our ability to goatie and offer products that appeal to the changieeds and preferences of
customers in the various markets we serve. Devedppew products requires high levels of innovatiamd the development process is c
lengthy and costly. If we are not able to antiagpatientify, develop and market products that radptn changes in customer preferer
demand for our products could decline.

Failures or security breaches of our products orfammation technology systems could have an adveect on our business.

We rely heavily on information technology (IT) both our products, solutions and services for cusi@and in our enterprise
infrastructure in order to achieve our businesedbjes. Government agencies and security expens varned about growing risks
hackers, cybecriminals, malicious insiders and other actorsdting every type of IT system including industgahtrol systems such as th
we sell and service and corporate enterprise ITesys These threat actors may engage in fraud,dhebnfidential or proprietary informatic
and sabotage.

Our portfolio of hardware and software productdusons and services and our enterprise IT systerag be vulnerable to damage
intrusion from a variety of attacks including congruwiruses, worms or other malicious software paogs. These attacks have sometimes
successful.

Despite the precautions we take, an intrusion faction of software, hardware or a system that wld sr serviced could result in 1
disruption of our customer$usiness, loss of proprietary or confidential infation, or injuries to people or property. Simjarhn attack
our enterprise IT system could result in theft mckbsure of trade secrets or other intellectuapprty or a breach of confidential custome
employee information. Any such events could haveadwerse impact on sales, harm our reputation andecus to incur legal liability a
increased costs to address such events and rektadty concerns.

We are in the process of developing and directiegiinplementation of a common global Enterpriseoles Planning (ERP) system 1
is resulting in redesigned processes, organizatamctures, and a common information system alh ulite objective of improving interr
control and our ability to manage and monitor olabgl operations. The implementations, which weitated by Rockwell Automation In
the U.S. parent company of our consolidated groapyrred in many locations in 2007 to 2Qk$d are scheduled to continue into 2015. A
parent company continues to drive this implemeotatthe system and processes may not perform actxpor may require more time
implement. This could have an adverse effect orbasimess.

There are inherent risks in our solutions and seceis businesses.

Risks inherent in the sale of solutions and sesvinelude assuming greater responsibility for sesftély delivering projects that mee
particular customer specification, including defigi and controlling contract scope, efficiently ex@uy projects, and managing
performance and quality of our subcontractors ampkers. If we are unable to manage and mitigag¢se risks, we could incur cost overr
liabilities, and other losses that would adversdfgct our results of operations.

Our industry is highly competitive.

We face strong competition in all of our marketreegts in several significant respects. We compased on breadth and scope of
product portfolio and solution and service offesngechnology differentiation, product performangeality of our products and servic
knowledge of integrated systems and applicationt dddress our custometsisiness challenges, pricing, delivery and custoseerice. Th
relative importance of these factors differs actbgsmarkets and product areas that we serve. ketesamaintain acceptable pricing levels
continually developing advanced technologies faxr peoducts and product enhancements and offeringpteie solutions for our customers’
business problems. If we fail to keep pace witthtatogical changes or to provide high quality praiduand services, we may experience |
erosion, lower sales and margins. We expect thel lefivcompetition to remain high in the future, wainicould limit our ability to maintain
increase our market share or profitability.
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We face the potential harms of natural disastermsirorism, acts of war, international conflicts ortber disruptions to our operations.

Natural disasters, acts or threats of war or tesmorinternational conflicts, political instabilignd the actions taken by governments ¢
cause damage to or disrupt our business operatomssuppliers or our customers, and could creapma@mic instability. Although it is n
possible to predict such events or their conseqeribese events could decrease demand for oungisoor make it difficult or impossible 1
us to deliver products.

Intellectual property infringement claims of otherand the inability to protect our intellectual praty rights could harm our business a
our customers.

Others may assert intellectual property infringetelaims against us or our customers. We frequentbwvide a limited intellectu
property indemnity in connection with our terms arwhditions of sale to our customers and in otlgpes of contracts with third parti
Indemnification payments and legal costs to defdanins could be costly.

In addition, we own the rights to many patentsjéraarks, brand names and trade names that aretémpto our business. The inabi
to enforce our intellectual property rights may &i@an adverse effect on our results of operatiorgefses related to enforcing our intellec
property rights could be significant.

We must successfully defend any claims from taxaughorities to avoid an adverse effect on our taxpense and financial position.

We conduct business in many countries, which reguis to interpret the income tax laws and rulingsach of those taxing jurisdictio
Due to the ambiguity of tax laws among those jucisons as well as the subjectivity of factual imietations, our estimates of income
liabilities may differ from actual payments or assments. Claims by taxing authorities related és¢hdifferences could have an adverse in
on our operating results and financial position.

Our business success depends on attracting andinétg qualified personnel while appropriately manayy costs related to employ
benefits.

Our success depends in part on the efforts andiebibf our management team and key employeesr $kidls, experience and indus
knowledge significantly benefit our operations goerformance. One important aspect of attracting eetdining qualified personnel
continuing to offer competitive employee retiremant! health care benefits.

The amount of expenses we record for our definegfitepension plans depends on factors such aggelsan market interest rates .
the value of plan assets. Significant decreasesairket interest rates or the value of plan assetddiincrease our expenses. Expenses re
to employer-funded health care benefits continuaedoease as well.

Increasing employee benefit costs or the failurattact and retain members of our management teatrkey employees could hav
negative effect on our operating results and fireroondition.

Potential liabilities and costs from litigation (idluding asbestos claims and environmental remedia)i could reduce our profitability.

Various lawsuits, claims and proceedings have loeenay be asserted against us relating to the adradwour business, including thc
pertaining to the safety and security of the préslusolutions and services we sell, employment,traoh matters and environmer
remediation.

We have been named as a defendant in lawsuitsrajl@grsonal injury as a result of exposure to stsisethat was used in certain of
products many years ago. Our products may alscsbd un hazardous industrial activities, which cotddult in product liability claims. Tl
uncertainties of litigation (including asbestosimis) and the uncertainties related to the collect insurance coverage make it difficul
predict the ultimate resolution.
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Our operations are subject to regulation by varimgronmental regulatory authorities concernedhlie impact of the environment
human health, the limitation and control of emiasi@and discharges into the air, ground and watteesguality of air and bodies of water, .
the handling, use and disposal of specified substgnEnvironmental laws and regulations can be tmm@nd may change. Our finan
responsibility to clean up contaminated propertjoomatural resource damages may extend to prelyimwned or used properties, waterw
and properties owned by unrelated companies ovithails, as well as properties that we currenthnamd use, regardless of whether
contamination is attributable to prior owners. W& d been named as a potentially responsible padganup sites and may be so named i
future, and the costs associated with these cuarahfuture sites may be significant.

We have, from time to time, divested certain of dusinesses. In connection with these divestitucestain lawsuits, claims a
proceedings may be instituted or asserted againstlated to the period that we owned the busises#her because we agreed to retain ce
liabilities related to these periods or becauseéh diabilities fall upon us by operation of law. Bome instances, the divested busines:
assumed the liabilities; however, it is possibkt the might be responsible to satisfy those libgiif the divested business is unable to do so

A disruption to our distribution channel could rede our sales.

In the United States and Canada, approximatelye®emtof our sales are through distributors. In certatreo countries, the majority
our sales are also through a limited number ofibistors. While we maintain the right to appointndistributors, any unplanned disruptioi
our existing distribution channel could adverseffe@ our sales. A disruption could result from thale of a distributor to a competit
financial instability of a distributor, or other @s.

We rely on vendors to supply equipment, componemtd services, which creates certain risks and urte@rties that may adversely affe
our business.

Our business requires that we buy equipment, coamtsrand services including finished products, Wwhiay include computer chi
and commodities such as copper, aluminum and $deelreliance on suppliers involves certain risksluding:

e poor quality or an insecure supply chain, whichld@dversely affect the reliability and reputatmfrour products

» changes in the cost of these purchases due tdamfl&xchange rates, commodity market volatilityther factor

» intellectual property risks such as ownership ghits or alleged infringement by supplit

« information security risks associated with provgloonfidential information to suppliers; ¢

» shortages of components, commodities or other iadgewhich could adversely affect our manufactgrefficiencies and ability
make timely delivery.

Any of these uncertainties could adversely affestmrofitability and ability to compete. We also imtain several singlsource supplit
relationships, because either alternative sourcesnat available or the relationship is advantagedue to performance, quality, supg
delivery, capacity, or price considerations. Unkalility or delivery delays of singlseurce components or products could adversely tafia
ability to ship the related products in a timelyrmar. The effect of unavailability or delivery dgdavould be more severe if associated witt
higher volume and more profitable products. Everenghsubstitute sources of supply are availablelifgung the alternate suppliers a
establishing reliable supplies could cost moreouiat result in delays and a loss of sales.

We rely on strategic partners to expand our capéldk and to provide more complete automation sauas for our customers, whic
creates certain risks and uncertainties that mayvadsely affect our business.

We have relationships with industlgading strategic partners that provide complemgnighnology, expertise and thought leaderst
enable us to enhance automation solutions for astomers. If we fail to maintain or manage relalips with these thirgarty partne
companies effectively, or these partners are unablenwilling to perform as expected, our ability éxecute our business strategy coul
negatively affected.
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Our competitiveness depends on successfully exagubiur globalization and cost productivity initiates.

Our globalization strategy includes localization afr products and services to be closer to ouroousts and identified grow
opportunities. Localization of our products andvsass includes expanding our capabilities, inclgdsupply chain and sourcing activiti
product design, manufacturing, engineering, mangetind sales and support. These activities expsse usks, including those relatec
political and economic uncertainties, transportatielays, labor market disruptions, and challertgeprotect our intellectual property.
addition, we continue to invest in initiatives &duce our cost structure. The failure to achieweobjectives on these initiatives could hawv
adverse effect on our operating results and firsdmcindition.

Risks associated with acquisitions could have avee effect on us.

We have acquired, and will continue to acquire,ifesses in an effort to enhance shareowner valaquiitions involve risks ai
uncertainties, including:

« difficulties in integrating the acquired busisgsetaining the acquired business’stomers, and achieving the expected benefitbe
acquisition, such as sales increases, accesshialegies, cost savings and increases in geographpooduct presence, in the des
time frames;

» loss of key employees of the acquired busi

» difficulties implementing and maintaining considtetandards, controls, procedures, policies arattimdition systems; a

« diversion of managemestattention from other business conce

Future acquisitions could result in debt, dilutidiabilities, increased interest expense, restmirmgucharges and amortization expel
related to intangible assets.

10




Table of Contents

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We operate manufacturing facilities in the UnitadtSs and multiple other countries. Manufacturipgcg occupied approximately
million square feet, of which 36 percent was in theted States and Canada. Our global headquaterecated in Milwaukee, Wisconsin i
facility that we own. We lease the remaining fdigf noted below. Most of our facilities are shabgdbperations in both segments and me
used for multiple purposes such as administrathanufacturing, warehousing and / or distribution.

The following table sets forth information regamgliour headquarter locations as of September 3@ 201

Location Segment/Region

Milwaukee, Wisconsin, United States Global Headquarters and Control Products & Solgtion
Mayfield Heights, Ohio, United States Architeet & Software

Singapore Architecture & Software

Cambridge, Canada Canada

Capelle, Netherlands / Diegem, Belgium Europe, Middle East and Africa

Hong Kong Asia Pacific

Weston, Florida, United States Latin America

The following table sets forth information regamgliour principal manufacturing locations as of Sayiter 30, 2013.

Location Manufacturing Square Footage

Monterrey, Mexico 637,00(
Aarau, Switzerland 284,00(
Twinsburg, Ohio, United States 257,00(
Mequon, Wisconsin, United States 240,00(
Cambridge, Canada 216,00(
Shanghai, China 196,00(
Singapore 146,00(
Katowice, Poland 138,00(
Tecate, Mexico 135,00
Ladysmith, Wisconsin, United States 124,00(
Richland Center, Wisconsin, United States 124,00(
Jundiai, Brazil 94,00(

There are no major encumbrances (other than fingreirangements, which in the aggregate are noifisignt) on any of our plants
equipment. In our opinion, our properties have beet maintained, are in sound operating condiéimil contain all equipment and facilit
necessary to operate at present levels.
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Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

AsbestosWe (including our subsidiaries) have been nameal defendant in lawsuits alleging personal injurgassult of exposure
asbestos that was used in certain components gfroducts many years ago. Currently there are alewsand claimants in lawsuits that n
us as defendants, together with hundreds of othipanies. In some cases, the claims involve preduein divested businesses, and we
indemnified for most of the costs. However, we hagesed to defend and indemnify asbestos clainecidsd with products manufacturec
sold by our Dodge mechanical and Reliance Eleototors and motor repair services businesses mrithreir divestiture by us, which occur
on January 31, 2007. We also are responsible ftir diathe costs and liabilities associated with estbs cases against R$Cdiveste
measurement and flow control business. But in adles, for those claimants who do show that theykeeuwith our products or products
divested businesses for which we are responsitdenavertheless believe we have meritorious defemsasibstantial part due to the integ
of the products, the encapsulated nature of angsésteontaining components, and the lack of any impgirmedical condition on the part
many claimants. We defend those cases vigorousyotitally, we have been dismissed from the vaaonity of these claims with no paym
to claimants.

We have maintained insurance coverage that weveetievers indemnity and defense costs, over andeabelfinsured retentions, f
claims arising from our former AlleBradley subsidiary. Following litigation against ti@wide Indemnity Company (Nationwide) ¢
Kemper Insurance (Kemper), the insurance carrieas provided liability insurance coverage to AlBradley, we entered into sepal
agreements on April 1, 2008 with both insuranceiear to further resolve responsibility for ongoiagd future coverage of AlleRradley
asbestos claims. In exchange for a lump sum payrfemper bought out its remaining liability and Heeen released from further insura
obligations to AllenBradley. Nationwide entered into a cost share agese with us to pay the substantial majority ofufet defense ai
indemnity costs for Allen-Bradley asbestos claig believe this arrangement will continue to previmbverage for AllefBradley asbest
claims throughout the remaining life of the asbedibility.

The uncertainties of asbestos claim litigation maékdifficult to predict accurately the ultimate tocome of asbestos claims. T
uncertainty is increased by the possibility of adeerulings or new legislation affecting asbestlaént litigation or the settlement proce
Subject to these uncertainties and based on o@riexgge defending asbestos claims, we do not leetleese lawsuits will have a material ef
on our financial condition or results of operations

Other. Various other lawsuits, claims and proceedings lmen or may be instituted or asserted againstlasng to the conduct of ¢
business, including those pertaining to produdbiliiz, environmental, safety and health, intelledt property, employment and conti
matters. Although the outcome of litigation canbetpredicted with certainty and some lawsuits,ntsabr proceedings may be dispose
unfavorably to us, we believe the disposition ottera that are pending or have been asserted atilhave a material effect on our finan
condition or results of operations.
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Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Company

The name, age, office and position held with thenBany and principal occupations and employmennduttie past five years of eact
the executive officers of the Company as of Octd#igr2013 are:

Name, Office and Position, and Principal Occupatiosand Employment Age
Keith D. Nosbusch— Chairman of the Board and President and Chiethtive Officer 62
Sujeet Chand —Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer 55
Kent G. Coppins— Vice President and General Tax Counsel 60
Theodore D. Crandall— Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Office 58
David M. Dorgan — Vice President and Controller 49
Steven W. Etzel— Vice President and Treasurer 53
Douglas M. Hagerman— Senior Vice President, General Counsel and &sgre 52
Frank C. Kulaszewicz —Senior Vice President since April 2011; Vice Pdesit and General Manager, Control and

Visualization Business previously 49
John P. McDermott— Senior Vice President 55
John M. Miller — Vice President and Chief Intellectual Propertu@sel 46
Blake D. Moret — Senior Vice President since April 2011; Vicestdent and General Manager, Customer Support and

Maintenance previously 50
Rondi Rohr-Dralle — Vice President, Investor Relations and Corpobaeelopment since February 2009; Vice President,

Corporate Development previously 57
Robert A. Ruff — Senior Vice President 65
Susan J. Schmitt —Senior Vice President, Human Resources 50
Martin Thomas — Senior Vice President, Operations and EngineeSenyices 55

There are no family relationships, as defined lyliapble SEC rules, between any of the above ekexofficers and any other execut
officer or director of the Company. No officer dfet Company was selected pursuant to any arrangementderstanding between the offl
and any person other than the Company. All exeeutfficers are elected annually.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for the Company’s Common Equity, Related 8tbolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity 8dtes

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stoclcliange and trades under the symbol “ROK.” On Oct8lhe 2013there wer
21,059 shareowners of record of our common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesalprice of our common stock on the New York Sté&cichangecompositi
Transactions reporting system during each quafteunfiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 201

2013 2012
Fiscal Quarters High Low High Low
First $ 84.8( $ 68.3( $ 78.01 $ 53.0¢
Second 91.9¢ 83.5¢ 84.71 72.21
Third 91.67 80.6( 80.61 62.41
Fourth 109.7: 83.5¢ 73.9¢ 61.2(

We declare and pay dividends at the sole discretia@ur Board of Directors. During 201 declared and paid aggregate cash divic
of $1.98 per common share. During the third quaotefiscal 2013 , we increased our quarterly dimdigoer common share 11 percenbt
cents per common share effective with the dividpagable in June 2013 ( $2.08 per common share dphuauring 2012we declared ar
paid aggregate cash dividends of $1.745 per conshare.

The table below sets forth information with respcpurchases made by or on behalf of us of shafresir common stock during t
three months ended September 30, 2013 :

Maximum Approx.
Dollar Value of
Shares that may yet
be Purchased Under
the Plans or Programs

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as
Total Number ; Part of Publicly
Average Price
of Shares Paid Pger Share Announced Plans or

Period Purchased® ® Programs 3

July 1 — 31, 2013 246,70 $ 88.4¢ 246,70 % 596,817,47

August 1 — 31, 2013 315,47( 98.0¢ 313,50( 566,069,28

September 1 — 30, 2013 294,20( 105.1( 294,20( 535,149,37
Total 856,37( 97.7% 854,40!

(1) All of the shares purchased during the quarter @r&ptember 30, 2013 were acquired pursuant teefihrchase program descril
in (3) below, except for 1,970 shares that wereusied in August 2013 in connection with stock sveeqrcises of employee st
options.

(2) Average price paid per share includes brokeragariesions

(3) On June 7, 2012, the Board of Directors authorizedo expend up to $1.0 billion to repurchase shafeour common stock. C
repurchase program allows management to repurdases at its discretion. However, during quartéglyiet periods, defined as tt
period of time from quarteend until two business days following the furnighif our quarterly earnings results to the SEC om
8-K, shares are repurchased at our broker’s disorpursuant to a share repurchase plan subjgrtde and volume parameters.

14




Table of Contents

ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected consoliddieancial data of our continuing operations. Tata should be read in conjunct
with MD&A and the Financial Statements. The cordatéd statement of operations data for each offdalewing five years ende
September 30, the related consolidated balance ghteand other data have been derived from alitegliconsolidated financial statements.

Year Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009(a)
(in millions, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Sales $ 6,351.¢ $ 6,259.. $ 6,000.. $ 4,857.( $ 4,332.!
Interest expense 60.¢ 60.1 59.t 60.t 60.¢
Income from continuing operations 756.3 737.C 697.1 440.¢ 217.¢
Earnings per share from continuing operations:
Basic 5.4: 5.2C 4.8¢ 3.0¢ 1.5¢
Diluted 5.3¢€ 5.1LE 4.7¢ 3.0¢E iLfse
Cash dividends per share 1.9¢ 1.74¢ 1.47¢ 1.22 1.1¢

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
(at end of period)

Total assets $ 5,844.¢ $ 5,636.! $ 5,284.¢ $ 4,748.. $ 4,305."
Short-term debt 179.( 157.C — — —
Long-term debt 905.1 905.( 905.( 904.¢ 904.7
Shareowners’ equity 2,585.! 1,851.° 1,748.( 1,460.¢ 1,316.¢
Other Data:

Capital expenditures $ 146.2 $ 139.¢ $ 120.1 $ 99.2 % 98.C
Depreciation 113.¢ 103.¢ 96.t 95.7 101.5
Intangible asset amortization 31.4 34.7 34.¢ 31.€ 32.4

(@) Includes costs of $60.4 million ($41.8 million aftex, or $0.29 per diluted share) related to vestiring actions designed to be
align our cost structure with thenxrent economic conditions. The majority of theudes related to severance benefits recog
pursuant to our severance policy and local stagueguirements.
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ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
Results of Operations
Non-GAAP Measures

The following discussion includes organic salegltsegment operating earnings and margin, Adjustedme, Adjusted EPS, Adjusi
Effective Tax Rate and free cash flow, which are-@AAP measures. S&aupplemental Sales Informationfor a reconciliation of report:
sales to organic sales and a discussion of why alieve this non-GAAP measure is useful to invest@seResults of Operationsfor a
reconciliation of income before income taxes t@ltetegment operating earnings and margin and aistisn of why we believe these non
GAAP measures are useful to investors. Besults of Operationsfor a reconciliation of income from continuing oggons, diluted EPS fro
continuing operations and effective tax rate toustitd Income, Adjusted EPS and Adjusted Effectia® Rate and a discussion of why
believe these non-GAAP measures are useful to toresSed-inancial Condition for a reconciliation of cash flows from operatingieities
to free cash flow and a discussion of why we belithis non-GAAP measure is useful to investors.

Overview

We are a leading global provider of industrial améion power, control and information solutionstthalp manufacturers achiew
competitive advantage for their businesses. Ovdeatiand for our products, solutions and servicesiven by:

* investments in manufacturing, including upgradesdifications and expansions of existing facilitersproduction lines, and new facilit
or production lines;
* investments in basic materials production capaeitich may be related to commaodity pricing lev

e industry factors that include our customers’ mawduct introductions, demand for our customersducts or services, and the regula
and competitive environments in which our custonogmrate;

* levels of global industrial production and capacitijization;
» regional factors that include local political, salcregulatory and economic circumstances
» the spending patterns of our customers due to éimeiual budgeting processes and their working sdes

Long-term Strategy

Our vision of being the most valued global providémnovative industrial automation and informatiproducts, solutions and service
supported by our growth and performance strategnctwseeks to:
e achieve growth rates in excess of the automatiakebéy expanding our served market and strengtigemiir competitive differentiatio

» diversify our sales streams by broadening our pletfof products, solutions and services, expanding global presence and servir
wider range of industries and applications;

e grow market share by gaining new customers gnchbturing a larger share of existing customsp&nding
» enhance our market access by building our charapellility and partner netwol

* make acquisitions that serve as catalysts to ocggnowth by adding complementary technology, expandur served market, enhanc
our domain expertise or continuing our geographierdification;

» deploy human and financial resources to strengbhertechnology leadership and our intellectual & iusiness mods
» continuously improve quality and customer experg @
e drive annual cost productivi

By implementing the strategy above, we seek toesehour long-term financial goals that include s@swth of 6-8 percent, doubiigit
EPS growth, return on invested capital in excesX0gbercent and free cash flow equal to about Bd6egmt of Adjusted Income.

Our customers face the challenge of remaining dliplzmst competitive and automation can help theshieve their productivity ar
sustainability objectives. Our value propositiortashelp our customers reduce time to market, lowtal cost of ownership, improve as
utilization and manage enterprise risks.
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Differentiation through Technology Innovation andrBain Expertise

We seek a technology leadership position in inédeistiutomation. We believe that our three platforrirgegrated architecture, intellige
motor control and solutions and services - protiaefoundation for long-term sustainable competitidvantage.

Our integrated control and information architecfusth Logix at its core, is an important differextor. We are the only automat
provider that can support discrete, process, baafety, motion and power control on the same hardwplatform with the same softw
programming environment. Our integrated architexiarscalable with standard open communication®pots making it easier for custom
to implement more cost effectively.

Intelligent motor control is one of our core comgraties and an important aspect of an automaticersysrhese products and soluti
enhance the availability, efficiency and safe ofienaof our customers' critical and most enengignsive plant assets. Our intelligent m
control offering can be integrated seamlessly WithLogix architecture.

Domain expertise refers to the industry and appticaknowledge required to deliver solutions andviees that support custom
through the entire life cycle of their automatiorvéstment. The combination of indusspecific domain expertise of our people with
innovative technologies enables us to help ourotnsts solve their manufacturing and business aigdie

Global Expansion

As the manufacturing world continues to expandmuest be able to meet our customerséds around the world. We continue to ex|
our footprint in emerging markets. We currently @approximately 60 percent of our employees outidel.S., and 50 perceot our sale
outside the U.S.

As we expand in markets with considerable growttepiial and shift our global footprint, we expeetdontinue to broaden the portfc
of products, solutions and services that we prowideur customers in these regions. We have magptafisant investments to globalize «
manufacturing, product development and customendaesources in order to be closer to our custertt@oughout the world. Growth in 1
emerging markets of Asia Pacific, including Chinaddndia, Latin America, Central and Eastern Eurapd Africa is projected to exce
global Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate® @ higher levels of infrastructure investmend #me growing middleslass populatiol
We believe that increased demand for consumer ptsdio these markets will lead to manufacturingestment and provide us with additic
growth opportunities in the future.

Enhanced Market Access

Over the past decade, our investments in technaoglyglobalization have enabled us to expand odreaded market to approximal
$90 billion. Our process initiative has been thestnmportant contributor to this expansion and resaur largest growth opportunity. Logi
the technology foundation that enabled us to becamiadustry leader for batch process applicatarsto compete effectively with traditio
Distributed Control Systems (DCS) providers for thmmous process applications. We complement thét wigrowing global network
engineers and partners to provide solutions toge®customers.

OEMs represent another area of addressed markahgm and a strong growth opportunity. To remaimpetitive, OEMs need to fil
the optimal balance of machine cost and performavit& reducing their time to market. Our scalaloieegrated architecture and intellig
motor control offerings, along with design produitii tools and our motion and safety products, aasist OEMs in addressing these bus
needs.

We have developed a powerful network of channetngas, technology partners and commercial parttfeEasact as amplifiers to ¢
internal capabilities and enable us to serve ostotners’ needs around the world.

Broad Range of Industries Served

We apply our knowledge of manufacturing applicadiom help customers solve their business challenyesserve customers in a w
range of industries, including consumer produ@source-based and transportation.

Our consumer products customers are engaged ifotiteand beverage, home and personal care anddiémces industries. The
customersneeds include new capacity, incremental capacimsn fexisting facilities, flexible manufacturing anegulatory compliance. The
customers operate in an environment where produaciiation and time to market are critical factors.
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We serve customers in resoutz@sed industries, including oil and gas, mininggragates, cement, metals, energy, pulp and pal
water/wastewater. Companies in these industrieigdilp invest in capacity expansion when commodglitices are relatively high and glo
demand for basic materials is increasing. In agidjtthere is ongoing investment in upgrades ofggitomation systems and productivity.

In the transportation industry, factors such asggmghic expansion, investment in new model intréidas and more flexib
manufacturing technologies influence customargomation investment decisions. Our sales in pamation are primarily to automotive ¢
tire manufacturers.

Outsourcing and Sustainability Trends

Demand for our products, solutions and servicessscall industries benefits from the outsourcingl aastainability needs of ¢
customers. Customers increasingly desire to outgoemgineering services to achieve a more flexibf base. Our manufacturing applica
knowledge enables us to serve these customersligloba

We help our customers meet their sustainabilitydeggertaining to energy efficiency, environmentadl @afety goals. Higher enel
prices have historically caused customers acrd$sdalstries to invest in more energfficient manufacturing processes and technologiest
as intelligent motor control and energy efficiealutions and services. In addition, environmental aafety objectives often spur custome
invest to ensure compliance and implement sustlEaisiness practices.

Acquisitions

Our acquisition strategy focuses on products, smiator services that will be catalytic to the arigagrowth of our core offerings.
October 2012, we acquired certain assets of theumedoltage drives business of Harbin Jiuzhou Ele&o., Ltd., a leading manufacturel
medium voltage drives, direct current power suppliswitch gear and wind inverters, headquarteredianbin, China. The acquisiti
strengthened our presence in the AB&eific motor control market by adding significaaipabilities in design, engineering and manufaat
of medium voltage drive products. In March 2012, aegjuired certain assets and assumed certainitiebibf SoftSwitching Technologi
Corporation, an industrial power quality detectanmd protection systems provider in the United Stalte May 2011, we acquired Lektro
Limited and its affiliate, an independent indudtaatomation repair and service provider primarityEurope and Asia. In April 2011, »
acquired certain assets and assumed certain fiebitf Hiprom (Pty) Ltd and its affiliates, a pe®s control and automation systems integ
for the mining and mineral processing industry aut® Africa.

We believe the acquired companies will help us egpaur served market and deliver value to our custs.
Continuous Improvement

Productivity and continuous improvement are impartaomponents of our culture. We have programddnepthat drive ongoing proct
improvement, functional streamlining, material cestvings and manufacturing productivity. We arethie process of developing ¢
implementing common global processes and an eigespide business system. These are intended to impmmféability that can be used
fund investments in growth and to offset inflati@ur ongoing productivity initiatives target botbst reduction and improved asset utilizal
Charges for workforce reductions and facility ratibzation may be required in order to effectivekecute our productivity programs.
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U. S. Industrial Economic Trends

In 2013 , sales to U.S. customers accounted fopesentof our total sales. The various indicators we wusgduge the direction a

momentum of our U.S. served markets include:

The Industrial Production Index (Total Index), pebed by the Federal Reserve, which measures #ieou#put of manufacturin
mining, and electric and gas utilities. The IndiastProduction Index is expressed as a percenthgeab output in a base ye
currently 2007. Historically there has been a nmegfuil correlation between the changes in the IdhlsProduction Index and t
level of automation investment made by our U.Stamsrs in their manufacturing base.

The Manufacturing Purchasing Managehsiex (PMI), published by the Institute for Suppiyanagement (ISM), which is
indication of the current and neterm state of manufacturing activity in the U.S.cAding to the ISM, a PMI measure above
indicates that the U.S. manufacturing economy isegaly expanding while a measure below 50 indgatet it is general
contracting.

Industrial Equipment Spending, which is an econostatistic compiled by the Bureau of Economic As@éy(BEA). This statist
provides insight into spending trends in the bra&a®. industrial economy. This measure over the dongrm has proven
demonstrate a reasonable correlation with our déengiowth.

Capacity Utilization (Total Industry), which is amdication of plant operating activity published the Federal Reserve. Historici
there has been a meaningful correlation betweemdtgpUtilization and levels of U.S. industrial piaction.

The table below depicts the trends in these indisafrom fiscal 2011 to 2013The PMI increase in the fourth quarter of fiseal:

indicates expansion in the U.S. manufacturing settalustrial Equipment Spending and the IndustPiedduction Index have been gradu
improving, while Capacity Utilization remained fl&tability in both the recently reported and f@a&ed macroeconomic indicators supy
our expectation that market conditions in the Wil.remain stable next year. We expect the U.8wgh in fiscal 2014 to be about the sam

in fiscal 2013.
Industrial
Industrial Equipment Capacity
Production Spending Utilization
Index PMI (in billions) (percent)
Fiscal 2013
Quarter ended:
September 2013 99.t 56.2 207.¢ 78.C
June 2013 99.C 50.¢ 199.: 77.¢
March 2013 98.7 51.z 200.1 78.C
December 2012 97.7 50.z 199.¢ 77.5
Fiscal 2012
Quarter ended:
September 2012 97.1 51.€ 195.¢ 77.4
June 2012 97.C 50.z 195.¢ 77.7
March 2012 96.2 53.2 190.1 77.€
December 2011 95.1 52.¢ 196.5 77.1
Fiscal 2011
Quarter ended:
September 2011 94.C 53.2 187.1 76.7
June 2011 92.¢ 55.¢ 173.1 76.1
March 2011 92.¢ 59.: 171.3 76.1
December 2010 91.€ 57.2 160.¢ 75.€

Note: Economic indicators are subject to revisibyghe issuing organization
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Non-U.S. Regional Trends

In 2013 , sales to non-U.S. customers accountef(fgrercentf our total sales. These customers include batlyénous companies &
multinational companies with expanding global prese International demand, particularly in emergimaykets, has historically been driver
the strength of the industrial economy in eachaeginvestments in infrastructure and expandingaorer markets.

We use changes in Gross Domestic Product (GDP)rehubtrial Production Index as indicators of thevgth opportunities in each regi
where we do business. Outside the U.S., we expalgiesunderlying market conditions. Europe's mamsaemic conditions are improving |
the pace of recovery is uncertain given unemploytrferels and the impact of austerity programs. AZaaific is expected to return to gro
next year primarily due to market stabilizationGhina. We expect our growth in Latin America to rade in fiscal 2014 coming off a v
strong year. Despite weakness in the past yeacowenue to expect that emerging markets will leefdstest growing automation markets «
the long term.
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Summary of Results of Operatior

Despite sluggish market conditions in 2013 , weiea@d record sales of $6,351.9 million with salemngh of 1.5 percengear over yea
All regions, except for Asia Pacific, experiencades growth year over year, led by Latin Americéhvarganic sales growth of 12 percent.
end market with the strongest sales growth foyde was oil and gas.

Results for our key initiatives were mixed:
e Sales related to our process initiative wertifl&2013 compared to 2012
* Logix sales increased 4 percent in 2013 compiar@®12.

e Sales in emerging markets decreased 1 perc@®lia compared to 2012rimarily due to weakness in emerging A
In a low growth environment, we were able to exps@egiment operating margin by almost a point whiletiouing to invest for growth.

The effective tax rate in 2013 was 22.9 percentpamed to 23.7 percent in 2012 . The Adjusted HffecTax Rate in 2013 wa23.¢
percent compared to 24.1 percent in 2012 . We raézed net discrete tax benefits of $22.7 millior2BiL3, primarily related to the favorat
resolution of tax matters in various global juriins and the retroactive extension of the U.8effal research and development tax credit
recognized net discrete tax benefits of $2.1 mmllin 2012, primarily related to the favorable resolutiontak matters in various glot
jurisdictions.
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The following tables reflect our sales and opetatiesults for the years ended September 30, 2@032 and 2011in millions, excef

per share amounts):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Sales

Architecture & Software $ 2682( $ 26500 $ 2,594!

Control Products & Solutions 3,669.¢ 3,6009.( 3,406.:

Total sales (a) $ 6351.¢ $ 6,259. $  6,000.

Segment operating earninys

Architecture & Software $ 759.. $ 714.. % 670.¢

Control Products & Solutions 477 .4 449.k 378.¢
Total segment operating earnirtgb) 1,236.¢ 1,163.¢ 1,048.¢
Purchase accounting depreciation and amortization (19.9 (19.9) (19.9)
General corporate — net (97.2) (82.9 (78.9
Non-operating pension costs (78.5) (35.2) (23.5)
Interest expense (60.9) (60.7) (59.5)
Income from continuing operations before income$afc) 980.¢ 965.¢ 867.¢
Provision for income taxes (224.¢) (228.9 (170.5
Income from continuing operations 756.: 737.C 697.1
Income from discontinued operatichs — — 0.7
Net income $ 756.: % 737.C % 697.¢
Diluted earnings per share:
Continuing operations $ 53t % 51: % 4.7¢
Discontinued operations — — 0.01
Net income $ 53¢ $ 51 % 4.8C
Adjusted EPS $ 571  $ 52¢ % 4.8¢
Diluted weighted average outstanding shares 140.¢ 143. 145.2
Total segment operating mardib/a) 19.5% 18.¢% 17.5%
Pre-tax margin (c/a) 15.40% 15.40% 14.5%

(1) See Note 17 in the Condensed Consolidated FinaBtigéments for the definition of segment operagiagings

(2) Total segment operating earnings and totaineeg operating margin are n@AAP financial measures. We believe that these oreasare useful
investors as measures of operating performanceuséethese measures to monitor and evaluate thitapiltify of the company. Our measure of t
segment operating earnings and total segment apgratirgin may be different from those used by odoenpanies.

(3) Beginning in fiscal 2013, we redefined segnapdrating earnings to exclude non-operating pensists. Noreperating pension costs were reclassifie
a separate line item within the above table fompalliods presented. These costs were previouslyded in segment operating earnings and in ge
corporatenet. We continue to include service cost and amatitin of prior service cost in the business segrtieat incurred the expense as these
represent the operating cost of providing pensemefits to our employees.

(4) See Note 13 in the Condensed Consolidated FinaBtaééments for a description of items reportedigontinued operatior
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Purchase accounting depreciation and amortizatwhn@neperating pension costs are not allocated to oarating segments beca
these costs are excluded from our measurementobf gggment's operating performance for internabgaes. If we were to allocate th
costs, we would attribute them to each of our segsnas follows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Purchase accounting depreciation and amortization
Architecture & Software $ 4C % 5 % 5.5
Control Products & Solutions 14.2 13.¢ 13.2
Non-operating pension costs
Architecture & Software 27.¢ 11.€ 11.c
Control Products & Solutions 46.€ 20.¢ 9.¢

The increases in non-operating pension costs in segments in fiscal 20Mere primarily due to the decrease in our U.S.dalist rat
from 5.20 percent in 2012 to 4.15 percent in 2013 .

Adjusted Income, Adjusted EPS and Adjusted EffeetiVax Rate Reconciliatiol

Adjusted Income, Adjusted EPS and Adjusted Effectiax Rate are non-GAAP earnings measures thatidealoneperating pensic
costs and their related income tax effects. Wendefioneperating pension costs as defined benefit plarast cost, expected return on |
assets, amortization of actuarial gains and loasesthe impact of any plan curtailments or settl#smeThese components of net peri
benefit cost primarily relate to changes in pensissets and liabilities that are a result of mapgezformance; we consider these costs |
unrelated to the operating performance of our lssinWe believe that Adjusted Income, Adjusted BR& Adjusted Effective Tax R
provide useful information to our investors about operating performance and allow management awgistors to compare our opera
performance period over period. Our measures ofigtdfl Income, Adjusted EPS and Adjusted Effectia& Rate may be different frc
measures used by other companies. TheseG#ohP measures should not be considered a substduti@come from continuing operatio
diluted EPS and effective tax rate.

The following is a reconciliation of income fromrntmuing operations, diluted EPS from continuingigiions, and effective tax rate
Adjusted Income, Adjusted EPS and Adjusted Effeciax Rate for the years ended September 30, 20082, and 201{in millions, excef.
per share amounts):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Income from continuing operations $ 756.: % 737.C $ 697.1
Non-operating pension costs, before tax 78.5 35.2 23.t
Tax effect of non-operating pension costs (28.5) (12.6) (8.5
Adjusted Income $ 806.. % 759.¢ % 712.1
Diluted EPS from continuing operations $ 53¢ % 51 % 4.7¢
Non-operating pension costs per diluted share rbe#x 0.5t 0.2t 0.1¢€
Tax effect of non-operating pension costs per édwghare (0.20) (0.09) (0.0¢€)
Adjusted EPS $ 571 % 52¢ $ 4.8¢
Effective tax rate 22.% 23.7% 19.7%
Tax effect of non-operating pension costs 1.C% 0.4% 0.4%
Adjusted Effective Tax Rate 23.5% 24.1% 20.1%
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2013 Compared to 2012

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2013 2012 Change

Sales $ 6,351.¢ $ 6,259.. $ 92.t
Income from continuing operations before incometax 980.¢ 965.¢ 15.C

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operegio 5.3¢ 5.1: 0.2:
Sales

Sales in fiscal 2013 increased 1.5 percent comparétd12 . Organic sales increased 1.7 perc&gles in our solutions and serv
businesses grew 1 percent year over year. Fisddl g8arend backlog in these businesses was 9 percentriighe at the end of last ye
Product sales grew 2 percent year over year. [grimdmtributed about 1 percentage point to growth.

The table below presents our sales for the yeaedS@ptember 30, 2058 geographic region and the percentage changealés &on
the year ended September 30, 2012 (in millionsegixpercentages):

Change in Organic
Sales vs. Year

Year Ended Change vs. Year Ended
September 30, Ended September 30, 2012
2013(2) September 30, 2012 (2)
United States $ 3,202.¢ 4% 4%
Canada 468.5 1% 2%
Europe, Middle East and Africa 1,284.¢ — % — %
Asia Pacific 851.¢ (10)% (10)%
Latin America 543.t 8 % 12 %
Total sales $ 6,351.¢ 1% 2%

(1) We attribute sales to the geographic regions baped country of destinatic

(2) Organic sales are sales excluding the effechanges in currency exchange rates and acquisit®eeSupplemental Sales Informationfor
information on this non-GAAP measure.

. The United States and Canada had solid sales gmittttoil and gas being the best performing endkeiz
. EMEA's sales growth was flat this year but we aoungid to outperform the market, especially with OE

. Asia Pacific had a challenging year with salesideslin all countries, except Jaf

. Latin America was the highest growth region, ledsbhpng growth in Brazil and Mexic

General Corporate - Net

General corporate - net expenses were $97.2 milfidiscal 2013 compared to $82.9 million in fis@12. The largest contributor to t
yearover-year increase was higher legacy environmefiaiges.
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Income from Continuing Operations before Incomeebax

Income from continuing operations before incomestaixicreased 2 percent from $965.9 million in 261.$980.9 million in 2013 The
increase was primarily due to an increase in segmgerating earnings, partially offset by highenfperating pension costs. Total segr
operating earnings increased 6 percent year ot pemarily due to higher sales and strong praiditg.

Income Taxes

The effective tax rate for 2013 was 22.9 percemtared to 23.7 percent in 2012 . The 2013 and 2€fE2tive tax rates were lower tt
the U.S. statutory rate of 35 percdygicause our sales outside of the U.S. benefitad foover tax rates. The Adjusted Effective Tax Ria
2013 was 23.9 percent compared to 24.1 percer@i@ 2We recognized net discrete tax benefits & Billion in 2013, primarily related t
the favorable resolution of tax matters in variglmbal jurisdictions and the retroactive extensibithe U.S. federal research and develop
tax credit. We recognized net discrete tax benefits2.1 million in 2012 primarily related to the favorable resolutiontat matters in variol
global jurisdictions.

See Note 15 in the Financial Statements for a cetmpkconciliation of the United States statut@y fiate to the effective tax rate i
more information on tax events in 2013 and 2012dififig the respective tax rates.

Architecture & Software

(in millions, except percentages) 2013 2012 Change

Sales $ 2,682.( $ 2,650« $ 31.€

Segment operating earnings 759.¢ 714.¢ 45.C

Segment operating margin 28.2% 27.(% 1.2 pts
Sales

Architecture & Software sales increased 1 percen2d13 compared to 2012 . Organic sales increasper@nt, and the effects
currency translation reduced sales by 1 percemtagg. Pricing contributed about 1 percentage pirgrowth during the year. Strong year
over-year sales growth in the United States and EM@&s offset by significant declines in Asia Pazifiogix sales increased 4 percenfdi:
compared to 2012 .

Operating Margin

Architecture & Software segment operating earniingseased 6 percent . Operating margin expandegdirs to 28.3 percent 2012
as compared to 2012 , primarily due to higher satesstrong productivity.

Control Products & Solutions

(in millions, except percentages) 2013 2012 Change

Sales $ 3,669.¢ $ 3,609.C $ 60.¢

Segment operating earnings 477 .¢ 449.k 27.¢

Segment operating margin 13.(% 12.5% 0.E pts
Sales

Control Products & Solutions sales increased 2qrernn 2013 compared to 2012 . Organic sales isec@ percentPricing contribute
less than 1 percentage point to growth during ar.ylLatin America was the strongest performingador the segment with doubt#git
yeal-over-year sales growth during the year. The UnS&tes and Canada experienced solid sales grav@®li3, while Asia Pacific reporte
significant sales declines.

Operating Margin

Control Products & Solutions segment operating ieagmincreased 6 percent . Operating margin exghfdg point to 13.0 percein
2013 as compared to 2012 , primarily due to higladgs, strong productivity and favorable mix.
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2012 Compared to 2011

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2012 2011 Change

Sales $ 6,259.. $ 6,000.c $ 259.(

Income from continuing operations 965.¢ 867.¢ 98.:

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operegio 5.1: 4.7¢ 0.34
Sales

Sales in fiscal 2012 increased 4 percent compar@@11. Organic sales increased 6 percent. Acgprisitontributed 1 percentage p
to the growth rate and currency translation redigadds by 3 percentage points. Organic sales isautions and services businesses gre
percent year over year, acquisitions contributearzentage points to the increase and currencglétéon reduced sales by 4 percentage pi
Yearend backlog in these businesses was 7 percent lihaara year ago due to an increase in order deRrggluct organic sales grev
percent year over year and currency translationaed sales by 3 percentage points. Volume accodotesibstantially all of the organic se
growth during the year as pricing contributed g1 1 percentage point to growth.

The table below presents our sales for the yeaedS@ptember 30, 2012 by geographic region angdheentage change in sales f
the year ended September 30, 2011 (in millionsegixpercentages):

Change in Organic

Year Ended Change vs. Year Sales vs. Year
September 30, Ended September Ended September
2012(1) 30, 2011 30, 2011(2)
United States $ 3,067.1 5% 5%
Canada 464.: 17% 20%
Europe, Middle East and Africa 1,280.¢ 1% 6%
Asia Pacific 942.¢ 3% 5%
Latin America 504.¢ ()% 8%
Total sales $ 6,259. 4% 6%

(1) We attribute sales to the geographic regions baged country of destinatic
(2) Organic sales are sales excluding the effechanges in currency exchange rates and acquisit®eeSupplemental Sales Informationfor
information on this non-GAAP measure.

. Organic sales growth in the United States wagdrby transportation and oil and gas industi@ss;onsumer industries lagged
the region growth rate.

. Strong organic sales growth in Canada reflectedinued strength in the resouttased industrie

. EMEA's organic sales growth was driven by strdogble digit growth in its emerging markets, parérly in Central and
Eastern Europe.

. Asia Pacific organic sales growth was mixed ssthe countries in the region with mature margetgerally outperforming
emerging markets and Australia experiencing sigaift sales declines.

. Organic sales growth in Latin America was drivgrstrong growth in transportation and oil and igasistries in Mexico,
partially offset by year-over-year declines in Brazhich is experiencing an economic slowdown.

Income from Continuing Operations

Income from continuing operations before incomestaxcreased 11 percent from $867.6 million in 2@1%965.9 million in 2012. Tt
increase was predominantly due to increased volantk lower incentive compensation expense, partiafiget by increased spending
support growth.
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Income Taxes

The effective tax rate for 2012 was 23.7 percemtpared to 19.7 percent in 2011. The 2012 and 2@&&tive tax rates were lower th
the U.S. statutory rate of 35 percent becausealas sutside of the U.S. benefited from lower &@tes.

During 2012, we recognized net discrete tax benefits2.1 million primarily related to the favorabiesolution of worldwide tax matte
During 2011, we recognized net discrete tax benafit$25.0 million related to the favorable resiamtof worldwide tax matters and 1
retroactive extension of the U.S. federal researetit.

See Note 15 in the Financial Statements for a cetepkconciliation of the United States statutay tate to the effective tax rate i
more information on tax events in 2012 and 201é&dififig the respective tax rates.

Architecture & Software

(in millions, except percentages) 2012 2011 Change

Sales $ 2,650« $ 2594 $ 56.1

Segment operating earnings 702.¢ 659.1 4317

Segment operating margin 26.5% 25.2% 1.1 pts
Sales

Architecture & Software sales increased 2 percern2d12. Organic sales increased 5 percent, an@ffeets of currency translati
reduced sales by 3 percentage points. Pricing iboméd less than 1 percentage point to growth dutire year. Year-overear organic sal
growth in all regions other than Canada and EMEA wslightly above the segment average. Logix orgaales increased 8 percent in 2
compared to 2011 and currency translation reduaksd $y 3 percentage points.

Operating Margin

Architecture & Software segment operating earningseased 7 percent. Operating margin expandegddints to 26.5 percent in 2012
compared to 2011. The increase was predominantytduwolume increases and lower incentive comp@msaixpense, partially offset
increased spending to support growth.

Control Products & Solutions

(in millions, except percentages) 2012 2011 Change

Sales $ 3,609.C $ 3,406.. $ 202.¢

Segment operating earnings 428.¢ 368.t 60.1

Segment operating margin 11.%% 10.8% 1.1 pts
Sales

Control Products & Solutions sales increased 6grgrdOrganic sales increased 8 percent. Acquisitammtributed 1 percentage poin
the growth rate and currency translation reducéesday 3 percentage points. Pricing contributed tean 1 percentage point to growth du
the year. Canada was the strongest performing mefgiothe segment with double digit year-oyear organic sales growth during the y
Year-over-year organic sales growth in Latin Amarasxd EMEA was slightly above the segment avenaéde year-overyear organic sal
growth in the United States and Asia Pacific was llan the segment average growth rate.

Operating Margin

Control Products & Solutions segment operating ieagsincreased 16 percent. Operating margin exghfide points to 11.9 percent
2012 as compared to 2011. The increase was predathjirdue to volume increases and lower incentmamensation expense, partially of
by increased spending to support growth.
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Financial Condition

The following is a summary of our cash flows fropeaating, investing and financing activities, a$exed in the Consolidated Staterr
of Cash Flows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011

Cash provided by (used for):

Operating activities $ 1,014.¢ $ 718.7 % 643.7

Investing activities (256.¢) (503.9 (160.9)

Financing activities (454.¢ (282.%) (297.9

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 0.€ (16.¢) (5.9)
Cash provided (used for) by continuing operations $ 304.C $ 84.00 $ 179.1

The following table summarizes free cash flow (iilions):

Cash provided by continuing operating activities $ 1,014.¢ % 7187 % 643.%
Capital expenditures of continuing operations (146.2) (139.6) (220.7)
Excess income tax benefit from share-based compensa 31.¢ 18.5 38.1
Free cash flow $ 900.t $ 597.¢ $ 561.%

Our definition of free cash flow, which is a nGAAP financial measure, takes into consideratiguitehinvestments required to maint
the operations of our businesses and execute mie@y. Cash provided by continuing operating #@tiv adds back nooash depreciatic
expense to earnings and thus does not reflectrgeliar necessary capital expenditures. Our déeimiof free cash flow excludes the opera
cash flows and capital expenditures related todisgontinued operations. Operating, investing andnicing cash flows of our discontint
operations are presented separately in our statesheash flows. Our accounting for shdrased compensation requires us to report the d
excess income tax benefit as a financing cash faiter than as an operating cash flow. We havedathds benefit back to our calculatior
free cash flow in order to generally classify cdiglws arising from income taxes as operating cdstvs. In our opinion, free cash flc
provides useful information to investors regarding ability to generate cash from business operatibat is available for acquisitions
other investments, service of debt principal, divids and share repurchases. We use free cash $leaweameasure to monitor and eval
performance. Our definition of free cash flow maéf§edt from definitions used by other companies.

Cash provided by operating activities was $1,0dilBon for the year ended September 30, 2013 cosghto $718.7 milliorfor the yea
ended September 30, 2012 . Free cash flow was raesofi $900.5 million for the year ended Septen#fier2013compared to a source
$597.6 million for the year ended September 30220The increase in the cash flow provided by opegaéctivities and the increase in 1
cash flow are primarily due to a $300 million disttonary pretax contribution to our U.S. qualified pension trysartially offset by a relat
tax benefit, made in 2012 and lower incentive comspdon payments in 2013 .

We repurchased approximately 4.7 million shareswfcommon stock under our share repurchase progré&d@13. The total cost «
these shares was $401.5 million , of which $6.4ionilwas recorded in accounts payable at SepteBle2013 , related to 60,0@hares thi
did not settle until October 2013 . In 2012 , wpurchased approximately 3.7 millishares of our common stock under our share repsa
program. The total cost of these shares was $268li&n , of which $7.6 million was recorded in aumts payable at September 30, 2012
related to 110,000 shares that did not settle @dtbber 2012 . Our decision to repurchase sto@0iL4will depend on business conditio
free cash flow generation, other cash requiremamtsstock price. At September 30, 2013 we had appedely $535.1 milliorremaining fo
stock repurchases under our existing board authtoziz. See Part Il, Item Bjarket for the Companys Common Equity, Related Stockholt
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securit, for additional information regarding share rephages.

We expect future uses of cash to include workingjitahrequirements, capital expenditures, addifia@ntributions to our retireme
plans, acquisitions of businesses, dividends taesiwners, repurchases of common stock and repagnm@ntebt. We expect capi
expenditures in 2014 to be about $170 million. Wpeet to fund future uses of cash with a combimatié existing cash balances and shor
term investments, cash generated by operatingitgEsivcommercial paper borrowings or a new issaafalebt or other securities.
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Given our extensive operations outside the U.Sigificant amount of our cash, cash equivalents sirortterm investments (func
are held in nonJ.S. subsidiaries where our undistributed earnargspermanently reinvested. Generally, these fwualdd be subject to U.
tax if repatriated. The percentage of such bo8: funds can vary from quarter to quarter withagarage of approximately 90 percent ove
past eight quarters. As of September 30, 2013 roappately 90 percent of our funds were held inhsnonU.S. subsidiaries. We have
encountered and do not expect to encounter angultif meeting the liquidity requirements of ourndestic and international operations.

In addition to cash generated by operating aotisjtwe have access to existing financing souroekjding the public debt mark
and unsecured credit facilities with various bar&emmercial paper is our principal source of shentr financing. At September 30, 2013
commercial paper borrowings outstanding were $1@8lllon , with a weighted average interest rateddf7 percent . At September 30, 2012
commercial paper borrowings outstanding were $18¥lllon , with a weighted average interest raté®dd7 percent . Our debt-to-totedpita
ratio was 29.5 percent at September 30, 2013 arddpgBcent at September 30, 2012 . The decreabe utebt-to-totatapital ratio is primaril
due to higher shareowners' equity resulting fromryend pension adjustments for actuarial gaingtalirgcrease in the discount rate.

On May 22, 2013, we replaced our former four-y&#50.0 million unsecured revolving credit facilgxpiring in March 201%vith a
new five-year $750.0 million unsecured revolvingdit facility expiring in May 2018 We can increase the aggregate amount of thist
facility by up to $250.0 million, subject to thensent of the banks in the credit facility. We didt incur early termination penalties
connection with the termination of the former ctefdicility. We have not borrowed against these itréatilities during the years enc
September 30, 2013 and 2012 . Borrowings undeetbieslit facilities bear interest based on skemta money market rates in effect during
period the borrowings are outstanding. The termthede credit facilities contain covenants undeictviive would be in default if our debt-to-
total-capital ratio was to exceed 60 percent . Bdpashort-term unsecured credit facilities of agpnately $121.6 million aSeptember 3
2013 were available to non-U.S. subsidiaries. Beimgs under our non-U.S. credit facilities duringchl 2013 and 201&ere not significan
We were in compliance with all covenants under cnedit facilities during the years ended Septen30er2013 and 2012 There were r
significant commitment fees or compensating balaegeirements under any of our credit facilities.

Among other uses, we can draw on our credit fgcds a standby liquidity facility to repay our datsding commercial paper a:
matures. This access to funds to repay maturingreencial paper is an important factor in maintainihg shortterm credit ratings set forth
the table below. Under our current policy with respto these ratings, we expect to limit our otb@rowings under our credit facility, if any,
amounts that would leave enough credit availabléeurthe facility so that we could borrow, if needédl repay all of our then outstand
commercial paper as it matures.

The following is a summary of our credit ratingsod$September 30, 2013 :

Short Term Long Term
Credit Rating Agency Rating Rating Outlook
Standard & Poor’s A-1 A Stable
Moody’s P-2 A3 Stable
Fitch Ratings F1 A Stable

Our ability to access the commercial paper magkad, the related costs of these borrowings, is tfteby the strength of our credit rat
and market conditions. We have not experienced difficulty in accessing the commercial paper mari@tdate. If our access to -
commercial paper market is adversely affected due¢hange in market conditions or otherwise, waltvexpect to rely on a combinatior
available cash and our unsecured committed creditity to provide shorterm funding. In such event, the cost of borrowingsler ou
unsecured committed credit facility could be higtiem the cost of commercial paper borrowings.

We regularly monitor the third-party depositorytingions that hold our cash and cash equivalents shortterm investments. O
emphasis is primarily on safety and liquidity ofngipal and secondarily on maximizing yield on thdands. We diversify our cash and ¢
equivalents and short-term investments among coquanties to minimize exposure to any one of thediies.
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We enter into contracts to offset changes in thewrhof future cash flows associated with certindiparty sales and intercompz
transactions denominated in foreign currenciesclsted to occur within the next two years and teebftransaction gains or losses assoc
with some of our assets and liabilities that aneoti@inated in currencies other than their functianatencies resulting from intercompany Ic
and other transactions with third parties denoneitha@h foreign currencies. Our foreign currency fardr exchange contracts are ust
denominated in currencies of major industrial caest We diversify our foreign currency forward Baage contracts among counterparti
minimize exposure to any one of these entities.

Cash dividends to shareowners were $276.3 milio2013 ( $1.98 per common share), $247.4 millior2042 ( $1.74%er commo
share) and $211.0 million in 2011 ( $1.475 per camrshare). Our quarterly dividend rate as of Sep&r80, 2013 is $0.52er common sha
($2.08 per common share annually), which is detethat the sole discretion of our Board of Diresto

A summary of our projected contractual cash obiliget at September 30, 2013 are (in millions):

Payments by Period

Total 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter

Long-term debt and interest (a) $ 2,518. $ 56.¢ $ 56.¢ $ 56.¢ $ 56.¢ $ 299.¢ $ 1,990.¢
Minimum operating lease payments 358.( 82.C 67.7 52.% 43.1 33.7 78.¢
Postretirement benefits (b) 150.2 15.1 14.¢ 13.¢ 12.¢ 12.2 81.¢€
Pension funding contribution (c) 41.1 411 — — — — —
Purchase obligations (d) 100.% 38.2 20.2 10.2 7.5 7.5 16.¢
Other long-term liabilities (e) 80.¢ 8.1 — — — — —
Unrecognized tax benefits (f) 53.2 — — — — — —
Total $ 3302: $ 241¢ $ 159« $ 133¢ $ 120« $ 353 $ 2,167

(&) The amounts for lontgrm debt assume that the respective debt instrisnveill be outstanding until their scheduled matudates
The amounts include interest, but exclude the uméred discount of $44.9 millionSee Note 6 in the Financial Statements for |
information regarding our long-term debt.

(b) Our postretirement plans are unfunded and are stutjechange. Amounts reported are estimates ofdubenefit payments, to 1
extent estimable.

(c) Amounts reported for pension funding contributioeflect current estimates of known commitments. tGbutions to our pensic
plans beyond 201will depend on future investment performance of pemsion plan assets, changes in discount ratengssms an
governmental regulations in effect at the time. Aims subsequent to 20i4e excluded from the summary above, as these &g
cannot be estimated with certainty. The minimumtigbation for our U.S. pension plan as requiredtbg Employee Retireme
Income Security Act (ERISA) is currently zero. Wayrmake additional contributions to this plan &t diiscretion of management.

(d) This item includes lonterm obligations under agreements with variousiserproviders and contractual commitments for ed
expenditures.

(e) Other longerm liabilities include environmental liabilitieasset retirement obligations and indemnificatiomes,of related receivabls
Amounts subsequent to 20&4de excluded from the summary above, as we arel@italmake a reasonably reliable estimate of \
the liabilities will be paid.

(H Amount for unrecognized tax benefits includes aedrinterest and penalties. We are unable to makasonably reliable estimate
when the liabilities for unrecognized tax benefiil be settled or paid.
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Supplemental Sales Information

We translate sales of subsidiaries operating oaitsidthe United States using exchange rates eféecturing the respective peri
Therefore, changes in currency exchange ratestaifacreported sales. Sales by businesses we adqgaiso affect our reported sales.
believe that organic sales, defined as sales egjutie effects of changes in currency exchangesrahd acquisitions, which is a NnGAAP
financial measure, provides useful informationneeistors because it reflects regional and operatggnent performance from the activitie
our businesses without the effect of changes ireagly exchange rates and acquisitions. We use iorgales as one measure to monitor
evaluate our regional and operating segment pedonce We determine the effect of changes in cuyrexchange rates by translating
respective period’ sales using the same currency exchange ratesvénatin effect during the prior year. When we acgjbusinesses, \
exclude sales in the current period for which treeeno comparable sales in the prior period. Qcgsales growth is calculated by compa
organic sales to reported sales in the prior yé&&r attribute sales to the geographic regions basdte country of destination.

The following is a reconciliation of our reportegles to organic sales (in millions):

United States

Canada

Europe, Middle East and Africa
Asia Pacific

Latin America

Total Company Sales

United States

Canada

Europe, Middle East and Africa
Asia Pacific

Latin America

Total Company Sales

Year Ended

September 30,

Year Ended September 30, 2013 2012

Sales
Effect of Excluding
Changes in Changes in Effect of Organic

Sales Currency Currency Acquisitions Sales Sales
3,202.¢ % 0. $ 3,203." % (2) $ 3,201¢ $ 3,067.1
468.7 4.4 473.1 — 473.1 464.%
1,284.¢ (2.9 1,282.( — 1,282.( 1,280.¢
851.¢ 4.z 856.] (20.7) 845.¢ 942.¢
543.k 19.4 562.¢ — 562.¢ 504.¢
6,351.¢ $ 25¢ % 6,377.8 $ (12.¢) $ 6,365.( $ 6,259.

Year Ended

September 30,

Year Ended September 30, 2012 2011

Sales
Effect of Excluding
Changes in Changes in Effect of Organic

Sales Currency Currency Acquisitions Sales Sales
3,067.0 $ 38 % 3,070.t $ 23 $ 3,068:¢ % 2,917.¢
464.% 9.4 473.7 — 473.7 396.2
1,280.¢ 98.c 1,378.¢ (33.]) 1,345.¢ 1,267.¢
942.¢ 11.¢ 954.% (1.9 952.¢ 910.¢
504.¢ 43.1 547.¢ — 547.¢ 508.2
6,259.. $ 165.¢ % 6,425.0. $ (36.7) $ 6,388.¢ % 6,000.:
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The following is a reconciliation of our reportegles by operating segment to organic sales (inang):

Year Ended

September 30,

Year Ended September 30, 2013 2012

Sales
Effect of Excluding
Changes in Changes in Effect of Organic

Sales Currency Currency Acquisitions Sales Sales
Architecture & Software $ 2,682.( $ 10.7 $ 2,692 $ — $ 2692 $ 2,650.-
Control Products & Solutions 3,669.¢ 15.2 3,685.! (12.¢) 3,672. 3,609.(
Total Company Sales $ 6,351.¢ $ 25¢ % 6,377.t $ (12.¢) $ 6,365.C $ 6,259.¢

Year Ended

September 30,

Year Ended September 30, 2012 2011

Sales
Effect of Excluding
Changes in Changes in Effect of Organic

Sales Currency Currency Acquisitions Sales Sales
Architecture & Software $ 2,650 $ 735 % 2,723¢ $ — $ 2,723¢ $ 2,594.
Control Products & Solutions 3,609.( 92.£ 3,701.¢ (36.7) 3,664." 3,406.:
Total Company Sales $ 6,259.. $ 165.¢ $ 6,425.0. $ (36.7) % 6,388.t $ 6,000.-

32




Table of Contents

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We have prepared the consolidated financial statésrie accordance with accounting principles gdheegcepted in the United Stat
which require us to make estimates and assumpti@tsaffect the reported amounts of assets andlitie® at the date of the consolida
financial statements and revenues and expenseasgdilne periods reported. Actual results could diffem those estimates. We believe
following critical accounting policies could haveetmost significant effect on our reported resattsequire subjective or complex judgme
by management.

Retirement Benefit— Pension

Pension costs and obligations are actuarially deterd and are influenced by assumptions used ima&st these amounts, including
discount rate, the expected rate of return on pksets, the assumed annual compensation increas¢hearetirement rate, the mortality |
and the employee turnover rate. Changes in anyhefassumptions and the amortization of differermsween the assumptions and ac
experience will affect the amount of pension expenduture periods.

Our global pension expense in 2013 was $168.1aniliompared to $104.7 million in 2012 . Approxintaté7 percent of ouR01:
global pension expense relates to our U.S. pergiom The actuarial assumptions used to determim€@013U.S. pension expense inclut
the following: discount rate of 4.15 percent (comgghto 5.20 percent for 2012 ); expected rate airneon plan assets &.00 percet
(compared to 8.00 percent for 2012 ); and an asduor@-term compensation increase rate of 4.00gmr(compared to 4.00 percefor
2012).

In 2013 , 2012 and 2011we were not required to make contributions tasgaminimum statutory funding requirements in dlS.
pension plans. However, we made voluntary contidimgt of $300.0 million and $150.0 million to our3J.pension plans in 2012 and 2011
respectively.

The table below presents our estimate of net pierieehefit cost in 2014 compared to net periodiedie cost in 2013 (in millions):

2014 2013 Change
Service cost $ 787 $ 921 $ (13.9)
Prior service credit amortization (2.7) (2.5) (0.2
Operating pension cost 76.C 89.¢ (23.¢)
Interest cost 174.4 160.2 14.2
Expected return on plan assets (218.)) (226.9) 8.2
Net actuarial loss amortization 99.¢ 144.¢ (44.9)
Non-operating pension cost 56.2 78.5 (22.9)
Net periodic benefit cost $ 1322 § 168.1 § (35.9)

For 2014 our U.S. discount rate will increase @b5ercent from 4.15 percent in 201Bhe discount rate was set as of our Septemt
measurement date and was determined by modelingt@lp of bonds that match the expected cash ftdwur benefit plans. Our U.S. long-
term compensation increase rate will decrease @b Bercent for 2014 from 4.00 percent in 20108/e established this rate by analyzing
elements of compensation that are pension-eligiataings.

For 2014 our expected rate of return on U.S. pkses will decrease to 7.50 percent from 8.00 peioe2013, reflecting lower futur
expected market returns. In estimating the expert@igin on plan assets, we considered actual tomnplan assets over the long t
adjusted for forward-looking considerations, sushirglation, interest rates, equity performance #éimel active management of the plans
invested assets. We also considered our currenegpelcted mix of plan assets in setting this assiompThe financial markets produc
strong results in 2013 . The plan’s Debt Securitgarn exceeded the expected return range in 26%3ower market interest rates resulte
higher bond values. The plan’s Equity Securitigarreexceeded the expected return range in 204®jely due to higher U.S. equity retu
The actual return for our portfolio of U.S. plarsets was approximately 7.30 percent annualizethiorl5 years ended September 30, 201
and was approximately 8.90 percent annualizedh®?20 years ended September 30, 2013 .
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The target allocations and ranges of long-term etggereturn for our major categories of U.S. plaseds are as follows:

Target
Asset Category Allocations  Expected Return
Equity Securities 55% 9% - 10%
Debt Securities 40% 4% - 6%
Other 5% 6% - 11%

The changes in our discount rate and return on @éasets have an inverse relationship with our egbgic benefit cost. The change
our discount rate also has an inverse relationsftipour projected benefit obligation. The chang@ur compensation increase rate has a
relationship with our net periodic benefit cost gmdjected benefit obligation.

The following chart illustrates the estimated chaingprojected benefit obligation and annual netookc benefit cost assuming a cha
of 25 basis points in the key assumptions for 0i8. gension plans (in millions):

Pension Benefits

Change in Change in
Projected Net Periodic

Benefit Benefit
Obligation Cost
Discount rate $ 100.¢ $ 9.€
Return on plan assets — 6.C
Compensation increase rate 19.C 4.C

More information regarding pension benefits is eomd in Note 12 in the Financial Statements.
Revenue Recoghnitio

For approximately 85 percerdf our consolidated sales, we record sales wheof @ahe following have occurred: an agreement alé
exists; pricing is fixed or determinable; collectiis reasonably assured; and product has beeredsdivand acceptance has occurred, as ir
required according to contract terms, or servi@gtbeen rendered. Within this category, we witiraes enter into arrangements that inv
the delivery of multiple products and/or the pemiance of services, such as installation and conioniisg). The timing of delivery, thou
varied based upon the nature of the undeliveredpooent, is generally shotérm in nature. For these arrangements, revenatosated t
each deliverable based on that element's relagiVi@g price, provided the delivered element hasi@do customers on a standalone basis
if the arrangement includes a general right of rretulelivery or performance of the undelivered igei® probable and substantially in
control. Relative selling price is obtained fromuszes such as vendspecific objective evidence (VSOE), which is basedthe separa
selling price for that or a similar item, or fromird-party evidence such as how competitors have psaedar items. If such evidence is
available, we use our best estimate of the sefiiie, which includes various internal factors saslour pricing strategy and market factors.

We recognize substantially all of the remaindeoof sales as construction-type contracts usingeite percentage-abmpletion o
completed contract methods of accounting. We recalds relating to these contracts using the ptagerofecompletion method when \
determine that progress toward completion is reasigrand reliably estimable; we use the completattract method for all others. Under
percentage-oéompletion method, we recognize sales and grod$# peowork is performed using the relationshipviisdn actual costs incur
and total estimated costs at completion. Undeptreentage-oéompletion method, we adjust sales and gross dofitevisions of estimatt
total contract costs or revenue in the period trenge is identified. We record estimated lossesonitracts when they are identified.

We use contracts and customer purchase orderstéondee the existence of an agreement of sale. ¥éeshipping documents ¢
customer acceptance, when applicable, to verifweisl. We assess whether the fee is fixed or deteinle based on the payment te
associated with the transaction and whether thessplice is subject to refund or adjustment. Weesssscollectibility based on t
creditworthiness of the customer as determinedrégicevaluations and analysis, as well as theoowsit’'s payment history.
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Returns, Rebates and Incenti

Our primary incentive program provides distributaigh cash rebates or account credits based oredgn@mounts that vary depending
the customer to whom our distributor ultimatelylsé¢he product. We also offer various other inoemfirograms that provide distributors
direct sale customers with cash rebates, accoeditsror additional products and services basegheeting specified program criteria. Cer
distributors are offered a right to return prodscihject to contractual limitations.

We record accruals for customer returns, rebatdsrexentives at the time of revenue recognitioredgsrimarily on historical experien
Adjustments to the accrual may be required if dateturns, rebates and incentives differ from histd experience or if there are change
other assumptions used to estimate the accruaiitiéat assumption used in estimating the accraabiur primary distributor rebate prograr
the time period from when revenue is recognized/hen the rebate is processed. If the time periocw@ change by 10 percent, the el
would be an adjustment to the accrual of approeiyat10.8 million .

Returns, rebates and incentives are recognized raduetion of sales if distributed in cash or costo account credits. Rebates
incentives are recognized in cost of sales fortamwil products and services to be provided. Adsrage reported as a current liability in
balance sheet or, where a right of setoff existsa aeduction of accounts receivable. The accarattdistomer returns, rebates and incen
was $184.0 million at September 30, 2013 and $1i6lEon at September 30, 2012 , of which $8.9 il at September 30, 2013 afd.<
million at September 30, 2012 was included as &ebfo accounts receivable.

Litigation, Claims and Contingencie

We record liabilities for litigation, claims and mtingencies when an obligation is probable and wienhave a basis to reason:
estimate its value. We also record liabilities éawvironmental matters based on estimates for krewironmental remediation exposures.
liabilities include expenses for sites we curretiyn or operate or formerly owned or operated dnd fparty sites where we were determi
to be a potentially responsible party. At thpdrty environmental sites where more than one piatgnresponsible party has been identified
record a liability for our estimated allocable shaf costs related to our involvement with the,site well as an estimated allocable sha
costs related to the involvement of insolvent adantified parties. If we determine that recoveyn insurers or other third parties is prob.
and a right of setoff exists, we record the lidpiiet of the estimated recovery. If we determhre tecovery from insurers or other third pa
is probable, but a right of setoff does not exiat,record a liability for the total estimated costsemediation and a receivable for the estinr
recovery. At environmental sites where we are thly cesponsible party, we record a liability forettotal estimated costs of remediat
Ongoing operating and maintenance expenditureaded in our environmental remediation obligatiores@iscounted to present value ovel
probable future remediation period. Our remainingimnmental remediation obligations are undiscedrdue to subjectivity of timing and
amount of future cash payments. Environmental liigbestimates may be affected by changing deteations of what constitutes
environmental exposure or an acceptable levela#raip. To the extent that the required remedigtionedures or timing of those procedi
change, additional contamination is identified,tibe financial condition of other potentially resgdile parties is adversely affected,
estimate of our environmental liabilities may chang

Our accrual for environmental matters was $47.5ionil, net of $35.1 million of related receivablesid $45.2 million , net 0$32.1
million of related receivables, at September 3a,328nd 2012 respectively. Our recorded liability for enviroantal matters relates alm
entirely to businesses formerly owned by us (ledacsinesses) for which we retained the responsilidi remediate. The nature of our cur
business is such that the likelihood of new envitental exposures that could result in a signifigargrge to earnings is low. As a resu
remediation efforts at legacy sites and limited nemvironmental matters, we expect that graduallgroa long period of time, o
environmental obligations will decline. Howeveradges in required remediation procedures or tinsihthose procedures at existing leg
sites, or discovery of contamination at additiositds, could result in increases to our environalestiligations.

Our principal self-insurance programs include pudiability where we are selfisured up to a specified dollar amount. Cle
exceeding this amount up to specified limits argeced by insurance policies issued by commercisliners. We estimate the reserve
product liability claims using our claims experierfor the periods being valued. Adjustments topteauct liability reserves may be requi
to reflect emerging claims experience and othetofacsuch as inflationary trends or the outcomelaims. The reserve for product liabi
claims was $21.0 million and $22.3 million as opfsnber 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Various lawsuits, claims and proceedings have loeenay be instituted or asserted against us relatirthe conduct of our business.
described in Part |, Item Begal Proceedings we have been named as a defendant in lawsiewiradi personal injury as a result of exposu
asbestos that was used in certain components gfroducts many years ago. See Part |, ltem 3 foihdu discussion.
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We accrue for costs related to the legal obligaissociated with the retirement of a tangible lbwgd asset that results from -
acquisition, construction, development or the ndroperation of the londjved asset. The obligation to perform the asskterment activity i
not conditional even though the timing or methodynb® conditional. Identified conditional asset metient obligations include asbe:
abatement and remediation of soil contaminationeb#ncurrent and previously divested facilities. ¥&imate conditional asset retiren
obligations using sitepecific knowledge and historical industry expertid significant change in the costs or timing cbbve a significa
effect on our estimates. We recorded these liagsliin the Consolidated Balance Sheet, which tdt&®3 million and $3.4 millionn othe
current liabilities at September 30, 2013 and 20fespectively, and $22.0 million and $22.4 millionother liabilities atSeptember 30, 20
and 2012 , respectively.

In conjunction with the sale of our Dodge mechanaa Reliance Electric motors and motor repaivises businesses, we agree
indemnify Baldor Electric Company for costs and dges related to certain legacy legal, environmeatal asbestos matters of tr
businesses arising before January 31, 2007, fochwtie maximum exposure is capped at the amouptvest for the sale. We estimate
potential future payments we could incur under éhieslemnifications may approximate $11.4 millioof which $0.3 million ands1.6 millior
has been accrued in other current liabilities @t&aber 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively, and ®8IBn and $8.8 millionhas been accrued
other liabilities at September 30, 2013 and 20fdespectively. A significant change in the costsiming could have a significant effect on
estimates.

More information regarding litigation, claims anaintingencies is contained in Note 16 in the FinalnBtatements.
Income Taxes

We operate in numerous taxing jurisdictions andsaigect to regular examinations by U.S. Fedetatesand nor.S. taxing authoritie
Additionally, we have retained tax liabilities ati rights to tax refunds in connection with vasalivestitures of businesses in prior years.
income tax positions are based on research angiatations of the income tax laws and rulings aeheof the jurisdictions in which we
business. Due to the subjectivity of interpretatiarf laws and rulings in each jurisdiction, thefetiénces and interplay in tax laws betw
those jurisdictions as well as the inherent ungastan estimating the final resolution of complax audit matters, our estimates of income
liabilities may differ from actual payments or assments.

While we have support for the positions we takeontax returns, taxing authorities may assertjputations of laws and facts and r
challenge cross jurisdictional transactions. Cilasisdictional transactions between our subsidgiie/olving the transfer price for produr
services, and/or intellectual property as well asous U.S. state tax matters comprise our moneifgignt income tax exposures. The g
liability for unrecognized tax benefits, excludimgerest and penalties, was recorded in otherliliegsi in the Consolidated Balance Sheet ir
amount of $40.8 million and $70.3 million at Septem30, 2013 and 201 Zespectively, of which the entire amount woulduee our effectiv
tax rate if recognized. Accrued interest and pémlelated to unrecognized tax benefits were $aflllibn and $20.1 million aBeptember 3
2013 and 2012 respectively. We recognize interest and penatidsted to unrecognized tax benefits in the incdee provision. If th
unrecognized tax benefits were recognized, themmeact on our income tax provision, including tleeagnition of interest and penalties
offsetting tax assets, would be $27.1 million asSafptember 30, 2013 We believe it is reasonably possible that the wm®f gros
unrecognized tax benefits could be reduced by upl&é4 millionin the next 12 months as a result of the resolutiotax matters in variol
global jurisdictions and the lapses of statutelinaifations.
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We recorded a valuation allowance for a portionoof deferred tax assets related to net operating, ltax credit, and capital I
carryforwards (Carryforwards) and certain tempordifferences in the amount of $28.3 million at Sepber 30, 2013 and $31.8 milli@t
September 30, 2012ased on the projected profitability of the entitythe respective tax jurisdiction. The valuatidiowance is based on
evaluation of the uncertainty that the Carryforvgamhd certain temporary differences will be reaiz®ur income would increase if
determine we will be able to use more Carryforwasdsertain temporary differences than currentlpested. Conversely, our income wc
decrease if we determine we are unable to realizeleferred tax assets in the future.

Our consolidated financial statements provide & Itability on undistributed earnings of our subiaries that will be repatriated to
U.S. As of September 30, 2013, we have not pravids. deferred taxes for $2,427.0 milliohsuch earnings, since these earnings have
and under current plans will continue to be, peremély reinvested outside the U.S.

At the end of each interim reporting period, weneate a base effective tax rate that we expecthierfull fiscal year based on our m
recent forecast of pretax income, permanent boadktax differences and global tax planning strategi®e use this base rate to provide
income taxes on a year-tlate basis, excluding the effect of significant sual or extraordinary items and items that are ntepgonet of the
related tax effects. We record the tax effect ghsicant unusual or extraordinary items and iteéhet are reported net of their tax effects ir
period in which they occur.

More information regarding income taxes is contdimeNote 15 in the Financial Statements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 1 in the Financial Statements regardicgnteaccounting pronouncements.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

We are exposed to market risk during the normatsmof business from changes in foreign currenchamnge rates and interest re
We manage exposure to these risks through a cotidrinaf normal operating and financing activitiesdaderivative financial instruments
the form of foreign currency forward exchange cacis. We sometimes use interest rate swap conti@cteinage the balance of fixed
floating rate debt.

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency risks that dris® normal business operations. These risks decthe translation of local currer
balances of foreign subsidiaries, transaction gaimd losses associated with intercompany loans feithign subsidiaries and transacti
denominated in currencies other than a locasidnhctional currency. Our objective is to minimiaar exposure to these risks throug
combination of normal operating activities and thse of foreign currency forward exchange contraCtmtracts are usually denominate:
currencies of major industrial countries. The faatue of our foreign currency forward exchange it is an asset of $10.6 milliamd ¢
liability of $11.7 million at September 30, 2013We enter into these contracts with major finahaistitutions that we believe to
creditworthy.

We do not enter into derivative financial instrurtsefor speculative purposes. In 2013 and 20ft#® relative strengthening of the LU
dollar against foreign currencies had an unfaverafipact on our sales and results of operationdléAfliture changes in foreign currer
exchange rates are difficult to predict, our saled profitability may be adversely affected if #HeS. dollar further strengthens relative2@1 :
levels.

Certain of our locations have assets and liakslilenominated in currencies other than their foneti currencies. We enter into fore
currency forward exchange contracts to offset thesaction gains or losses associated with sortteesé assets and liabilities. For such a
and liabilities without offsetting foreign currenégrward exchange contracts, a 10 percent advédraege in the underlying foreign curre
exchange rates would reduce our pre-tax incomeppyoaimately $15 million.

We record all derivatives on the balance sheaiat/flue regardless of the purpose for holdingrth€he use of these contracts allow
to manage transactional exposure to exchange lattudtions as the gains or losses incurred onfdheign currency forward exchar
contracts will offset, in whole or in part, lossesgains on the underlying foreign currency expesierivatives that are not designate
hedges for accounting purposes are adjusted todhie through earnings. For derivatives that aegles, depending on the nature of the h
changes in fair value are either offset by charigebe fair value of the hedged assets, liabilibesirm commitments through earnings
recognized in other comprehensive loss until thdgkd item is recognized in earnings. We recogrieeirieffective portion of a derivative’
change in fair value in earnings immediately. Tineffective portion was not significant in 2013 a@fl2. A hypothetical 10 percent adve
change in underlying foreign currency exchangesratgsociated with these contracts would not beifgignt to our financial condition
results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

In addition to existing cash balances and cashigedvby normal operating activities, we use a caratdon of short-term and lontgrn
debt to finance operations. We are exposed todsteate risk on certain of these debt obligations.

Our shortterm debt obligations relate to commercial paperdwings and bank borrowings. Commercial paperdwimgs outstanding
September 30, 2013 were $179.0 million with renr@jmnaturities of five days at a weighted averagera@st rate of 0.17 percen€ommercie
paper borrowings at September 30, 2012 were $16#l@n with remaining maturities of six days ateeighted average interest rate(27
percent . As these obligations mature, we issuad, anticipate continuing to issue, additional sterin commercial paper obligations
refinance all or part of these borrowings. Charigamarket interest rates on commercial paper bdrgsvaffect our results of operations
2013 and 2012 a 100 basis point increase in average marketesiteates would have increased our interest expeyn$2.1 million and $2
million, respectively.

We had outstanding fixed rate long-term debt oliliges with a carrying value of $905.1 million atpsember 30, 2013 an$i905.(
million at September 30, 2012 . The fair valueto$ tdebt was $1,072.2 million at September 30, 2818 $1,187.9 million abeptember 3
2012 . The potential reduction in fair value ontstiged+ate debt obligations from a hypothetical 10 perésorease in market interest re
would not be material to the overall fair valuetb& debt. We currently have no plans to repurclaseoutstanding fixedate instrumen
before their maturity and, therefore, fluctuatiomsnarket interest rates would not have an effecbor results of operations or shareowner
equity.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(in millions)
September 30,
2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,200.¢ $ 903.¢
Short-term investments 372.1 350.(
Receivables 1,186.: 1,187.:
Inventories 615.4 619.(
Deferred income taxes 189.t 208.€
Other current assets 115.2 118.7
Total current assets 3,679.¢ 3,387.t
Property, net 616.( 587.1
Goodwill 1,023.( 948.¢
Other intangible assets, net 212.¢ 209.t
Deferred income taxes 1472 351.1
Other assets 165.¢ 152.t
Total $ 5844.¢ $ 5,636.
LIABILITIES AND SHAREOWNERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt $ 179.C % 157.C
Accounts payable 546.7 547.¢
Compensation and benefits 236.¢ 246.¢
Advance payments from customers and deferred revenu 210.¢ 204.1
Customer returns, rebates and incentives 175.1 168.7
Other current liabilities 196.2 207.¢
Total current liabilities 1,544 1,531.¢
Long-term debt 905.1 905.(
Retirement benefits 595.¢ 1,105.¢
Other liabilities 213.¢ 242.¢
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 16)
Shareowners’ equity:
Common stock (shares issued: 181.4) 181.¢ 181.¢
Additional paid-in capital 1,456.( 1,416.°
Retained earnings 4,333.¢ 3,858.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (817.7) (1,225.9)
Common stock in treasury, at cost (shares held3244.5; 2012, 41.6) (2,567.6) (2,379.9
Total shareowners’ equity 2,585.! 1,851.
Total $ 5844.¢ $ 5,636.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Sales
Products and solutions
Services

Cost of sales
Products and solutions
Services

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Other income (expense) (Note 14)
Interest expense
Income from continuing operations before incomesax
Income tax provision (Note 15)
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations (Note 13)
Net income
Basic earnings per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Diluted earnings per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Weighted average outstanding shares:
Basic

Diluted

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
$ 5,706, 5656.. $  5,430.¢
645.¢ 603.: 569.¢€

6,351.¢ 6,259./ 6,000.¢
(3,326.9) (3,315.9) (3,224.0)
(451.7) (420.9) (386.0)
(3,778.) (3,736.) (3,610.0)
2,573.¢ 2,522, 2,390.¢
(1,537.) (1,491.) (1,461.7)

5.7 (5.0 (2.2)

(60.9) (60.1) (59.5)

980.¢ 965.¢ 867.¢

(224.6) (228.9) (170.5)

756.: 737.( 697.1

— — 0.7

$ 756.: 737.0 $ 697.¢
$ 5.42 520 $ 4.8¢
$ 5.42 520 $ 4.8¢
$ 5.3€ 51: $ 4.7¢
— — 0.01

$ 5.3€ 51 $ 4.8¢
139. 141.F 142.7

140.¢ 143. 145.C

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
Year Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2011

Net income $ 756.2 % 737.C % 697.¢
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Pension and other postretirement benefit plan &dgsts (net of tax expense (benefit) ¢

$232.1, ($103.1), and ($93.2)) 402.2 (192.9 (178.%)

Currency translation adjustments 8.2 (35.0 23.4

Net change in unrealized gains and losses on tasthEdges (net of tax (benefit) expe!

of ($1.8), ($3.1), and $2.3) (2.9 (5.0 3.9

Net change in unrealized gains and losses on imeggtsecurities, net of tax — — 0.3
Other comprehensive income (loss) 407.¢ (232.9) (151.7)
Comprehensive income $ 1,163.¢ $ 504.¢ $ 546.1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)

Continuing operations:

Operating activities:

Net income

Income from discontinued operations

Income from continuing operations

Adjustments to arrive at cash provided by operadictiyities:
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Share-based compensation expense
Retirement benefit expense
Pension trust contributions
Deferred income taxes
Net loss (gain) on disposition of property and stweents
Income tax benefit from the exercise of stock aptio
Excess income tax benefit from share-based compensa

Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding effe€acquisitions, divestitures, and foreign

currency adjustments:

Receivables

Inventories

Accounts payable

Compensation and benefits

Income taxes

Other assets and liabilities

Cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Purchases of short-term investments
Proceeds from maturities of short-term investments
Proceeds from sale of property and investments
Other investing activities

Cash used for investing activities
Financing activities:
Net issuance of short-term debt
Cash dividends
Purchases of treasury stock (See Note 10 for nsh-{t@ancing activities)
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Excess income tax benefit from share-based compensa
Other financing activities

Cash used for financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Cash provided by (used for) continuing operations
Discontinued operations:

Cash used for discontinued operating activities

Cash used for discontinued operations
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
756.5 $ 737.C $ 697.¢
— — (0.7)
756. 737.( 697.1
113.€ 103.¢ 96.
31.4 34.7 34.6
41.1 43 F 39.
170. 105.¢ 100.¢
(41.9) (341.) (184.7)
(6.5) 82.2 46.F
0. 1.0 0.9)
2.1 0.7 3.1
(31.9) (18.5) (38.1)
(12.9) (135.9) (207.9)
0.8 21.4 (41.9)
3.2 90.2 15.C
(8.5) (67.0) 16.
33.¢ 35.7 49.2
(38.2) 24.¢ 17.C
1,014.¢ 718.7 643.7
(146.2) (139.6) (120.7)
(84.5) (16.2) (45.9)
(372.) (487.5) —
350.( 137.F —
0. 2.6 5.1
(4.1) — —
(256.6) (503.9) (160.9)
22.C 157. —
(276.9) (247.2) (211.0)
(402.7) (259.9) (298.7)
172.: 49.C 174.(
31.¢ 18. 38.1
(1.8) (0.4) 0.9
(454.6) (282.9) (297.9
0.€ (16.5) (5.6)
304.( (84.0) 179.1
(7.0) (1.0 (3.6)
(7.0) (1.0) (3.6)
297.( (85.0) 175.F



Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 903.¢ 988.¢ 813.¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,200.¢ $ 903.¢ $ 988.¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Year Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2011
Common stock (no shares issued during years) $ 181« $ 181« % 181.¢
Additional paid-in capital
Beginning balance 1,416." 1,381.. 1,344
Income tax benefits from share-based compensation 34.C 19.2 41.2
Share-based compensation expense 40.2 427 38.7
Shares delivered under incentive plans (34.9 (26.€) 42.7)
Ending balance 1,456.( 1,416. 1,381.
Retained earnings
Beginning balance 3,858.¢ 3,382.¢ 2,912
Net income 756.% 737.( 697.¢
Cash dividends (2013, $1.98 per share; 2012, $Ilp@dShare; 2011, $1.475 per share) (276.9) (247.9) (211.0
Shares delivered under incentive plans (5.4) (13.¢) (16.9)
Ending balance 4,333.¢ 3,858.¢ 3,382.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Beginning balance (1,225.9) (992.9 (841.7)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 407.¢ (232.9) (151.%)
Ending balance (817.7) (1,225.) (992.9
Treasury stock
Beginning balance (2,379.9 (2,204.7) (2,136.9)
Purchases (401.5) (265.9) (299.9)
Shares delivered under incentive plans 213.¢ 90.1 230.¢
Ending balance (2,567.) (2,379.9 (2,204.°)
Total shareowners’ equity $ 2585.! $ 1,851.° $ 1,748.(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policies

Rockwell Automation, Inc. (the Company or Rockwaiitomation) is a leading global provider of indisttautomation power, conti
and information solutions that help manufacturetieve a competitive advantage for their businesses

Basis of Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements are preparegcordance with accounting principles generatlgepted in the United States (U
GAAP).

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiaietade the accounts of the Company and its wholiyred and controlled major
owned subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts anddcdionis have been eliminated in consolidation. $twments in affiliates over which we
not have control but exercise significant influemce accounted for using the equity method of actiog. These affiliated companies are
material individually or in the aggregate to ourdincial position, results of operations or castv§lo

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmémtaccordance with U.S. GAAP requires us to medtenates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liasliit the date of the consolidated financial statésnand revenues and expenses durin
periods reported. Actual results could differ frohose estimates. We use estimates in accountingfoong other items, customer retu
rebates and incentives; allowance for doubtful antsy excess and obsolete inventory; shmased compensation; acquisitions; pro
warranty obligations; retirement benefits; litigatj claims and contingencies, including environrakmatters, conditional asset retiren
obligations and contractual indemnifications; andoime taxes. We account for changes to estimatsassumptions prospectively wi
warranted by factually based experience.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when it is realized or reblz@and earned. Product and solution sales coosistdustrial automation powt
control and information; hardware and software piois; and custom-engineered systems. Service gatésdle multivendor custom
technical support and repair, asset managementoptithization consulting and training. All servicalas recorded in the Consolide
Statement of Operations are associated with outr@dProducts & Solutions segment.

For approximately 85 percerdf our consolidated sales, we record sales wheof @ahe following have occurred: an agreement alé
exists; pricing is fixed or determinable; collectiis reasonably assured; and product has beeredsdivand acceptance has occurred, as ir
required according to contract terms, or serviagtbeen rendered. Within this category, we witiraes enter into arrangements that inv
the delivery of multiple products and/or the pemiance of services, such as installation and conioniisg). The timing of delivery, thou
varied based upon the nature of the undeliveredpooent, is generally shotérm in nature. For these arrangements, revenatosated t
each deliverable based on that element's relagiVi@g price, provided the delivered element hasi@do customers on a standalone basis
if the arrangement includes a general right of rretulelivery or performance of the undelivered igei® probable and substantially in
control. Relative selling price is obtained fromuszes such as vendspecific objective evidence (VSOE), which is basedthe separa
selling price for that or a similar item, or fromird-party evidence such as how competitors have psaedar items. If such evidence is
available, we use our best estimate of the sefiiie, which includes various internal factors saslour pricing strategy and market factors.

We recognize substantially all of the remaindeoof sales as construction-type contracts usingeite percentage-abmpletion o
completed contract method of accounting. We resalés relating to these contracts using the peagerdfeompletion method when \
determine that progress toward completion is reasigrand reliably estimable; we use the completadract method for all others. Under
percentage-otompletion method, we recognize sales and gro$g peowork is performed using the relationshipviestn actual costs incurt
and total estimated costs at completion. Undep#reentage-oéompletion method, we adjust sales and gross dafitevisions of estimat:
total contract costs or revenue in the period tienge is identified. We record estimated lossesonitracts when they are identified.
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1. Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policieq€ontinued)

We use contracts and customer purchase orderstéondee the existence of an agreement of sale. ¥éeshipping documents ¢
customer acceptance, when applicable, to verifweisl. We assess whether the fee is fixed or deteinle based on the payment te
associated with the transaction and whether thessplice is subject to refund or adjustment. Weesssscollectibility based on t
creditworthiness of the customer as determinedrégicevaluations and analysis, as well as theoowst’'s payment history.

Shipping and handling costs billed to customersrakided in sales and the related costs are iedul cost of sales in the Consolids
Statement of Operations.

Returns, Rebates and Incentives

Our primary incentive program provides distributaigh cash rebates or account credits based oredgn@mounts that vary depending
the customer to whom our distributor ultimatelylsé¢he product. We also offer various other inoemfirograms that provide distributors
direct sale customers with cash rebates, accoeditsror additional products and services basegheeting specified program criteria. Cer
distributors are offered a right to return prodscihject to contractual limitations.

We record accruals for customer returns, rebatesirgentives at the time of sale based primarilyhistorical experience. Retur
rebates and incentives are recognized as a reducficales if distributed in cash or customer aotaredits. Rebates and incentives
recognized in cost of sales for additional prodacts services to be provided. Accruals are repaseal current liability in our balance shee
where a right of setoff exists, as a reductionaufoaints receivable.

Taxes on Revenue Producing Transactions

Taxes assessed by governmental authorities on ueveroducing transactions, including sales, vall@éed, excise and use taxes,
recorded on a net basis (excluded from revenue).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include time depositsaritficates of deposit with original maturitiebthree months or less at the time
purchase.

Short-term Investments

Shortterm investments include time deposits and ceatifis of deposit with original maturities of morarihthree months but no m
than one year at the time of purchase. These imesdt are stated at cost, which approximates &irev

Receivables

We record allowances for doubtful accounts basedustomerspecific analysis and general matters such asmuassessments of p
due balances and economic conditions. Receivabéestated net of allowances for doubtful accouft$22.5 million atSeptember 30, 20
and $28.0 million at September 30, 201t addition, receivables are stated net of aowalhce for certain customer returns, rebates
incentives of $8.9 million at September 30, 2018 7.9 million at September 30, 2012 .

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or efadsing the first-in, firsbut (FIFO) or average cost methods. Market is daterd o1
the basis of estimated realizable values.

Property

Property, including internal use software, is statecost. We calculate depreciation of propertpgithe straight-line method over 546
yearsfor buildings and improvements, 3 to 10 years fachinery and equipment and 3 to 8 years for comphwedware and internalse
software. We capitalize significant renewals andagrtements and write off replaced units. We expemsi@tenance and repairs, as we
renewals of minor amounts.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets generally ltefsam business acquisitions. We account for besnacquisitions by allocating
purchase price to tangible and intangible assajsida and liabilities assumed at their fair valube excess of the purchase price ove
allocated amount is recorded as goodwill.
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1. Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policieq€ontinued)

We review goodwill and other intangible assets witlefinite useful lives for impairment annually orore frequently if events
circumstances indicate impairment may be presemy.excess in carrying value over the estimatedvidine is charged to results of operati
We perform an annual impairment test during the@sdauarter of our fiscal year.

We amortize certain customer relationships on amelecated basis over the period of which we exfeetintangible asset to genel
future cash flows. We amortize all other intangi$sets with finite useful lives on a straigihe basis over their estimated useful lives. Uk
lives assigned range from 3 to 10 years for tradksn® to 20 years for customer relationships, &#gears for technology and 530 year
for other intangible assets.

Intangible assets also include costs of softwaveldped by our software business to be sold, leasetherwise marketed. Amortizat
of developed computer software products is caledlain a product-bproduct basis as the greater of (a) the unamortipstiat the beginni
of the year times the ratio of the current yearsgrevenue for a product to the total of the curaexd anticipated future gross revenue for
product, (b) the straight-line amortization ovee ttemaining estimated economic life of the produrcic) onefourth of the total deferre
software cost for the project.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the recoverability of the recorded amaf longlived assets whenever events or changes in ciraunoss indicate that t
recorded amount of an asset may not be fully re@tle. Impairment is assessed when the undiscowxeécted future cash flows deri
from an asset are less than its carrying amounteldetermine that an asset is impaired, we medbkaranpairment to be recognized as
amount by which the recorded amount of the assmagis its fair value. We report assets to be désposat the lower of the recorded amc
or fair value less cost to sell. We determine ¥aiue using a discounted future cash flow analysis.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative financial instruments in the fahforeign currency forward exchange contractsmmage foreign currency risks. '
use foreign currency forward exchange contractdf&et changes in the amount of future cash flogepaiated with certain thirdarty sale ar
intercompany transactions expected to occur withehnnext two years (cash flow hedges) and chanmgd#sei fair value of certain assets
liabilities resulting from intercompany loans artier transactions with third parties denominatetbieign currencies. Our accounting met
for derivative financial instruments is based uplo@ designation of such instruments as hedges uh@&rGAAP. It is our policy to exect
such instruments with global financial institutiotigat we believe to be creditworthy and not to e derivative financial instruments
speculative purposes. Foreign currency forward amxgh contracts are usually denominated in currsrfienajor industrial countries.

Foreign Currency Translation

We translate assets and liabilities of subsidiaojgsrating outside of the United States with a fiemal currency other than the U
dollar into U.S. dollars using exchange rates ateid of the respective period. We translate satets and expenses at average exchangt
effective during the respective period. We reporeign currency translation adjustments as a compioof other comprehensive loss. Curre
transaction gains and losses are included in thdtseof operations in the period incurred.

Research and Development Expenses

We expense research and development (R&D) costscased; these costs were $260.7 million in 208247.6 million in 2012anc
$243.9 million in 2011 We include R&D expenses in cost of sales in tlemdlidated Statement of Operations. While not nedtéo
previously issued financial statements, we corgectrtain amounts previously included in our cliéssiion of R&D costs for the years enc
September 30, 2012 and 2011. As a result, our qusly reported R&D costs for the years ended SemterB0, 2012 and 2011 decrease
$11.5 million and $10.5 million , respectively.

Income Taxes

We account for uncertain tax positions by deterngniwhether it is more likely than not that a taxsiion will be sustained upi
examination based on the technical merits of thsitipn. For tax positions that meet the more-likilgnnot recognition threshold, \
determine the amount of benefit to recognize infthancial statements based on our assertion ofrtbst likely outcome resulting from
examination, including the resolution of any retbtg@peals or litigation processes.
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1. Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policieq€ontinued)

Earnings Per Share

We present basic and diluted earnings per shar&)(&Rounts. Basic EPS is calculated by dividingliegs available to comm:
shareowners, which is income excluding the allocatio participating securities, by the weighted rage number of common she
outstanding during the year, excluding unvestettiogsd stock. Diluted EPS amounts are based upenveighted average number of comi
and common equivalent shares outstanding duringehe We use the treasury stock method to caktitet effect of outstanding sharase:
compensation awards, which requires us to compté émployee proceeds as the sum of (a) the antber@mployee must pay upon exer
of the award, (b) the amount of unearned slhaged compensation costs attributed to future esand (c) the amount of tax benefits, if
that would be credited to additional paid-in capaasuming exercise of the award. Shbased compensation awards for which the
employee proceeds of the award exceed the averageetprice of the same award over the period lawvantidilutive effect on EPS, &
accordingly, we exclude them from the calculatintidilutive share-based compensation awards feryéars ended September 30, 2013 (
million shares), 2012 ( 2.3 million shares) and 2Q2.1 millionshares) were excluded from the diluted EPS calionlat).S. GAAP require
unvested share-based payment awards that contadorfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equimals, whether paid or unpaid, to
treated as participating securities and includethecomputation of earnings per share pursuatheaawo<lass method. Our participati
securities are composed of unvested restricted stod non-employee director restricted stock units.

The following table reconciles basic and dilutedsEfnounts (in millions, except per share amounts):

2013 2012 2011

Income from continuing operations $ 756.: % 737.C $ 697.1
Less: Allocation to participating securities (1.7 (1.4 (1.9
Income from continuing operations available to camnrshareowners $ 7552 % 7356 $ 695.7
Income from discontinued operations $ — % — $ 0.7
Less: Allocation to participating securities — — —
Income from discontinued operations available tmcmn shareowners $ —  $ — % 0.7
Net income $ 756.2 $ 737.C $ 697.¢
Less: Allocation to participating securities (1.3 (1.9 (2.4)
Net income available to common shareowners $ 755.2 % 735.6 $ 696.<
Basic weighted average outstanding shares 139.2 141t 142.5
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 1kt 1.€ 2.1

Performance shares 0.2 & 0.4
Diluted weighted average outstanding shares 140.¢ 143.¢ 145.%
Basic earnings per share:
Continuing operations $ 54: $ 52C $ 4.8¢
Discontinued operations — — —
Net Income $ 54: $ 52C $ 4.8¢
Diluted earnings per share:
Continuing operations $ 53t % 51 % 4.7¢
Discontinued operations — — 0.01
Net Income $ 53¢ $ 5.1 % 4.8(
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1. Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policieq€ontinued)

Share-Based Compensation

We recognize share-based compensation expensguity awards on a straiglitie basis over the service period of the awarcthas
the fair value of the award as of the grant date.

Product and Workers’ Compensation Liabilities

We record accruals for product and worke@mpensation claims in the period in which theymabable and reasonably estimable.
principal self-insurance programs include prodimiility and workers’ compensation where we seffiure up to a specified dollar amoi
Claims exceeding this amount up to specified linaits covered by insurance policies purchased fromneercial insurers. We estimate
liability for the majority of the self-insured ctas using our claims experience for the periodsdealued.

Environmental Matters

We record liabilities for environmental mattersthre period in which our responsibility is probafaled the costs can be reason
estimated. We make changes to the liabilities e ghriods in which the estimated costs of rememfiathange. At thirgharty environment
sites where more than one potentially responsiatg/has been identified, we record a liability for estimated allocable share of costs re
to our involvement with the site, as well as anneated allocable share of costs related to theli@ment of insolvent or unidentified parties
we determine that recovery from insurers or othgdtparties is probable and a right of setoff &xigve record the liability net of the estime
recovery. If we determine that recovery from inssirer other third parties is probable, but a righsetoff does not exist, we record a liab
for the total estimated costs of remediation anelcaivable for the estimated recovery. At environtaksites where we are the only respon:
party, we record a liability for the total estimateosts of remediation. Ongoing operating and reasmce expenditures included in
environmental remediation obligations are discodnte present value over the probable future rentiediaperiod. Our remainir
environmental remediation obligations are undistedmiue to subjectivity of timing and/or amounfutiure cash payments.

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

We record liabilities for costs related to legaligétions associated with the retirement of a talegilonglived asset that results from
acquisition, construction, development or the ndroperation of the londjved asset. The obligation to perform the asstterment activity i
not conditional even though the timing or method/ra conditional.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsam8io(FASB) issued new guidance on financial statgnpresentation of ¢
unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating ¢ass/forward, a similar tax loss, or a tax creditrgforward exists. The guidance requ
entities to present an unrecognized tax benefithen financial statements as a reduction to a dedetax asset for a net operating
carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax creditrgforward. To the extent a net operating lossyfarward, a similar tax loss, or a tax cr
carryforward is not available at the reporting datsettle any additional income taxes that woeklit from the disallowance of a tax posi
or the tax law does not require to use, and thigyeshdes not intend to use, the deferred tax desetuch purpose, the unrecognized tax be
should be presented in the financial statementslebility and should not be combined with theatedd tax asset. This guidance is effe
for us prospectively for reporting periods begimn@ctober 1, 2014. The adoption of this guidanastsexpected to have a material impac
our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2013, the FASB issued new guidance reltidtie release of cumulative translation adjustmelated to an entity's investm
in a foreign entity. The guidance clarifies thag tiuidance in Subtopic 830-30, Foreign CurrencytdiatTranslation of Financial Statemel
applies to the release of cumulative translatignsithent into net income when a reporting entithesi sells a part or all of its investment
foreign entity or ceases to have a controllingriitial interest in a subsidiary or group of assied$ tonstitute a business within a foreign er
This guidance is effective for us prospectively figporting periods beginning October 1, 2014. Tdeption of this guidance is not expecte
have a material impact on our consolidated findrste&gements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued new accountiniglagice, which requires entities to present, eitbrerthe face of the financ
statements or in the notes, significant amountmssified out of accumulated other comprehensigerime and the respective line items of
income affected by the reclassification, but ofilihe amount reclassified is required to be rediaskto net income in its entirety in the se
reporting period. For amounts that are not requicebe reclassified in their entirety to net incoragtities are required to crossference t
other disclosures that provide additional detaitltwse amounts. This guidance is effective fornaspectively for reporting periods beginn
October 1, 2013. Other than enhanced disclosuresadoption of this guidance is not expected teetmwnaterial impact on our consolid:
financial statements.
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2. Acquisitions

In October 2012, we acquired certain assets ofrtbdium voltage drives business of Harbin Jiuzhactk Co., Ltd. (Harbin) located
Harbin, China. The acquisition strengthened ousgmee in the Asi&acific motor control market by adding significaatpabilities in desig
engineering and manufacturing of medium voltageedproducts. The purchase price of the acquisitiais $84.8 million. We recorde
goodwill of $71.1 millionattributable to the assembled workforce with thehtécal expertise in designing, engineering, anchufecturing
medium voltage drive products and served markeamsipn. We assigned the full amount of goodwilbte Control Products & Solutio
segment. None of the goodwill recorded is expeftiidie deductible for tax purposes.

In March 2012, we acquired certain assets and asbwertain liabilities of SoftSwitching Technologi€orporation (SoftSwitching),
industrial power quality detection and protectioystems provider in the United States. We recordedgoodwill associated with tf
acquisition.

In April 2011, we acquired certain assets and assucertain liabilities of Hiprom (Pty) Ltd and @éfiliates (Hiprom), a process cont
and automation systems integrator for the mining) mmeral processing industry in South Africa. lmywR011, we purchased a majority s
in the equity of Lektronix Limited and its affiliat(Lektronix), an independent industrial automatiepairs and service provider in Europe
Asia. We purchased the remaining minority shares$f0.9 millionin December 2011. The aggregate purchase priceeoHiprom an
Lektronix acquisitions was $58.8 million . We reded goodwill of $34.8 milliorattributable to intangible assets that do not ntleefcriteri
for separate recognition, including an assembledkfsoce with industrywide technical expertise and customer service chjped We
assigned the full amount of goodwill for Hiprom alnektronix to our Control Products & Solutions segrh None of the goodwill recordec
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The fair values and weighted average useful litias lhave been assigned to the acquired identifiatdagible assets of these acquisit
are:

2013 2012 2011
Witd. Avg. Wtd. Avg. Witd. Avg.
Useful Useful Useful

(in millions, except useful lives) Fair Value Life Fair Value Life Fair Value Life
Customer relationships $ 71 10year $ — — $ 14: 14 year:
Technology 3.C 5 year: 3.2 10 year 1kt 10 year:
Trademarks — — — — 1.3 2 years
Other intangible assets 1.C 5 year: — — 0.€ 4 years

The results of operations of the acquired busireebs@e been included in our Consolidated Statemwie@perations since the dates
acquisition. Pro forma financial information andobahtion of the purchase price are not presentetthe®ffects of these acquisitions are
material to our results of operations or finanpasition.

3. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfa years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 wemglljons):

Control
Architecture & Products &
Software Solutions Total
Balance as of September 30, 2011 $ 386.1 $ 565.¢ $ 952.¢
Translation and other 1.C (4.9 (3.9
Balance as of September 30, 2012 387. 561.1 948.¢
Acquisition of businesses — 71.1 71.1
Translation 0.1 3.C 3.1
Balance as of September 30, 2013 $ 3876 § 6352 $ 1,023.(

49




Table of Contents
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

3. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets - (Continud)

Other intangible assets consist of (in millions):

September 30, 2013

Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net
Amortized intangible assets:
Computer software products $ 146.¢ $ 731 % 73.¢
Customer relationships 77.4 37.1 40.3
Technology 66.1 30.€ 35.2
Trademarks 26.4 10.7 15.%
Other 12.1 8.C 4.1
Total amortized intangible assets 328.¢ 159.¢ 169.1
Intangible assets not subject to amortization 431 — 437
Total $ 372.¢ % 159.¢ $ 212.¢

September 30, 2012

Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net
Amortized intangible assets:
Computer software products $ 123« % 612 % 62.2
Customer relationships 72.€ 30.7 41.¢
Technology 88.¢ 50.¢ 38.C
Trademarks 32.1 12.¢ 19.2
Other 21.¢ 16.€ 4.t
Total amortized intangible assets 338.¢ 172.¢ 165.¢
Intangible assets not subject to amortization 431 — 437
Total $ 382.1 % 172¢ $ 209.t

Computer software products represent costs of ctengoftware to be sold, leased or otherwise mackeComputer software produ
amortization expense was $13.1 million in 20135.8Imillion in 2012 and $16.8 million in 2011 .

The Allen-Bradley? trademark has an indefinite life, and therefonedssubject to amortization.

Estimated amortization expense is $31.5 millio20i4 , $34.6 million in 2015, $31.7 million in &, $28.4 million in 2017 an®17.]
million in 2018 .

We performed the annual evaluation of our goodarilil indefinite life intangible assets for impairmdaring the second quarter 201:
and concluded these assets are not impaired.

4. Inventories

Inventories consist of (in millions):

September 30,
2013 2012
Finished goods $ 248.. % 262.t
Work in process 167.2 149.t
Raw materials, parts and supplies 199.¢ 207.(
Inventories $ 615.. $ 619.C
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5. Property, net

Property consists of (in millions):

September 30,
2013 2012

Land $ 37 ¢ 3.7
Buildings and improvements 304.t 292t
Machinery and equipment 1,041t 1,022.:
Internal-use software 388.¢ 414.¢
Construction in progress 90.2 65.7

Total 1,828.¢ 1,798.¢
Less accumulated depreciation (1,212.9) (1,211.9
Property, net $ 616.( $ 587.1
6. Long-term and Short-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of (in millions):
September 30,
2013 2012

5.65% notes, payable in 2017 $ 250.C $ 250.(
6.70% debentures, payable in 2028 250.( 250.(
6.25% debentures, payable in 2037 250.( 250.(
5.20% debentures, payable in 2098 200.( 200.(
Unamortized discount and other (44.9 (45.0
Long-term debt $ 905.1 $ 905.(

On May 22, 2013, we replaced our former four-y&#&80.0 million unsecured revolving credit facildéypiring in March 201%vith a nev
five-year $750.0 million unsecured revolving crefditility expiring in May 2018 We can increase the aggregate amount of thist desxlity
by up to $250.0 million subject to the consent of the banks in the cfeditity. We did not incur early termination petie$ in connection wi
the termination of the former credit facility. Wave not borrowed against these credit facilitiesrduthe years ended September 30, 28413
2012 . Borrowings under these credit facilitiesrbiaeterest based on shddgrm money market rates in effect during the petfaborrowing
are outstanding. The terms of these credit fagdittontain covenants under which we would be iauwdeff our debt-to-totatapital ratio was 1
exceed 60 percent . Separate short-term unsecrgdd facilities of approximately $121.6 million 8eptember 30, 2013 were available to nol
U.S. subsidiaries. Borrowings under our non-U.8ditrfacilities during fiscal 2013 and 20%&re not significant. We were in compliance \
all covenants under our credit facilities during trears ended September 30, 2013 and 20tzre were no significant commitment fee
compensating balance requirements under any dfredit facilities.

Our short-term debt obligations primarily relatecmmmercial paper borrowings. Commercial paperdwinigs outstanding wei®179.(
million at September 30, 2013 and $157.0 millionSaptember 30, 2012 . At September 30, 20%3 weighted average interest rate
maturity period of the commercial paper outstandimge 0.17 percent and five days , respectivel\séptember 30, 201Be weighted avera
interest rate and maturity period of the commeng#der outstanding were 0.27 percent and six deggpectively.

Interest payments were $59.7 million during 20$39.0 million during 2012 and $60.1 million durigg11 .
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7. Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities consist of (in millions):

September 30,
2013 2012
Unrealized losses on foreign exchange contractse(Bp $ 101 $ 21.t
Product warranty obligations (Note 8) 36.¢ 37.¢
Taxes other than income taxes 37.1 37.1
Accrued interest 15.€ 15.€
Income taxes payable 35.¢ 14.7
Other 60.C 81.1
Other current liabilities $ 196.2  $ 207.¢

8. Product Warranty Obligations

We record a liability for product warranty obligattis at the time of sale to a customer based upmtorival warranty experience. Most
our products are covered under a warranty periatrtins for 12 months from either the date of sal@stallation. We also record a liability
specific warranty matters when they become knowh reasonably estimable. Our product warranty obtiga are included in other curr
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Changes in product warranty obligations are (ifliam):

September 30,
2013 2012
Balance at beginning of period $ 37.¢ % 38.t
Warranties recorded at time of sale 32.C 35.C
Adjustments to pre-existing warranties 0.8 (2.7
Settlements of warranty claims (33.9) (33.€)
Balance at end of period $ 36< $ 37.€
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9. Derivative Instruments and Fair Value Measuremeh

We use foreign currency forward exchange contrectsianage certain foreign currency risks. We einter these contracts to off:
changes in the amount of future cash flows asstiaith certain thirgsarty and intercompany transactions denominatédriign currencie
forecasted to occur within the next two years (déshi hedges). Certain of our locations have asaptkliabilities denominated in currenc
other than their functional currencies resultingnirintercompany loans and other transactions wittd tparties denominated in fore
currencies. We also enter into foreign currencywéod exchange contracts that we do not designateedging instruments to offset
transaction gains or losses associated with sortteeeé assets and liabilities.

We recognize all derivative financial instrumengseither assets or liabilities at fair value in ensolidated Balance Sheet. We v
our forward exchange contracts using a market amhroWwe use a valuation model based on inputs dimduforward and spot prices
currency and interest rate curves. We did not chamgr valuation techniques during fiscal 2013 , 20lor 2011. We report in othe
comprehensive income (loss) the effective portibtthe gain or loss on derivative financial instrurtsethat we designate and that qualif
cash flow hedges. We reclassify these gains oefosgo earnings in the same periods when the letlgesactions affect earnings. Gains
losses on derivative financial instruments for vhiwe do not elect hedge accounting are recogninetheé Consolidated Statement
Operations in each period, based upon the chante ifair value of the derivative financial instremnts.

It is our policy to execute such instruments withjon financial institutions that we believe to beditworthy and not to enter ir
derivative financial instruments for speculativergmses. We diversify our forward exchange contrateng counterparties to minim
exposure to any one of these entities. Most offoward exchange contracts are denominated in ecige of major industrial countries. 1
notional values of our forward exchange contractsstanding at September 30, 2013 were $888.3 milliof which $591.3 millionwere
designated as cash flow hedges. Currency pairgqglllycomprising the most significant contractional value were United States do
(USD)/euro, USD/Canadian dollar, Swiss franc/ettexican peso/USD, Singapore dollar/USD, USD/Branrilreal, and Swiss franc/Canac
dollar.

We also use foreign currency denominated debt atitigs to hedge portions of our net investment®mdnU.S. subsidiaries. Tl
currency effects of the debt obligations are réflddn accumulated other comprehensive loss wishi@reownersequity where they offs
gains and losses recorded on our net investmentsally. We had $14.4 million and $14.6 millif foreign currency denominated d
designated as net investment hedges at Septemb20B®and 2012 , respectively.

U.S. GAAP defines fair value as the price that wobé received for an asset or paid to transfealailiy (exit price) in an order
transaction between market participants in theggad or most advantageous market for the asséaloility. U.S. GAAP also classifies t
inputs used to measure fair value into the follaylierarchy:

Level 1; Quoted prices in active markets for identicadeds or liabilities.

Level 2: Quoted prices in active markets for similar assettiabilities, quoted prices for identical or slari assets or liabilities |
markets that are not active, or inputs other thasteg prices that are observable for the assédhufity.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarrring basis and their location in our ConsdéideBalance Sheet were (in millions):

Fair Value (Level 2)
September 30, September 30,

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2013 2012

Forward exchange contracts Other current assets $ 48 % 8.7
Forward exchange contracts Other assets 0.2 1.2
Forward exchange contracts Other current liabilities (8.3 (8.9
Forward exchange contracts Other liabilities (1.6) (1.5
Total $ 49 $ 0.1
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9. Derivative Instruments and Fair Value Measuremeh- (Continued)

Fair Value (Level 2)
September 30, September 30,

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2013 2012

Forward exchange contracts Other current assets $ 4¢ $ 28
Forward exchange contracts Other assets 0.7 0.1
Forward exchange contracts Other current liabilities 1.8 (13.0)
Total $ 38 $ (10.%)

The pretax amount of gains (losses) recorded in other cehemsive income (loss) related to hedges thatdvoave been recorded in
Consolidated Statement of Operations had they @en Iso designated was (in millions):

2013 2012 2011
Forward exchange contracts (cash flow hedges) $ 1€ $ @7 $ 3.0
Foreign currency denominated debt (net investmedgés) 0.2 (0.5 (0.2)
Total $ 2C $ 22 $ 2.8

Approximately $3.5 million ( $2.2 million net of xp of net unrealized losses on cash flow hedgesf&eptember 30, 201&ill be
reclassified into earnings during the next 12 mentWe expect that these net unrealized lossesbeilbffset when the hedged items
recognized in earnings.

The pretax amount of gains (losses) reclassified from amdated other comprehensive loss into the CondeliticGtatement
Operations related to derivative forward exchangetracts designated as cash flow hedges, whicletdffie related losses and gains or
hedged items during the periods presented, was:

2013 2012 2011
Sales $ 1€ $ 1.2 $ 0.3
Cost of sales 4.¢ 7.t (3.9
Total $ 6.5 $ 64 $ 3.9

The amount recognized in earnings as a resulteffaative hedges was not significant.

The pretax amount of gains (losses) from forward exchawgatracts not designated as hedging instrumentsgnézed in th
Consolidated Statement of Operations during thgepresented was:

2013 2012 2011
Other income (expense) $ 01 $ (219 $ 6.2
Cost of sales — — 04
Total $ 01 $ 219 $ 6.6
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9. Derivative Instruments and Fair Value Measuremeh- (Continued)

We also hold financial instruments consisting affgashort-term investments, short-term debt and-term debt. The fair values of ¢
cash, short-term investments and shentn debt approximate their carrying amounts asrted in our Consolidated Balance Sheet due t
short-term nature of these instruments. We baséath&alue of longterm debt upon quoted market prices for the sansnoitar issues. Tt
following table presents the carrying amounts astth®ted fair values of financial instruments naasured at fair value in the Consolid:
Balance Sheet (in millions):

September 30, 2013

Fair Value
Carrying
Amount Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,200.¢ $ 1,200.¢ $ 1,079.C $ 121¢ $ =
Short-term investments 372.7 372.7 — 372.7 —
Short-term debt 179.C 179.C — 179.C —
Long-term debt 905.1 1,072.: — 1,072.: —
September 30, 2012
Fair Value
Carrying
Amount Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalents $ 903.¢ % 903.¢ % 779.¢ % 1245 $ =
Short-term investments 350.( 350.( — 350.( —
Short-term debt 157.C 157.C — 157.C —
Long-term debt 905.( 1,187.¢ — 1,187.¢ —
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10. Shareowners’ Equity

Common Stock

At September 30, 2013, the authorized stock ofdbmpany consisted of one billion shares of comstonk, par value $1.08er share
and 25 million shares of preferred stock, withoat palue. At September 30, 2013 , 12.2 millglmares of authorized common stock v

reserved for various incentive plans.

Changes in outstanding common shares are summaszidlows (in millions):

Beginning balance
Treasury stock purchases

Shares delivered under incentive plans

Ending balance

2013 2012 2011
139.€ 141.€ 1417
(4.7) (3.7) (4.0)

3.7 1.6 4.2
138. 139.¢ 141.¢

During September 2013 , we repurchased 60,000 sledeommon stock for $6.4 million that did nottletintil October 2013 During
September 2012 , we repurchased 110,000 sharesyohen stock for $7.6 million that did not settletiu@ctober 2012 These outstandil
purchases were recorded in accounts payable agi8bpt 30, 2013 and 2012 .

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive lossolmponent for the years ended September 30, 2@T32 and 201iwere (ir

millions):

Balance as of September 30, 2010
Other comprehensive (loss) income
Balance as of September 30, 2011
Other comprehensive loss

Balance as of September 30, 2012
Other comprehensive income (loss)

Balance as of September 30, 2013

Pension and oth¢  Accumulated

postretirement currency Net unrealized Unrealized gains  Accumulated
benefit plan translation gains (losses) on on investment other

adjustments, net adjustments, net cash flow hedge: securities, net of comprehensive
of tax (Note 12) of tax net of tax tax loss, net of tax
$ (854.9 $ 121 $ 1.3 % 02 % (841.9
(178.%) 23.4 3.€ 0.3 (151.%

(1,033.6 35.5 5.2 — (992.9

(192.9 (35.0 (5.0 — (232.9

(1,226.0) 0.t 0.z — (1,225.9)

402.2 8.2 (2.9 — 407.¢

$ (823.9 % 8.8 % 2.7 $ — 3 (817.9)
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11. Share-Based Compensation

During 2013, 2012 and 2011 we recognized $41.liami| $43.5 million and $39.5 million of pre-takarebased compensation expel
respectively. The total income tax benefit relatedhare-based compensation expense was $12.6nrilliring 2013 , $13.8 millioduring
2012 and $12.9 million during 2011 . We recogniampensation expense on grants of share-based ceatjsmawards on a straigliie basi:
over the service period of each award recipient.oAsSeptember 30, 2013 , total unrecognized corngi&ms cost related to shabase:
compensation awards was $37.2 milliomet of estimated forfeitures, which we expectrécognize over a weighted average perio
approximately 1.6 years .

Our 2012 Long-Term Incentives Plan (2012 Plan) etigles us to deliver up to 6.8 milli@hares of our common stock upon exercit
stock options, or upon grant or in payment of staglpreciation rights, performance shares, perfoomamits, restricted stock units
restricted stock. Our 2003 Directors Stock Plararasnded, authorizes us to deliver up to 0.5 mibieares of our common stock upon exel
of stock options or upon grant of shares of our mam stock and restricted stock units. Shares nglgt awards under our 2012 Plan, 2
Long-Term Incentives Plan, as amended, or our 208fg-Term Incentives Plan, as amended, that terminateexpjration, forfeiture
cancellation or otherwise without the issuanceadivdry of shares will be available for further ads under the 2012 Plan. Approximat&ly
million shares under our 2012 Plan and 0.3 milktiares under our 2003 Directors Stock Plan remaiiladle for future grant or paymeni
September 30, 2013 . We use treasury stock toatedivares of our common stock under these plans2@2 Plan does not permit shénase:
compensation awards to be granted after Febru&t922.

Stock Options

We have granted nogualified and incentive stock options to purchaseanmmon stock under various incentive plans imeprequal t
the fair market value of the stock on the graneslathe exercise price for stock options granteteuthe plans may be paid in cash, alread
owned shares of common stock or a combination sl @nd such shares. Stock options expire ten wdmsthe grant date and vest rat:
over three years .

The per share weighted average fair value of stiqations granted during the years ended Septembhe2@®(B , 2012 and 201das
$25.18 , $23.49 and $21.39 , respectively. Thd totensic value of stock options exercised waS8%¥ million , $43.9 million an&157.:
million during 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectiv8lie estimated the fair value of each stock optioithe date of grant using the BlaSkhole
pricing model and the following assumptions:

2013 2012 2011
Average risk-free interest rate 0.6€% 1.0€% 1.9%%
Expected dividend yield 2.35% 2.2%% 2.31%
Expected volatility 0.4z 0.4: 0.3¢
Expected term (years) 5.3 5.2 5.5

The average riskee interest rate is based on U.S. treasury dgaaties corresponding to the expected term irce#ie of the grant da
The expected dividend yield is based on the exgemtmual dividend as a percentage of the markeevafl our common stock as of the g
date. We determined expected volatility using dailstorical volatility of our stock price over threost recent period corresponding to
expected term as of the grant date. We determhmedxpected term of the stock options using histbdata adjusted for the estimated exe
dates of unexercised options.

57




Table of Contents
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

11. Share-Based Compensation - (Continued)

A summary of stock option activity for the year eddseptember 30, 2013 is:

Aggregate
Wtd. Avg. Intrinsic Value
Wtd. Avg. Remaining of In-The-Money
Shares Exercise Contractual Options
(in thousands) Price Term (years) (in millions)
Outstanding at October 1, 2012 787 % 56.7¢
Granted 1,08 80.3¢
Exercised (3,379 51.2%
Forfeited (91) 74.07
Cancelled 2 65.1:
Outstanding at September 30, 2013 5,48¢ 64.5° 6.9 $ 232.7
Vested or expected to vest at September 30, 2013 5,311 64.1F 6.8 227.%
Exercisable at September 30, 2013 3,04¢ 55.4( 5.6 157.1

Performance Share Awards

Certain officers and key employees are also ekgibl receive shares of our common stock in payrmémerformance share awa
granted to them. Grantees of performance sharédeviéligible to receive shares of our common stdegending upon our total shareow
return, assuming reinvestment of all dividendsatre¢ to the performance of companies in the S&B B@lex over a threeyear period. Th
awards actually earned will range from zero perter00 percent of the targeted number of perfoweahares for the thregear performanc
periods and will be paid, to the extent earnedhanfiscal quarter following the end of the apptieathreeyear performance period. For
three-year performance period ending Septembe2@IB , there will be a 180 percgrayout of the target number of shares, with a mari
of 127,000 shares to be delivered in payment utigeawards in December 2013 .

A summary of performance share activity for theryaaded September 30, 2013 is as follows:

Wtd. Avg.
Performance Grant Date
Shares Share

(in thousands) Fair Value
Outstanding at October 1, 2012 297 % 76.8¢
Granted 79 98.1¢
Adjustment for performance results achievéd 98 54.81
Vested and issued (232 54.81
Forfeited 9 96.8:
Outstanding at September 30, 2013 23¢ 96.0:

'Performance shares granted assuming achievempatfofmance goals at target.

2 Adjustments were due to the number of shares vesteer the fiscal 2010 awards at the end of theetlyear performance period ended September 30, 201.
being higher than the target number of shares.

The following table summarizes information aboutfpenance shares vested during the years endeéi8bgt 30:

2013 2012 2011
Percent payout 173% 20(% 42%
Shares vested (in thousands) 232 34t 44
Total fair value of shares vested (in millions) $ 187 % 256 % 3.C
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11. Share-Based Compensation - (Continued)

The per share fair value of performance share asvgranted during the years ended September 30, 20082 and 2011 was $98.15
$101.57 and $87.00 , respectively, which we deteechusing a Monte Carlo simulation and the follgy@ssumptions:

2013 2012 2011
Average risk-free interest rate 0.32% 0.3%% 0.65%
Expected dividend yield 2.32% 2.2% 2.01%
Expected volatility 0.3€ 0.4z 0.4¢

The average risk-free interest rate is based othtlieeyear U.S. treasury security rate in effect as efgtant date. The expected divid
yield is based on the expected annual dividend psreentage of the market value of our common stsckf the grant date. The expe:
volatilities were determined using daily historizalatility for the most recent three-year periadad the grant date.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

We grant restricted stock and restricted stocksuwitcertain employees, and nemployee directors may elect to receive a portiaheir
compensation in restricted stock units. Restrigion restricted stock generally lapse over periadging from one to five yearswe valu
restricted stock and restricted stock units atctbsing market value of our common stock on the dditgrant. The weighted average grant
fair value of restricted stock and restricted staok awards granted during the years ended Segtiegth 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was $8Q.17
$73.73 and $69.00 , respectively. The total falugaf shares vested during the years ended Septe3b2013 , 2012 , and 2011 w84
million , $6.2 million , and $4.5 million , respéctly.

A summary of restricted stock and restricted staik activity for the year ended September 30, 2818 follows:

Restricted

Stock and Wwtd. Avg.

Restricted Grant Date

Stock Units Share

(in thousands) Fair Value

Outstanding at October 1, 2012 26 % 59.57
Granted 65 80.1
Vested (129 44.71
Forfeited (171) 76.1%
Outstanding at September 30, 2013 19¢ 74.67
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12. Retirement Benefits

We sponsor funded and unfunded pension plans dred pbstretirement benefit plans for our employ&ég. pension plans cover mos
our employees and provide for monthly pension payméo eligible employees after retirement. Pendienefits for salaried employe
generally are based on years of credited servideamrrage earnings. Pension benefits for hourlyl@yeps are primarily based on speci
benefit amounts and years of service. Effectivg Jul2010 we closed participation in our U.S. arah&la pension plans to employees |
after June 30, 2010. Employees hired after June2B@0 are instead eligible to participate in empmysavings plans. The Comp
contributions are based on age and years of seariderange from 3% to 7%f eligible compensation. Effective October 1, 200@ als:
closed participation in our UK pension plan to eoygles hired after September 30, 2010 and theseogegd are now eligible for a defir
contribution plan. Benefits to be provided to plaarticipants hired before July 1, 2010 or Octohe?d10, respectively, are not affectec
these changes. Our policy with respect to funding mension obligations is to fund the minimum antoreguired by applicable laws &
governmental regulations. We were not required &kencontributions to satisfy minimum funding reguaients in our U.S. pension ple
However, we made voluntary contributions of $30lion and $150.0 million to our U.S. qualified pgon plan in 2012 and 2011
respectively. Other postretirement benefits arenarily in the form of retirement medical plans tlcaiver most of our employees in the |
and Canada and provide for the payment of certaidical costs of eligible employees and dependdtes r@tirement.

The components of net periodic benefit cost arenitions):

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Service cost $ 921 $ 71.¢ $ 701 $ 22 % 22 % 3.5
Interest cost 160.2 167.¢ 163.¢ 6.2 7.2 10.2
Expected return on plan asst (226.9) (228.7) (204.5) — — —
Amortization:

Prior service credit (2.5) (2.3 (2.2 (20.7) (10.6 (10.6€)

Net transition obligation — — 0.4 — — —

Net actuarial loss 144.¢ 94.7 63.7 4.4 2.4 6.4
Settlements — 1.C — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 168.1 $ 104.7 $ 914 $ 22 % 1.2 % 9.5
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12. Retirement Benefits - (Continued)

Benefit obligation, plan assets, funded status,reidiability information is summarized as follota millions):

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 4,150.: $ 3,482t $ 172 $ 157.7
Service cost 92.1 71.¢ 2.2 2.2
Interest cost 160.2 167.¢ 6.2 7.2
Actuarial (gains) losses (401.0 597.( (14.9 24.C
Plan amendments — — — 3.0
Plan participant contributions 5.k 5.4 9.4 10.4
Benefits paid (198.0 (176.6 (24.7) (26.€)
Currency translation and other 4.2 2.4 (0.7) 0.7
Benefit obligation at end of year 3,804.¢ 4,150.: 150.2 172.t
Plan assets at beginning of year 3,213 2,572.¢ — —
Actual return on plan assets 309.( 470.¢ — —
Company contributions 41.: 341.1 15.2 16.2
Plan participant contributions 52 5.4 9.4 10.4
Benefits paid (198.0 (176.¢ (24.7) (26.€)
Currency translation and other 4.7 (0.7 — —
Plan assets at end of year 3,367.( 3,213 — —
Funded status of plans $ (437.5 $ (936.9 $ (1509 $ (172.9)
Net amount on balance sheet consists of:

Other assets $ 10.2 $ 0.8 $ —  $ =
Compensation and benefits (10.9) (10.2) (14.9) (15.9)
Retirement benefits (437.9) (927.5) (135.5) (156.%)
Net amount on balance sheet $ (437.9 $ (936.) $ (150.9 $ (172.9)

Amounts included in accumulated other comprehenkigs, net of tax, at September 30, 2013 and 204i2h have not yet be
recognized in net periodic benefit cost are a®¥adl (in millions):

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012
Prior service cost (credit) $ 14 % 0.3 % (15.0) $ (21.9)
Net actuarial loss 812.2 1,210.7 25.4 37.t
Net transition benefit (0.2) (0.7 — —
Total $ 813t $ 1,210.0 % 10.2 % 15.7

During 2013 , we recognized prior service credit$13.2 million ( $8.4 million net of tax) and thactuarial losses $149.0 millior
( $95.7 million net of tax) in pension and other postretirement petiodic benefit cost, which were included in avclated othe
comprehensive loss at September 30, 2012 . In @@ldxpect to recognize prior service credits 02®Imillion ($ 8.2 millionnet of tax), an
net actuarial losses of $ 102.8 million ($ 66.5lioml net of tax) in pension and other postretiremenipeeiodic benefit cost, which are incluc
in accumulated other comprehensive loss at Septedih@013 .

The accumulated benefit obligation for our pengitans was $3,563.2 million and $3,865.3 millionSaptember 30, 2013 and 20,12
respectively.
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12. Retirement Benefits - (Continued)

Net Periodic Benefit Cost Assumptions
Significant assumptions used in determining neiopiér benefit cost for the period ended SeptemBearg (in weighted averages):

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
U.S. Plans
Discount rate 4.1%% 5.2(% 5.6(% 3.85% 4.9(% 5.1(%
Expected return on plan assets 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.0(% — — —
Compensation increase rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% — — —
Non-U.S. Plans
Discount rate 3.37% 4.15% 4.14% 3.8(% 4.1(% 4.75%
Expected return on plan assets 5.42% 5.95% 6.07% — — —
Compensation increase rate 3.05% 3.05% 3.09% — — —

Net Benefit Obligation Assumptions

Significant assumptions used in determining theehienbligations are (in weighted averages):

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

U.S. Plans
Discount rate 5.05% 4.15% 4.6(% 3.85%
Compensation increase rate 3.7% 4.0(% — —
Healthcare cost trend rate — — 7.5(% 8.0(%
NontU.S. Plans
Discount rate 3.6%% 3.3% 4.2(% 3.8(%
Compensation increase rate 3.11% 3.02% — —
Healthcare cost trend rafe — — 6.27% 6.6£%

(1) The healthcare cost trend rate reflects the estiniaicrease in gross medical claims costs. Asdtrethe plan amendment adog
effective October 1, 2002, our effective per persstivee medical cost increase is zero percentipagy in 2005 for the majority
our postretirement benefit plans. For our othenglave assume the gross healthcare cost trendithtiecrease to 5.50% in 2017 .

(2) Decreasing to 4.50% in 2017

In determining the expected lomgrm rate of return on assets assumption, we censictual returns on plan assets over the long,
adjusted for forward-looking considerations, suchirlation, interest rates, equity performance #émel active management of the pkan’
invested assets. We also considered our currenegmected mix of plan assets in setting this assiompThis resulted in the selection of
weighted average long-term rate of return on asastumption. Our global weightederage targeted and actual asset allocatio
September 30, by asset category, are:

Allocation Target September 30,
Asset Category Range Allocations 2013 2012
Equity Securities 30% - 65% 52% 53% 52%
Debt Securities 35% — 50% 40% 40% 41%
Other 0% - 35% 8% 7% 7%
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12. Retirement Benefits - (Continued)

The investment objective for pension funds relatedur defined benefit plans is to meet the garenefit obligations, while maximizi
the longterm growth of assets without undue risk. We sttivachieve this objective by investing plan asagtisin target allocation ranges ¢
diversification within asset categories. Targeb@dltion ranges are guidelines that are adjustaddieally based on ongoing monitoring by [
fiduciaries. Investment risk is controlled by redvading to target allocations on a periodic bast @mgoing monitoring of investment mane
performance relative to the investment guidelirstaldished for each manager.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2012 , our pensiarspla not own our common stock.

In certain countries where we operate, there arlegal requirements or financial incentives prodide companies to priemd pensio
obligations. In these instances, we typically mhkeefit payments directly from cash as they becdoe rather than by creating a seps
pension fund.

The valuation methodologies used for our pensianginvestments measured at fair value are describéollag/s. There have been
changes in the methodologies used at Septemb@033,and 2012 .

Common stock— Valued at the closing price reported on the &ciharket on which the individual securities arelé
Mutual funds— Valued at the closing price reported on the &ctharket on which the individual funds are traded.

Corporate debt— Valued at either the yields currently availablecomparable securities of issuers with similar dreatings or valued unde
discounted cash flow approach that maximizes olddevinputs, such as current yields of similarrinstents, but includes adjustments
certain risks that may not be observable sucheditand liquidity risks.

Government securities- Valued at the most recent closing price repodiedhe active market on which the individual setiesiare traded.

Common collective trusts- Valued at the net asset value (NAV) as determinethé custodian of the fund. The NAV is based anftir valut
of the underlying assets owned by the fund, mitsiBabilities then divided by the number of urotgstanding.

Private equity and alternative equi— Valued at the estimated fair value, as determinethé respective fund manager, based on the N/
the investment units held at year end, which igeaatlto judgment.

Real estate fun- Consists of the real estate funds, which providediect investment into a diversified and muéetor portfolio of proper
assets. Publiclyraded real estate funds are valued at the moshtretosing price reported on the SIX Swiss Excleafidne remainder is valu
at the estimated fair value, as determined by ¢éspective fund manager, based on the NAV of thestment units held at year end, whic
subject to judgment.

Insurance contract— Valued at the aggregate amount of accumulated ibatitn and investment income less amounts usedake benef
payments and administrative expenses which appuaigsrfair value.

Other — Consists of other fixed income investments and commwpllective trusts with a mix of equity and fixettome underlying asse
Other fixed income investments are valued at thstrmecent closing price reported on the active etaok which the individual securities
traded.
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12. Retirement Benefits - (Continued)

The methods described above may produce a faiealculation that may not be indicative of netizable value or reflective of futu
fair values. Furthermore, while we believe our wadilon methods are appropriate and consistent willkeromarket participants, the use
different methodologies or assumptions to deternthree fair value of certain financial instrumentsuleb result in a different fair val
measurement at the reporting date. Refer to Ndiar $urther information regarding levels in therfaialue hierarchy. The following tat
presents our pension plans’ investments measurfait aalue as of September 30, 2013 :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
U.S. Plans
Cash and cash equivalents $ 37 % — ¢ — ¢ 3.7
Equity securities:
Common stock 711.¢ — — 711.¢
Mutual funds 196.: — — 196.2
Common collective trusts — 561.t — 561.t
Fixed income securities:
Corporate debt — 535.7 — 535.7
Government securities 240.¢ 116.2 — 357.C
Common collective trusts — 128.¢ — 128.¢
Other types of investments:
Private equity — — 80.4 80.4
Alternative equity — — 42.1 42.1
Insurance contracts — — 0.8 0.8
Non-U.S. Plans
Cash and cash equivalents 19.C — — 19.C
Equity securities:
Common stock 41.€ — — 41.€
Common collective trusts — 286.4 — 286.4
Fixed income securities:
Corporate debt — 39.¢ — 39.¢
Government securities 3.¢ 13.7 — 17.€
Common collective trusts — 239.( — 239.(
Other types of investments:
Real estate funds — 44.¢ 8.2 52.¢
Insurance contracts — — 45.¢C 45.¢C
Other — 3.C 4.2 7.2
Total plan investments $ 1,217 $ 1,968.t $ 1812 ¢ 3,367.(
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The following table presents our pension planséstments measured at fair value as of Septemb&03Q, :

U.S. Plans
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity securities:
Common stock
Mutual funds
Common collective trusts
Fixed income securities:
Corporate debt
Government securities
Common collective trusts

Other types of investments:

Private equity
Alternative equity
Insurance contracts
Non-U.S. Plans
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity securities:
Common stock
Common collective trusts
Fixed income securities:
Corporate debt
Government securities
Common collective trusts

Other types of investments:

Real estate funds
Insurance contracts
Other

Total plan investments

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

04 % — % — 3 0.4
653.7 — — 653.7
160.( — — 160.(
— 530.F — 530.f
— 525.¢ — 525.¢
287.¢ 80.5 — 368.4
— 145.¢ — 145.¢
— — 83.2 83.2
— — 53.4 53.4
— — 0.8 0.8
26.€ — — 26.€
39.Z — — 39.Z
— 296.¢ — 296.¢
— 68.7 — 68.7
0.8 — — 0.8
— 167.1 — 167.1
— 46.2 — 46.2
— — 38.F 38.F
— 2.8 4.4 7.2
1,168.¢ $ 1,864.. $ 180.2 3,213.:
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12. Retirement Benefits - (Continued)

The table below sets forth a summary of change$aiin market value of our pension plankével 3 assets for the year en
September 30, 2013 .

Purchases,
Sales,
Balance Unrealized Issuances, and Balance
October 1, Realized Gains Gains Settlements, September 30,
2012 (Losses) (Losses) Net 2013
U.S. Plans

Private equity $ 832 % 6.€ 9 (10.8) $ 14 % 80.4
Alternative equity 53.4 1.2 4.1 (14.9) 42.1
Insurance contracts 0.6 — — — 0.6

Non-U.S. Plans
Real estate — — 0.4 7.¢ 8.2
Insurance contracts 38.t — 1.C 6.C 45.F
Other 4.4 — 0.z (0.9 4.z
$ 180.2 % 5E § 5.1) $ 0€ $ 181.:

The table below sets forth a summary of changésiinmarket value of our pension plans’ Level 3easgor the year endegkeptember 3l
2012 .

Purchases,
Sales,
Balance Unrealized Issuances, and Balance
October 1, Realized Gains Gains Settlements, September 30,
2011 (Losses) (Losses) Net 2012
U.S. Plans

Private equity $ 85.C §% 18.C $ 9.9 % (105 $ 83.2
Alternative equity 49.C 4.4 (1.9 1.4 53.4
Insurance contracts 0.€ — — (0.7 0.8

NontU.S. Plans
Real estate 3.€ — — (3.9 —
Insurance contracts 26.¢ — 7.5 3.7 38.5
Other 4.1 — 0.1 0.2 4.4
$ 169.¢ $ 224 $ 27 $ 9.2 % 180.:

Estimated Future Payments

We expect to contribute $41.1 million related ta eworldwide pension plans and $15.1 milliom our postretirement benefit plans
2014 .

The following benefit payments, which include enydes’ expected future service, as applicable, greaed to be paid (in millions):

Other
Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2014 $ 220.1 $ 15.1
2015 213.1 14.¢
2016 216.2 13.¢
2017 223.C 12.€
2018 231.7 12.2
2019 — 2023 1,291.¢ 53.1
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12. Retirement Benefits - (Continued)

Other Postretirement Benefits

A one-percentage point change in assumed healthoatérend rates would have the following efféctillions):

One-Percentage One-Percentage
Point Increase Point Decrease
2013 2012 2013 2012
Increase (decrease) to total of service and irteoest
components $ 02 % 02 $ 0.2) $ 0.2
Increase (decrease) to postretirement benefit atidig 2.1 2.4 (1.9 (2.3

Pension Benefits

Information regarding our pension plans with acclatad benefit obligations in excess of the faiueabf plan assets (underfunded pl:
at September 30, 2013 and 2012 are as followsi(lions):

2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation $ 760.1 $ 3,850.¢
Accumulated benefit obligation 674.¢ 3,573t
Fair value of plan assets 436.1 2,919.(

Defined Contribution Savings Plans

We also sponsor certain defined contribution savipkans for eligible employees. Expense relatethése plans was $40.9 million
2013, $38.2 million in 2012 and $31.2 million i1 .

13. Discontinued Operations

During 2011, we recorded a net $0.7 millimenefit from the settlement of an indemnificatidrBaldor Electric Company and certain
matters related to divested businesses, partiffBgtoby a change in estimate for an environmemtgter pertaining to a discontinued business

14. Other Income (Expense)

The components of other income (expense) are (lions):

2013 2012 2011
Net (loss) gain on dispositions of securities arapprty $ (0.t) $ 1.0 $ 0.9
Interest income 9.8 7.8 6.C
Royalty income 3.3 2.3 3.6
Environmental charges (13.5) (9.9 (4.5
Other 6.€ (4.9 (8.2)
Other income (expense) $ 57 § (5.0 $ (2.9)

In 2013 other income included a $19.2 million glsom a favorable resolution of certain intellectpabperty and commercial legal matters.
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15. Income Taxes

Selected income tax data from continuing operat{@nsillions):

2013 2012 2011
Components of income before income taxes:
United States $ 513t $ 469.¢ $ 364.:
Non-United States 467 . 496.: 503.:
Total $ 980.¢ $ 965.¢ $ 867.¢
Components of the income tax provision:
Current:
United States $ 1645 $ 71.2 $ 51.C
Non-United States 51.1 72.% 75.C
State and local 15.F 3.1 (2.0)
Total current 231.1 146.7 124.(
Deferred:
United States 1.3 76.¢ 46.€
Non-United States (2.9 0.4 (5.2
State and local (2.9 5.C 5.1
Total deferred (6.5) 82.2 46.5
Income tax provision $ 224.¢ $ 228.¢ $ 170.5
Total income taxes paid $ 203¢ % 167.8  $ 118.¢

During 2013, we recognized net discrete tax bénefi$22.7 millionprimarily related to the favorable resolution of taatters in variot
global jurisdictions and the retroactive extensibthe U.S. federal research and development &ditcr

During 2012 , we recognized net discrete tax bénefi$2.1 millionprimarily related to the favorable resolution of taatters in variot
global jurisdictions.

During 2011 , we recognized net discrete tax bénefi $25.0 millionrelated to the favorable resolution of tax mattarsarious globe
jurisdictions and the retroactive extension ofth&. federal research and development tax ct

Effective Tax Rate Reconciliation

The reconciliation between the U.S. federal stayutate and our effective tax rate was:

2013 2012 2011
Statutory tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.(%
State and local income taxes 0.¢ 0.8 0.7
Non-United States taxes (9.6 (10.9) (12.9)
Foreign tax credit utilization 0.8 0.4 0.¢
Employee stock ownership plan benefit (0.2 0.3 (0.3
Change in valuation allowances (0.9 (0.2 0.8
Domestic manufacturing deduction (1.0 (1.0 (0.9
Adjustments for prior period tax matters (2.0 (0.6) (2.9
Other (0.5) — (2.0
Effective income tax rate 22.£% 23.1% 19.7%
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15. Income Taxes - (Continued)

We operate in certain non-U.S. tax jurisdictionslemvarious government sponsored tax incentiverprog, which expire during01¢
through 201%nd may be extended if certain additional requirgmare met. The tax incentive programs reduceckffective income tax ra
by 3.9, 4.3 and 5.0 percentage points in 201322d 2011 , respectively.

Deferred Taxe

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to our net deferred income tax assets anditied were (in millions):

2013 2012
Current deferred income tax assets:
Compensation and benefits $ 264 % 28.7
Product warranty costs 13.C 14.5
Inventory 48.C 58.4
Allowance for doubtful accounts 9.8 15.€
Deferred credits 9.3 9.t
Returns, rebates and incentives 497 47.5
Self-insurance reserves 2.5 2.7
Restructuring reserves 3.1 2.4
Net operating loss carryforwards 3.7 3.7
State tax credit carryforwards — 0.¢
Other — net 24.C 24.¢€
Current deferred income tax assets 189.t 208.¢
Long-term deferred income tax assets (liabilities):
Retirement benefits $ 177« $ 369.:
Property (88.5) (90.9)
Intangible assets (40.2) (34.7)
Environmental reserves 18.C 13.7
Share-based compensation 33.¢ 40.1
Self-insurance reserves 7.C 6.2
Deferred gains 2.8 3.3
Net operating loss carryforwards 37.€ 38.t
Capital loss carryforwards 14.2 17.2
U.S. federal tax credit carryforwards 2.1 1kt
State tax credit carryforwards 4.7 3.4
Other — net 6.7 14.1
Subtotal 175.¢ 382.¢
Valuation allowance (28.9) (31.9
Net long-term deferred income tax assets 147.: 351.1
Total deferred income tax assets $ 336.¢ $ 559.7

Total deferred tax assets were $493.8 million git&aber 30, 2013 and $715.9 million at September2B02. Total deferred te
liabilities were $128.7 million at September 3012@&nd $124.4 million at September 30, 2012 .

We have not provided U.S. deferred taxes for $2@12fillion of undistributed earnings of the Compangubsidiaries, since tht
earnings have been, and under current plans willimge to be, permanently reinvested outside tH& U.is not practicable to estimate
amount of additional taxes that may be payable upstnibution.

We believe it is more likely than not that we wilalize current and longrm deferred tax assets through the reductionitofé taxabl
income, other than for the deferred tax asseteatftl below. Significant factors we consideredatetmining the probability of the realizat
of the deferred tax assets include our historipalrating results and expected future earnings.
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15. Income Taxes - (Continued)

Tax attributes and related valuation allowanceSegitember 30, 2013 are (in millions):

Tax Carryforward

Benefit Valuation Period
Tax Attribute to be Carried Forward Amount Allowance Ends
Non-United States net operating loss carryforward 8Lt $ 6.6 2014 - 2023
Non-United States net operating loss carryforward 11.¢ 5.8 Indefinite
Non-United States capital loss carryforward 14.2 14.2 Indefinite
United States net operating loss carryforward 5.k — 2019 - 2027
United States tax credit carryforward 2.1 — 2018 - 2027
State and local net operating loss carryforward 15.t — 2014 - 2033
State tax credit carryforward 4.7 — 2025 - 2028
Subtotal — tax carryforwards 62.2 26.¢
Other deferred tax assets 1kt L& Indefinite
Total 63.6 $ 28.:

There was no material change in the valuation alme in 2013 and 2012 .

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

We operate in numerous taxing jurisdictions andsafgject to regular examinations by various U.8efal, state and nadd:S. taxing
authorities for various tax periods. Additionallwe have retained tax liabilities and the rightstag refunds in connection with varic
divestitures of businesses in prior years. Ournmedax positions are based on research and intatipres of the income tax laws and ruling
each of the jurisdictions in which we do busind3se to the subjectivity of interpretations of lawsd rulings in each jurisdiction, 1
differences and interplay in tax laws between thHosgsdictions as well as the inherent uncertaintgstimating the final resolution of comp
tax audit matters, our estimates of income taxliteds may differ from actual payments or assessisie

A reconciliation of our gross unrecognized tax Bgseexcluding interest and penalties, is as feiqin millions):

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at begjrofigear
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear
Additions based on tax positions related to prigarg
Reductions based on tax positions related to gears
Reductions related to settlements with taxing attilbe
Reductions related to lapses of statute of linotati

Effect of foreign currency translation

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at endanfy
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2013 2012 2011
$ 702 $ 751 $ 66.2
1.1 — 22.%

8.8 3.3 9.2

— — (0.6)

(36.2) (6.9) (18.5)

(1.2) (2.9) (3.0

2.0 0.6 (0.7)

$ 405 $ 705 $ 75.1
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15. Income Taxes - (Continued)

The amount of gross unrecognized tax benefitswiatld reduce our effective tax rate if recognizeakv$40.8 million , $70.3 million
and $75.1 million at September 30, 2013 , 2012201d , respectively.

Accrued interest and penalties related to unreaaghiax benefits were $12.4 million and $20.1 wrillat September 30, 2013 and 2012
respectively. We recognize interest and penalttgad to unrecognized tax benefits in the incoameptovision. Benefits (expense) recogn
were $6.7 million , $(3.1) million and $9.7 million 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

If the unrecognized tax benefits were recognizkd, et impact on our income tax provision, inclgdthe recognition of interest &
penalties and offsetting tax assets, would be $&ifllbn as of September 30, 2013 .

We believe it is reasonably possible that the armofigross unrecognized tax benefits could be reduny up to $16.4 milliom the nex
12 months as a result of the resolution of tax enatin various global jurisdictions and the lapskstatutes of limitations.

We conduct business globally and are routinely taddby the various tax jurisdictions in which weecgte. We are no longer subjec
U.S. federal income tax examinations for years t@ef910 and are no longer subject to state, lavélrony.S. income tax examinations
years befor2003 .

16. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Environmental Matters

Federal, state and local requirements relatindi¢odischarge of substances into the environmeatditposal of hazardous wastes
other activities affecting the environment have ailll continue to have an effect on our manufactgroperations. Thus far, compliance \
environmental requirements and resolution of emvitental claims have been accomplished without nadteffect on our liquidity and capi
resources, competitive position, financial conditar results of operations.

We have been designated as a potentially respenpiity at 13Superfund sites, excluding sites as to which ouoonds disclose r
involvement or as to which our potential liabilias been finally determined and assumed by thirtlegaln addition, various other lawsu
claims and proceedings have been asserted agarsteking remediation of alleged environmental impents, principally at previous
owned properties. As of September 30, 201& have estimated the total reasonably possidésove could incur from these matters t
$117.0 million ( $102.3 million , net of relatedcetvables). We have recorded environmental ligbdit $52.2 million ( $45.9 million net o
related receivables) for these matters. Of the Z5Rillion recorded liability, $36.6 milliorrelates to discounted ongoing operating
maintenance expenditures. In addition to the abmedters, certain environmental liabilities are sabsally indemnified by ExxonMok
Corporation. At September 30, 2013 , we recordédhdlity of $30.4 million and a receivable of $88million for these matters. We estim
the total reasonably possible costs that we cawddrifrom these matters to be $30.6 million .

Based on our assessment, we believe that our eitpeysdfor environmental capital investment andediation necessary to comply w
present regulations governing environmental praiecand other expenditures for the resolution ofiremmental claims will not have
material effect on our liquidity and capital resoes, competitive position, financial condition esults of operations. We cannot asses
possible effect of compliance with future requirertse

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

We accrue for costs related to a legal obligatiseoaiated with the retirement of a tangible ldngd asset that results from -
acquisition, construction, development or the ndroperation of the londjved asset. The obligation to perform the asskterment activity i
not conditional even though the timing or methodynb® conditional. Identified conditional asset metient obligations include asbe:
abatement and remediation of soil contaminatioreb#ncurrent and previously divested facilities. ¥&imated conditional asset retiren
obligations using site-specific knowledge and histd industry expertise. As of September 30, 2@h8 September 30, 2012we hav
recorded $2.3 million and $3.4 million , respediyen other current liabilities and $22.0 milliend $22.4 million, respectively, in oth
liabilities for these obligations.
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16. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities - (Conthued)

Lease Commitments

Rental expense was $119.6 million in 2013 , $116il0on in 2012 and $111.5 million in 2011Minimum future rental commitmer
under operating leases having noncancelable |esisestin excess of one year aggregated $358.0 midlo of September 30, 2058d ar
payable as follows (in millions):

2014 $ 82.C
2015 67.7
2016 52.7
2017 43.1
2018 33.7
Beyond 2018 78.¢
Total $ 358.(

Commitments from third parties under sublease agee¢s having noncancelable lease terms in excesmefyear aggregatehll.z
million as of September 30, 2013 and are receivdblaugh 2017 at approximately $0.3 milliper year. Most leases contain renewal op
for varying periods, and certain leases includéoogtto purchase the leased property.

Other Matters

Various other lawsuits, claims and proceedings hasen or may be instituted or asserted againselasing to the conduct of c
business, including those pertaining to produdbiliiz, environmental, safety and health, intelledt property, employment and cont
matters. Although the outcome of litigation canbetpredicted with certainty and some lawsuits,neéabr proceedings may be dispose
unfavorably to us, we believe the disposition oftters that are pending or have been asserted @tilhave a material effect on our busin
financial condition or results of operations.

We (including our subsidiaries) have been nameal defendant in lawsuits alleging personal injurgassult of exposure to asbestos
was used in certain components of our products nyaays ago. Currently there are a few thousandnelais in lawsuits that name us
defendants, together with hundreds of other congzarin some cases, the claims involve products fdorasted businesses, and we
indemnified for most of the costs. However, we hagesed to defend and indemnify asbestos clainecidsd with products manufacturec
sold by our former Dodge mechanical and Relianeetit motors and motor repair services businepses to their divestiture by us, whi
occurred on January 31, 2007. We are also resgerfgib half of the costs and liabilities associateith asbestos cases against our fo
Rockwell International Corporation's divested measwent and flow control business. But in all casesthose claimants who do show 1
they worked with our products or products of diegsbusinesses for which we are responsible, wertheless believe we have meritori
defenses, in substantial part due to the integfitye products, the encapsulated nature of angsasteontaining components, and the lac
any impairing medical condition on the part of matgimants. We defend those cases vigorously. Hdstily, we have been dismissed fr
the vast majority of these claims with no paymentlaimants.

We have maintained insurance coverage that weveetievers indemnity and defense costs, over andeabelfinsured retentions, f
claims arising from our former AlleBradley subsidiary. Following litigation against tiewide Indemnity Company (Nationwide) ¢
Kemper Insurance (Kemper), the insurance carrieas provided liability insurance coverage to AlBradley, we entered into sepal
agreements on April 1, 2008 with both insuranceier to further resolve responsibility for ongoiagd future coverage of AlleBradley
asbestos claims. In exchange for a lump sum payrf@mper bought out its remaining liability and Heeen released from further insurs
obligations to AllenBradley. Nationwide entered into a cost share agese with us to pay the substantial majority ofufet defense ai
indemnity costs for AllerBradley asbestos claims. We believe that this gearent with Nationwide will continue to provide evage fo
Allen-Bradley asbestos claims throughout the reingitife of the asbestos liability.

The uncertainties of asbestos claim litigation maékdifficult to predict accurately the ultimate tocome of asbestos claims. T
uncertainty is increased by the possibility of adeerulings or new legislation affecting asbestlaént litigation or the settlement proce
Subject to these uncertainties and based on o@riexgge defending asbestos claims, we do not leetlease lawsuits will have a material ef
on our financial condition or results of operations

72




Table of Contents
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

16. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities - (Conthued)

We have, from time to time, divested certain of dusinesses. In connection with these divestitucestain lawsuits, claims a
proceedings may be instituted or asserted againslated to the period that we owned the busises#her because we agreed to retain ce
liabilities related to these periods or becauséh diabilities fall upon us by operation of law. Bome instances the divested busines:
assumed the liabilities; however, it is possibla the might be responsible to satisfy those liibdiif the divested business is unable to do so

In connection with the spioffs of our former automotive component systemsriass, semiconductor systems business and Rot
Collins avionics and communications business, fhensff companies have agreed to indemnify us for saarigtlly all contingent liabilitie
related to the respective businesses, includingg@mwental and intellectual property matters.

In conjunction with the sale of our Dodge mechané&a Reliance Electric motors and motor repaivises businesses, we agree
indemnify Baldor Electric Company for costs and dges related to certain legal, legacy environmeatal asbestos matters of tr
businesses arising before January 31, 2007, fachwiiie maximum exposure would be capped at the armeaeived for the sale. We estin
the potential future payments we could incur untese indemnifications may approximate $11.4 nmilljoof which $0.3 millionhas bee
accrued in other current liabilities and $9.2 moillihas been accrued in other liabilities at Sepe&erb, 2013 . We recorded $1.6 millianc
$8.8 million in other current liabilities and otHeabilities, respectively, at September 30, 20d2these indemnifications.

In many countries we provide a limited intellectpabperty indemnity as part of our terms and coodg ofsale. We also at times prov
limited intellectual property indemnities in oth@wntracts with third parties, such as contractenning the development and manufactui
our products. As of September 30, 2018 were not aware of any material indemnificatitaims that were probable or reasonably possit
an unfavorable outcome. Historically, claims thavén been made under the indemnification agreenmanvs not had a material impact on
operating results, financial position or cash flphwswever, to the extent that valid indemnificatmaims arise in the future, future payment
us could be significant and could have a matedaéese effect on our results of operations or ¢asts in a particular period.

17. Business Segment Information

Rockwell Automation is a leading global provider wfdustrial automation power, control and inforroati solutions that he
manufacturers achieve a competitive advantagehfir businesses. We determine our operating segnased on the information used by
chief operating decision maker, our Chief Execut®iicer, to allocate resources and assess perfwenaBased upon these criteria,
organized our products and services into two opeyatgments: Architecture & Software and ControldRcts & Solutions.

Architecture & Software

The Architecture & Software segment contains athef hardware, software and communication compsnafndur integrated control a
information architecture capable of controlling thestomers industrial processes and connecting with theinufacturing enterpris
Architecture & Software has a broad portfolio obgucts including:

e Control platforms that perform multiple control diglines and monitoring of applications, includinliscrete, batch, continuc
process, drives control, motion control and mactsaéety control. Our platform products include colérs, electronic operat
interface devices, electronic input/output devia@snmunication and networking products and indastomputers. The information-
enabled Logix controllers provide integrated mdiseipline control that is modular and scalable.

« Software products that include configuration ansluglization software used to operate and supewasgrol platforms, advanc
process control software and manufacturing execwgatware (MES) that addresses information neetlsden the factory floor anc
customer’s enterprise business system.

» Other Architecture & Software products, includimgary and linear motion control products, sensacsraachine safety componel
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17. Business Segment Information - (Continued)

Control Products & Solutions

The Control Products & Solutions segment combinesomprehensive portfolio of intelligent motor casitand industrial contn
products, application expertise and project managpeicapabilities. This comprehensive portfolio urttds:

e« Low and medium voltage electrmechanical and electronic motor starters, motor @nclit protection devices, AC/DC varia
frequency drives, push buttons, signaling devitaspination and protection devices, relays andsnaed condition sensors.

e Valueadded solutions ranging from packaged solutionsh sag configured drives and motor control centeraudtomation ar
information solutions where we provide design, gmédion and start-up services for custengineered hardware and software sys
primarily for manufacturing applications.

e Services designed to help maximize a customamut®mation investment and provide total Iifgcle support, including techni
support and repair, customized safety solutiorsetananagement, training and predictive and prati#atmaintenance.

The following tables reflect the sales and opegatasults of our reportable segments for the yeaded September 30 (in millions):

2013 2012 2011
Sales:
Architecture & Software $ 2,682.( $ 2,650« $ 2,594.;
Control Products & Solutions 3,669.¢ 3,609.( 3,406.:
Total $ 6,351.¢ $ 6,259.. §$ 6,000.¢
Segment operating earnings:
Architecture & Software $ 759.¢ % 714.¢ 3 670.<
Control Products & Solutions 477.¢ 449.% 378.¢
Total 1,236.¢ 1,163.¢ 1,048.¢
Purchase accounting depreciation and amortization (19.9) (29.9 (19.9)
General corporate-net (97.2) (82.9 (78.9
Non-operating pension costs (78.5) (35.2) (23.5)
Interest expense (60.9) (60.7) (59.5
Income from continuing operations before incomeax $ 980.¢ §$ 965.¢ $ 867.€

1Beginning in fiscal 2013, we redefined segment afyeg earnings to exclude non-operating pensiotscd&neperating pension co
were reclassified to a separate line item withim dbove table for all periods presented. Theses aoste previously included in the opera
earnings of each segment and in general corposteNoneperating pension costs consist of defined bepédit interest cost, expected ref
on plan assets, amortization of actuarial gains lasgles and the impacts of any plan curtailmentsetttements. These components of
periodic benefit cost primarily relate to changepénsion assets and liabilities that are a regutiarket performance; we consider these 1
to be unrelated to the operating performance ofbmsiness. We continue to include service costaandrtization of prior service cost in
business segment that incurred the expense as ¢begmonents of net periodic benefit cost reprefiemtoperating cost of providing pens
benefits to our employees.

Among other considerations, we evaluate performamckallocate resources based upon segment ogeeatinings before income tax
interest expense, costs related to corporate sffiteneperating pension costs, certain nonrecurring gattpanitiatives, gains and losses fi
the disposition of businesses and purchase acogudgpreciation and amortization. Depending onpifeauct, intersegment sales withi
single legal entity are either at cost or cost glunarkup, which does not necessarily represent a maria.[(Sales between legal entities
at an appropriate transfer price. We allocate cadtged to shared segment operating activitighgsegments using a methodology consi
with the expected benefit.
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17. Business Segment Information - (Continued)

The following tables summarize the identifiableedssat September 2td the provision for depreciation and amortizadod the amou
of capital expenditures for property for the yeamged September 30 for each of the reportable sggraad Corporate (in millions):

Identifiable assets:
Architecture & Software
Control Products & Solutions
Corporate
Total
Depreciation and amortization:
Architecture & Software
Control Products & Solutions
Corporate
Total
Purchase accounting depreciation and amortization
Total
Capital expenditures for property:
Architecture & Software
Control Products & Solutions
Corporate

Total

2013 2012 2011
$ 1,653« $ 1,648.. $ 1,608.
2,200.( 2,270. 2,116.:
1,991.; 1,717 .« 1,560.¢
$ 5844.¢ $ 5636.f $ 5,284.¢
$ 68.1 $ 616 $ 60.C
57.7 57.1 51.4
0.1 0.1 0.1
125.¢ 118.¢ 111:f
19.c 19.¢ 19.¢
$ 145: $ 138.¢ $ 131.:
$ 31t $ 24¢ $ 28.1
52.¢ 55.5 38.2
61. 59.7 53.¢
$ 1462 $ 139.¢ $ 120.1

Identifiable assets at Corporate consist princypaflcash, net deferred income tax assets, prggaidion and property. Property shi
by the segments and used in operating activitiedsis reported in Corporate identifiable assets @aporate capital expenditures. Corpc
identifiable assets include shared net propertgrizas of $299.2 million , $318.0 million and $31/illion at September 30, 2013 , 2044c
2011, respectively, for which depreciation expenselieen allocated to segment operating earnings lmasdte expected benefit to be reali
by each segment. Corporate capital expenditurégdacs61.9 million , $59.7 million and $53.8 miltion 2013 , 2012 and 201 Tespectively

that will be shared by our operating segments.

We conduct a significant portion of our businessvi®s outside the United States. The followiradples present sales and propert

geographic region (in millions):

Sales Property
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
United States $ 3,202.¢ $ 3,067.0 $ 2917.¢ $ 484.7 $ 458.¢ $ 446.1
Canada 468.7 464.¢ 396.2 7.€ 8.€ 9.2
Europe, Middle East and Africa 1,284.¢ 1,280.¢ 1,267.¢ 43.C 41.€ 42.¢
Asia Pacific 851.¢ 942.¢ 910.€ 39.1 39.4 36.¢
Latin America 543.t 504.¢ 508.2 41.¢ 38.7 26.7
Total $ 6,351.¢ $ 6,259.. % 6,000.. $ 616.C $ 587.1 $ 561.4

We attribute sales to the geographic regions basate country of destination.

In the United States, Canada and certain othertdeanwe sell our products primarily through indegent distributors. In the remain
countries, we sell products through a combinatibulicect sales and sales through distributors. \&lelarge systems and service offeri
principally through a direct sales force, thouglpangunities are sometimes identified through distrdrs. Sales to our largest distributo

2013, 2012 and 2011 , which are attributable tt Begments, were approximately 10 percent of atal ales.
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18. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

2013 Quarters

First Second Third Fourth 2013
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Sales $ 1,489.. $ 1,522.¢ $ 1,624 $ 1,715 $ 6,351.¢
Gross profit 607.: 616.< 652.¢ 697.2 2,573.¢
Income before income taxes 217.2 227.1 257.¢ 279.2 980.¢
Net income 161.¢ 175.¢ 203.7 215 756.:
Earnings per share:
Basic 1.1¢ 1.2t 1.4¢ 1.5t 5.4:
Diluted 1.1 1.2¢ 1.4t iLfse 5.3¢€
2012 Quarters
First Second Third Fourth 2012
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Sales $ 1,473.¢ $ 1561.. $ 1,560.. $ 1,664.C $ 6,259..
Gross profit 618.7 618.: 631. 654.2 2,522."
Income before income taxes 242.¢ 223.: 244.¢ 254.¢ 965.¢
Net income 183.% 167.¢ 190.5 195.2 737.(
Earnings per share:
Basic 1.2¢ 1.1¢ 1.3¢ 1.3¢ 5.2C
Diluted 1.2 1.1¢ 1.32 1.3¢ 5.1LE

Note: The sum of the quarterly per share amounitswi necessarily equal the annual per share ant®pnesentec
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of
Rockwell Automation, Inc.
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Rockwell Automation, Inc. (the “Comgaras of September 30, 20Ec
2012 , and the related consolidated statementpearfations, comprehensive income, cash flows, aateskwnersequity for each of the thr
years in the period endSeptember 30, 20130ur audits also included the financial statensehiedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a)(2).
also have audited the Company’s internal contr@rdinancial reporting as of September 30, 2018seld on criteria established limternal
Control — Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatairtee Treadway Commission. The Company’
management is responsible for these financial rettés and financial statement schedule, for maiimgi effective internal control ov
financial reporting, and for its assessment of éffectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting, included in the accompany
Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial RepaytiOur responsibility is to express an opiniortleese financial statements i
financial statement schedule and an opinion orCibrapany'’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cordx@r financial reporting was maintained in all erél respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleage supporting the amounts and disclosures irfitlaacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, and evaluating the ovenalhfial statement presentation. Our ¢
of internal control over financial reporting inckedl obtaining an understanding of internal contk@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, testing and evalu#timglesign and operating effectiveness of intezaatrol based on the assessed risk. Our ¢
also included performing such other procedures ascensidered necessary in the circumstances. Wevéethat our audits provide
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi, the companyg’ principal executiv
and principal financial officers, or persons pemforg similar functions, and effected by the companyoard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuranegdieg the reliability of financial reporting anket preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. A compasyhternal control over financial reporting inclg
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheéanaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactioneeseded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengradicepted accounting principles and that recaiptsexpenditures of the company are b
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peviehsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijjon, use, or disposition of the compasiyssets that could have a material effect o
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcohover financial reporting, including the posstp of collusion or improper managemi
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of ¢
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoginover financial reporting to future periods aebject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, the financial position of Rocky
Automation, Inc. as of September 30, 2013 and 2GR the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the three years in the pe
ended September 30, 2018 conformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the United States of America. Alsogur opinion
such financial statement schedule, when considareglation to the basic consolidated financiatestaents taken as a whole, presents fairl
all material respects, the information set fortéréin. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintain@dall material respects, effective intel
control over financial reporting as of SeptemberZm3 , based on the criteria establishebhiarnal Control —ntegrated Framework (199
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

November 18, 201
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including the Chief Executive @@ifiand Chief Financial Office
we have evaluated the effectiveness, as of SepteB@h@013 , of our disclosure controls and procesluas defined in Rule 13&{e) and Rul
15d15(e) of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluatiom Chief Executive Officer and Chief FinancialfiGer have concluded that ¢
disclosure controls and procedures were effectvef &eptember 30, 2013 .

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaimithgguate internal control over financial reportiag defined in Rule 13b5(f) unde
the Exchange Act. Our internal control over finahceporting is a process designed to provide megse assurance regarding the reliabilit
our financial reporting and the preparation of ficial statements for external purposes in accoelamth generally accepted accoun
principles. Under the supervision and with the ipgration of our management, including the ChiefeBidtive Officer and Chief Financ
Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of ourrimd control over financial reporting based on fitaenework ininternal Control —Integratec
Framework (1992issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO). Based uponedtaluatior
management has concluded that our internal cootel financial reporting was effective as of Segien0, 2013 .

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of September 30, 20E3 been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLF
stated in their report that is included on the fes two pages.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢t@isstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods subject to the risk that controls may becomealéqaate because of the change
conditions, or that the degree of compliance withpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has not been any change in our internal @ooer financial reporting (as such term is defie Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f))
during the fiscal quarter to which this report tetathat has materially affected, or is reasonblkdyy to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

As previously disclosed, we are in the processesetbping and implementing common global proceasdstrds and an enterprisgde
information technology system. Additional implemaians will occur at the remaining locations of gompany throughout fiscal 2014-2015.

ltem 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverre

Other than the information below, the informati@guired by this Iltem is incorporated by referercé¢hie sections entitleBlection of
Directors, Board of Directors and CommitteendSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Congricein the Proxy Statement.

No nominee for director was selected pursuant joarangement or understanding between the nongindeany person other than
Company pursuant to which such person is or wdseteelected as a director or nominee. See alsimfihrenation about executive officers
the Company under Item 4A of Part I.

We have adopted a code of ethics that appliestexecutive officers, including the principal extea officer, principal financial office
and principal accounting officer. A copy of our @odf Conduct is posted on our Internet site attitgyw.rockwellautomation.cormnder th
"Investor Relations" linkin the event that we amend or grant any waiver feoprovision of the code of ethics that appliesh® principa
executive officer, principal financial officer oripcipal accounting officer and that requires discire under applicable SEC rules, we intei
disclose such amendment or waiver and the reakensfor on our Internet site.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorpedtby reference to the sections entitlEgecutive Compensation Director
CompensatiorandCompensation Committee Repartthe Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aianagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Other than the information below, the informati@quired by this Item is incorporated by referercéht sections entitle@wnership o
Equity Securities of the Comparin the Proxy Statement.

The following table provides information as of Smpber 30, 201&bout our common stock that may be issued uporexBecise ¢
options, warrants and rights granted to employeessultants or directors under all of our existaguity compensation plans, including
2012 Long-Term Incentives Plan, 2008 Long-Term itises Plan, 2000 Long-Term Incentives Plan andB2D®ectors Stock Plan.

Number of
Securities to be Weighted
issued upon Average Exercise Number of Securities
Exercise of Price of Remaining Available for
Outstanding Outstanding Future Issuance under
Options, Options, Equity Compensation Plans
Warrants and Warrants and (excluding Securities
Rights Rights reflected in Column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by shareowners 5977,07. © $ 64.5: @ 5,740,74, ©®
Equity compensation plans not approved by sharemvne — n/e —
Total 5,977,07. $ 64.5: 5,740,74.

(1) Represents outstanding options and shares issumap&yment of outstanding performance shares (airmam payout) and restrict
stock units under our 2012 Long-Term Incentivesn\P2D08 Long-Term Incentives Plan, 2000 Ldrgrm Incentives Plan and 2(
Directors Stock Plan.

(2) Represents the weighted average exercise pricaitsfamding options and does not take into accdumtperformance shares
restricted units.

(3) Represents 5,466,021 and 274,721 shares lleailar future issuance under our 2012 Ldregym Incentives Plan and our 2(
Directors Stock Plan, respectively.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adaector Independence

The information required by this Item is incorpaditby reference to the sections entitloard of Directors and Committeeanc
Corporate Governance the Proxy Statement.

Iltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorp@ctby reference to the section entitlBdoposal to Approve the Selection
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firin the Proxy Statement.
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Iltem 15.

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Sdeexhd Exhibits

(1) Financial Statements (all financial statementgdidielow are those of the Company and its congelidsubsidiarie:

Consolidated Balance Sheet, September 30, 20131 39
Consolidated Statement of Operations, years endpte®ber 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 40
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incomesymaled September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 41
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, years endpté@ber 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 42
Consolidated Statement of Shareowners’ Equity,syeaded September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 43
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 44
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm 77

(2) Financial Statement Schedule for the yearg@i@kptember 30, 2013, 2012 &0d 1

Page

Schedule [l—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts sS4

Schedules not filed herewith are omitted becausheobsence of conditions under which they areired or because the informat
called for is shown in the consolidated financtatsments or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

3-b

4-al

4-a2

4-a-3

4-a4

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Compdited as Exhibit 3 to the Company’s QuarterlypRe on Form 10-Q for the
guarter ended March 31, 2002, is hereby incorpdrayereference.

By-Laws of the Company, as amended and restatedtief June 6, 2013, filed as Exhibit 3.2 to thepany’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated June 7, 2013, are hereby incatpdrby reference.

Indenture dated as of December 1, 1996 betwee@dhgany and The Bank of New York Trust Company, .Nfé&rmerly
JPMorgan Chase, successor to The Chase Manhattdan ®ecessor to Mellon Bank, N.A.), as Trustdedfas Exhibit 4-a to
Registration Statement No. 333-43071, is herebgrpmrated by reference.

Form of certificate for the Company’s 6.70% Debeesudue January 15, 2028, filed as Exhibit 4-théeoG@ompany’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 26, 1998, is lyeretorporated by reference.
Form of certificate for the Company’s 5.20% Debeasudue January 15, 2098, filed as Exhibit 4-tieo@ompany’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 26, 1998, is lyeretorporated by reference.

Form of certificate for the Company’s 5.65% Noteg december 31, 2017, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to tben@any’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated December 3, 2007, is hereby parated by reference.

Management contract or compensatory plarmr@ngement.
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4-ab

*10-a-1

*10-a2

*10-a-3

*10-a4

*10-a-5

*10-a-6

*10-a-7

*10-b-1

*10-b-2

*10-b-3

*10-b-4

*10-b-5

*10-b-6

*10-b-7

*10-b-8

*10-c-1

*10-c-2

Form of certificate for the Company’s 6.25% Debeasudue December 31, 2037, filed as Exhibit 4 théoCompany’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 3, 2007, is lyeiretmrporated by reference.

Copy of the Company’s 2003 Directors Stock Pldedfas Exhibit 4-d to the Company’s Registratioat&nent on Form S-8
(No. 333-101780), is hereby incorporated by refegen

Form of Stock Option Agreement under Sections j(ajd 7(a)(ii) of the 2003 Directors Stock Plated as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertgraeended March 31, 2003, is hereby incorporaterkference.

Memorandum of Amendments to the Company’s 2003dbors Stock Plan approved and adopted by the BafaBdrectors of
the Company on April 25, 2003, filed as Exhibit1L@ the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qttie quarter ended
June 30, 2003, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation aeddfits as of October 1, 2013, filed as Exhibi31i0.the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlete 30, 2013, is hereby incorporated by reference

Memorandum of Amendments to the Company’s 2003dinrs Stock Plan approved and adopted by the Bafabirectors of
the Company on November 7, 2007, filed as Exhibi81o the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form(@sr the quarter ende
December 31, 2007, is hereby incorporated by reéere

Memorandum of Amendments to the Company’s 2003diors Stock Plan approved and adopted by the Bafabirectors of
the Company on September 3, 2008, filed as Exhibib-16 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 1fkthe year ended
September 30, 2008, is hereby incorporated byenter.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under $ec of the Company’s 2003 Director’s Stock Planamended, filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrr 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008erely incorporated by
reference.

Copy of the Company’s 2000 Long-Term Incentives\Pés amended through February 4, 2004, filed &#oiEx10-e-1 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaulad September 30, 2004, is hereby incorporatedfbyence.

Memorandum of Proposed Amendments to the Rockwtdrhational Corporation 2000 Long-Term Incenti?ésn approved
and adopted by the Board of Directors of the CorgganJune 6, 2001, in connection with the spinéfRockwell Collins, filed
as Exhibit 10-e-4 to the Company’s Annual ReporfFonm 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2@0eieby incorporated
by reference.

Forms of Stock Option Agreements under the ComEa200 Long-Term Incentives Plan, filed as Exhlifite-6 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaderl September 30, 2002, are hereby incorporateefésence.

Memorandum of Amendments to the Company’s 2000 Lbergn Incentives Plan, as amended, filed as Exhibi to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Apri2@05, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Memorandum of Amendments to the Company’s 2000 Lbergn Incentives Plan, as amended, filed as ExBibit to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novemrdh@005, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Memorandum of Proposed Amendment and Restateméiné @ompany’s 2000 Long-Term Incentives Plan,nasraded,
approved and adopted by the Board of Directorb®f@ompany on November 7, 2007, filed as Exhibid 16 the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedember 31, 2007, is hereby incorporated by eefa.

Forms of Stock Option Agreement under the Compa®§B0 Long-Term Incentives Plan, as amended, fioop granted to
executive officers of the Company after Decemb&007, filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s QerdytReport on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2007, is rerslorporated by reference.

Copy of resolutions of the Board of Directors of tBompany, adopted December 5, 2007 and effecéieuiry 6, 2008,
amending the Company’s 2000 Long-Term IncentivesiPAs amended, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Coryipauarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Marc2B08, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Copy of the Company’s 2008 Long-Term IncentivesPés amended and restated through June 4, 26Da§ Exhibit 99 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated he€010, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Compag988 Long-Term Incentives Plan, filed as Exhibitlltd the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlete 30, 2008, is hereby incorporated by reference
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*10-c-3

*10-c-4

*10-c-5

*10-c-6

*10-c-7

*10-c-8

*10-c-9

*10-c-10

*10-c-11

*10-c-12

*10-c-13

*10-c-14

*10-c-15

*10-d

*10-e-1

*10-e2

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coyipd?008 Long-Term Incentives Plan, filed as Exhilf)-e-3 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaadexl September 30, 2008, is hereby incorporatedfeyence.

Forms of Stock Option Agreement under the CompaRG8 Long-Term Incentives Plan for options grarttedxecutive
officers of the Company after December 1, 2008dfihs Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly ReporForm 10-Q for the
quarter ended December 31, 2008, is hereby incatgdiby reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coyipad2008 Long-Term Incentives Plan for shares efrieted stock
awarded after December 1, 2008, filed as Exhihib 10 the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1®fXtie quarter ended
December 31, 2008, is hereby incorporated by retere

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the CompaB088 Long-Term Incentives Plan, as amended, faongigranted to
executive officers of the Company after Decemb&03,0, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s QedytReport on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2010, is enelorporated by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Comipa&2008 Long-Term Incentives Plan, as amendedsliaeres of restricted
stock awarded to executive officers of the Compaiitgr December 6, 2010, filed as Exhibit 10.2 ® @ompany’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecerdbgP010, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Form of Performance Share Agreement under the Coy'p@008 Long-Term Incentives Plan, as amendedyédormance
shares awarded to executive officers of the Comjaditey December 6, 2010, filed as Exhibit 10.3w#® €Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended DecerdbgP010, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the CompaB088 Long-Term Incentives Plan, as amended, faoogigranted to
executive officers of the Company after NovemberZl 1, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Qedy Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2011 riblyancorporated by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Comyipa&2008 Long-Term Incentives Plan, as amendedsliaeres of restricted
stock awarded to executive officers of the Compaitgr November 30, 2011, filed as Exhibit 10.2He Company’'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Decer@bgP011, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Form of Performance Share Agreement under the Cop'p@008 Long-Term Incentives Plan, as amendeadyédormance
shares awarded to executive officers of the Comjadiey November 30, 2011, filed as Exhibit 10.3he@ Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Decer@beP011 is hereby incorporated by reference.

Copy of the Company's 2012 Long-Term Incentives Fifed as Exhibit 4-c to the Company's RegistratStatement on Form
S-8 (No. 333-180557), is hereby incorporated bgreaice.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Compa2®1 LongTerm Incentives Plan for options granted to exeeutifficers
of the Company after December 5, 2012, filed asithixh0.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on FAG¥Q for the quarter
ended December 31, 2012, is hereby incorporatedfeyence.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Cormyipd012 Long-Term Incentives Plan for shares striced stock
awarded to executive officers of the Company dtecember 5, 2012, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Canys Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 312 BOhereby incorporated by reference.

Form of Performance Share Agreement under the Coyp'ppa012 Long-Term Incentives Plan for performasitares awarded
to executive officers of the Company after Decenther012, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company'a@erly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2012 istyencorporated by reference.

Copy of resolutions of the Compensation and Managgevelopment Committee of the Board of Directifrthe Company,
adopted February 5, 2003, regarding the CorporéteeQracation plan, filed as Exhibit 10.5 to ther@pany’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 280Bereby incorporated by reference.

Copy of the Company’s Deferred Compensation Plamnaended and restated September 6, 2006, filEgtakit 10-f to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaadexl September 30, 2006, is hereby incorporatedfeyence.

Memorandum of Proposed Amendment and Restatemeiné é@¥ompany’s Deferred Compensation Plan apprenedadopted
by the Board of Directors of the Company on Novenihe007, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companylisa@erly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 280¥%reby incorporated by reference.
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*10-f

*10-g-1
*10-g-2
*10-h-1

*10-h-2

*10-h-3
*10-h-4
*10-h-5

10-i-1

10-i-2

10-i-3

10-j-
10-j-2
10-j-3
10-k-1

10-k-2

10-k-3

10--1

Copy of the Company'’s Directors Deferred Compenpsafilan approved and adopted by the Board of Qirsaif the Company
on November 5, 2008, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to thempany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the tpragnded
December 31, 2008, is hereby incorporated by retere

Copy of the Compang’ Annual Incentive Compensation Plan for Seniordbkee Officers, as amended December 3, 2003,
as Exhibit 10-i-1 to the Company’s Annual Reporttfte year ended September 30, 2004, is herebydocated by reference.

Copy of the Company'’s Incentive Compensation Fited as Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Current RemortForm 8-K dated
September 7, 2005, is hereby incorporated by nefere

Change of Control Agreement dated as of Septentye2®L3 between the Company and Keith D. Nosbu#et,as
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report onfk&-K dated October 2, 2013, is hereby incorporateteference.

Form of Change of Control Agreement dated as ofe3eber 30, 2013 between the Company and each afdbne D. Crandall,
Frank C. Kulaszewicz, Blake D. Moret and RoberRAIff and certain other corporate officers filedeaghibit 99.2 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Oct@@013, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Letter Agreement dated September 3, 2009 betwee@dmpany and Keith D. Nosbusch, filed as ExhiBii3o the Companyg’
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 8, 280%reby incorporated by reference.

Letter Agreement dated September 3, 2009 betwegistRant and Theodore D. Crandall, filed as ExH@i8if2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 8, 2808 reby incorporated by reference.

Description of relocation and expatriate packageRiobert A. Ruff, contained in the Company’s Cutri@eport on Form 8-K
dated April 8, 2011, is hereby incorporated by nrefiee.

Agreement and Plan of Distribution dated as of Dewer 6, 1996, among Rockwell International Corgorafrenamed Boeing
North American, Inc.), the Company (formerly naniMslv Rockwell International Corporation), Allen-Biag Company, Inc.,
Rockwell Collins, Inc., Rockwell Semiconductor Sysis, Inc., Rockwell Light Vehicle Systems, Inc. &wtkwell Heavy
Vehicle Systems, Inc., filed as Exhibit |0-b to thempany’s Quarterly Report on Form Q0for the quarter ended December
1996, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Post-Closing Covenants Agreement dated as of Deze®id 996, among Rockwell International Corporati@named Boeing
North American, Inc.), The Boeing Company, Boeingy, \c. and the Company (formerly named New RockWweérnational
Corporation), filed as Exhibit 10-c to the Compan@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartereehidecember 31, 1996,
is hereby incorporated by reference.

Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of December 8618mong Rockwell International Corporation (reepdrBoeing North
American, Inc.), the Company (formerly named NevelReell International Corporation) and The Boeingn@pany, filed as
Exhibit 10-d to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrir 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 18$96elieby incorporated
by reference.

Distribution Agreement dated as of September 3071% and between the Company and Meritor Autoneotinc., filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F@&#d dated October 10, 1997, is hereby incorporateteference.

Employee Matters Agreement dated as of Septembher9®7 by and between the Company and Meritor Aotore, Inc., filed
as Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Current Report om#8-K dated October 10, 1997, is hereby incorgaray reference.

Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of Septembe 907 by and between the Company and Meritor Autoraptnc., filed as
Exhibit 2.3 to the Company’s Current Report on F@&#d dated October 10, 1997, is hereby incorporateteference.

Distribution Agreement dated as of December 318189and between the Company and Conexant Systemsfiled as
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F& dated January 12, 1999, is hereby incorporhayeg:ference.

Amended and Restated Employee Matters Agreemeed datof December 31, 1998 by and between the Gongral
Conexant Systems, Inc., filed as Exhibit 2.2 toGmenpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Jantarni999, is hereby
incorporated by reference.

Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of December 3981by and between the Company and Conexant Syskemsfiled as
Exhibit 2.3 to the Company’s Current Report on F&# dated January 12, 1999, is hereby incorporbyectference.

Distribution Agreement dated as of June 29, 200&rxyamong the Company, Rockwell Collins, Inc. Rogdkwell Scientific
Company LLC, filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Compan@isrrent Report on Form B-dated July 11, 2001, is hereby incorporatei
reference.
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10-I-2

10-I-3

10-m

Employee Matters Agreement dated as of June 29, Bp@nd among the Company, Rockwell Collins, ared Rockwell
Scientific Company LLC, filed as Exhibit 2.2 to tG@mpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July?DD1, is hereby
incorporated by reference.

Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of June 29, 26)0and between the Company and Rockwell Collins, liled as
Exhibit 2.3 to the Company’s Current Report on F&#d dated July 11, 2001, is hereby incorporateddfgrence.

$750,000,000 Four-Year Credit Agreement dated &dayf 22, 2013 among the Company, the Banks listethe signature
pages thereof, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Adtnative Agent, Bank of America, N.A., as SyndioatAgent, and The
Bank of New York Mellon, BMO Harris Bank N.A., ditank, N.A., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., The Nen Trust
Company, PNC Bank National Association, U.S. Bamitibhal Association, and Wells Fargo Bank, Natioks$ociation, as
Documentation Agents, filed as Exhibit 99 to ther@any’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 28,30s hereby
incorporated by reference.

10n Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of Augu20R8, by and between the Company and First Indligtoguisitions, Inc.,
including the form of Lease Agreement attached>dsltit | thereto, together with the First AmendmémPurchase and Sale
Agreement dated as of September 30, 2005 and tem8@mendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement datefiOctober 31,
2005, filed as Exhibit 10-p to the Company’s AnnRabport on Form 10-K for the year ended SeptemBe2@05, is hereby
incorporated by reference.

10-041 Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2§0#dbamong Rockwell Automation, Inc., Rockwell dmaton of Ohio,
Inc., Rockwell Automation Canada Control Systemsy® Industrias Reliance S.A. de C.V., Rockwell graation GmbH
(formerly known as Rockwell International GmbH) a@®aldor Electric Company, contained in the Compargurrent Report
on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2006, is hereby po@ted by reference.

10-02 First Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated aasnofaly 24, 2007 by and among Rockwell Automation,, IRockwell
Automation of Ohio, Inc., Rockwell Automation Cama@ontrol Systems, Grupo Industrias Reliance SeACd/., Rockwell
Automation GmbH and Baldor Electric Company, filsiExhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2007, is hereby incorpdriayereference.

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Chargesliie Five Years Ended September 30, 2013.
21 List of Subsidiaries of the Company.
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
24 Powers of Attorney authorizing certain personsgo shis Annual Report on Form 10-K on behalf ofta directors and
officers of the Company.
31.1 Certification of Periodic Report by the Chief Ex#@ea Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the S&i@s Exchange Act of
1934.
31.z Certification of Periodic Report by the Chief Ficéal Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Sii@s Exchange Act of
1934.
32.1 Certification of Periodic Report by the Chief Ext@ea Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlsa@e&ley Act of 2002.
32.z Certification of Periodic Report by the Chief Ficéal Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlsa@&ley Act of 2002.
101 Interactive Data Files.
* Management contract or compensatory plam@ngement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registnt has duly caused thi
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigrig thereunto duly authorized.

ROCKWELL AUTOMATION, INC.

By /s/ THEODORE D. CRANDALL
Theodore D. Crandall
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: November 18, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beloen the 18th day o
November 2013 by the following persons on behalf difie registrant and in the capacities indicated.

By /sl THEODORE D. CRANDALL
Theodore D. Crandall
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

By /s/ DAVID M. D ORGAN
David M. Dorgan
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Keith D. Nosbusch *
Chairman of the Board,
President and

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
and Director

Betty C. Alewine*
Director

J. Phillip Holloman*
Director

Verne G. Istock*
Director

Barry C. Johnson*
Director

Steven R. Kalmanson*
Director

James P. Keane*
Director
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Lawrence D. Kingsley*
Director

William T. McCormick, Jr.*
Director

Donald R. Parfet *
Director

*By /s/ DOUGLAS M. H AGERMAN

Douglas M. Hagerman, Attorney-in-fact**

**By authority of powers of attorney filed herewit
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SCHEDULE I
ROCKWELL AUTOMATION, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Years Ended September 30, 2013, 2012 an@1a
Balance at Additions
Beginning Charged to Charged to Balance at
of Costs and Other End of
Year Expenses Accounts Deductions(b) Year
(in millions)
Description
*Year ended September 30, 2013
Allowance for doubtful accounts (a) $ 30.6 $ 2 % — 83 $ 25.2
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 31.¢ 3 — 5.8 28.2
*Year ended September 30, 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts (a) $ 28 % 7€ $ — 5¢ § 30.¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 32.¢ 1.C 0.t 2.t 31.¢
*Year ended September 30, 2011
Allowance for doubtful accounts (a) $ 20.7 $ 10z $ — 2C % 28.¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 26.7 10.€ — 4.t 32.¢

(&) Includes allowances for current and other {tergn receivables.

(b) Consists of amounts written off for the allowanoe doubtful accounts and adjustments resulting foamability to utilize foreign ta
credits, capital losses, or net operating lossyt@mwards for which a valuation allowance had poely been recorded.

* Amounts reported relate to continuing operatiomall periods presented.
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Exhibit No.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS*

Exhibit

12

21

23

24

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Chargedlie Five Years Ended September 30, 2013.
List of Subsidiaries of the Company.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Powers of Attorney authorizing certain personsdo shis Annual Report on Form 10-K on behalf ofta@ directors and
officers of the Company.

Certification of Periodic Report by the Chief Ext@iea Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Siims Exchange Act of
1934.

Certification of Periodic Report by the Chief Ficéal Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the S#ims Exchange Act of
1934.

Certification of Periodic Report by the Chief Ex#@ea Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlsa@&ley Act of 2002.
Certification of Periodic Report by the Chief Ficaal Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlsa@eley Act of 2002.

Interactive Data Files.

* See Part IV, Item 15(a)(3) for exhibits inporated by reference.
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ROCKWELL AUTOMATION, INC.

COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Earnings available for fixed charges:

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

Exhibit 12

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes
Adjustments

Add fixed charges included in earnings:
Interest expense
Interest element of rentals
Total
Total earnings available for fixed charges
Fixed charges:
Fixed charges included in earnings
Capitalized interest
Total fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 980.¢ 965.¢ 867.¢ 544 273.¢
— — — — 1t
$ 980.¢ 965.¢ 867.€ 544.; 275.¢
$ 60.¢ 60.1 59.t 60.£ 60.€
63.4 60.€ 59.t 56.€ 59.C
124 120.5 119.( 117.1 119.¢
$ 1,105.: 1,086.¢ 986.¢ 661.< 395.¢
$ 124.% 120.7 119.( 117.1 119.¢
0.4 0.c 2.2 1.C 1.7
$ 124.; 121.¢ 121.2 118.1 121.¢
8.¢ 8.¢ 8.1 5.€ 2

(1) In computing the ratio of earnings to fixed chargesrnings are defined as income from continuingrajons before income taxes
cumulative effect of accounting change, adjustedifmority interest in income or loss of subsidéri undistributed earnings of affilial
and fixed charges exclusive of capitalized interEBsted charges consist of interest on borrowingd that portion of rentals deen

representative of the interest factor.



ROCKWELL AUTOMATION, INC.

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Exhibit 21

Percentage of Voting
Securities Owned By

Name Jurisdiction Registrant Subsidiary
Anorad Corporation New York 10C%

Industrial Control Services Group Limited United Kingdom 10C%
Rockwell Automation (China) Company Limited China 10C%
Rockwell Automation (Proprietary) Limited South Africa 10C%
Rockwell Automation A.G. Switzerland 10C%
Rockwell Automation Asia Pacific Business CenteEPTtd. Singapore 10C%
Rockwell Automation Australia Ltd. Australia 10C%

Rockwell Automation B.V. Netherlands 10C%
Rockwell Automation Canada Holdings Inc. Canada 10C%
Rockwell Automation Canada Ltd. Canada 10C%
Rockwell Automation Control Solutions (Harbin) Cbtd. China 10C%
Rockwell Automation de Mexico S.A. de C.V. Mexico 10%
Rockwell Automation do Brasil Ltda. Brazil 10C%

Rockwell Automation G.m.b.H. Germany 10C%
Rockwell Automation India Private Limited India 10C%
Rockwell Automation International Holdings LLC Delaware 10C%

Rockwell Automation Korea Ltd Korea 10C%
Rockwell Automation Limited United Kingdom 10C%
Rockwell Automation Limited Ireland 10C%
Rockwell Automation Manufacturing (Shanghai) Linaite China 10C%
Rockwell Automation Monterrey Manufacturing S de & CV Mexico 10C%
Rockwell Automation of Ohio, Inc. Ohio 10C%

Rockwell Automation S.r.l. Italy 10C%
Rockwell Automation Solutions G.m.b.H. Germany 10C(%
Rockwell Automation Southeast Asia Pte. Ltd. Singapore 10C%
Rockwell Automation Sp.z.0.0. Poland 10C%
Rockwell Automation Technologies, Inc. Ohio 10C%

Rockwell European Holdings Ltd. England 10C%

Listed above are certain subsidiaries includedun apnsolidated financial statements. Unlisted glitases, considered in the aggregate

single subsidiary, do not constitute a significsuibsidiary.



Exhibit 2%
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement Nos. 333-38444, 333-101780;133041, 333-149581, 333-150019,
333-157203, 333-165727, 333-180557, and 333-184400orm S-8 and No. 333-24685 on Form S-3 of opontedated November 18, 2013 ,
relating to the consolidated financial statements financial statement schedule of Rockwell Autdomatinc. and the effectiveness of
Rockwell Automation Inc.'s internal control ovendincial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report-orm 10-K of Rockwell Automation,
Inc. for the year ended September 30, 2013 .

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
November 18, 201



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

I, the undersigned Director or Officer of Rockwalitomation, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the Conmyahereby appoint

DOUGLAS M. HAGERMAN and THEODORE D. CRANDALL, andaeh of them singly, my true and lawful attorney#wull power to
them and each of them to sign for me, and in myenand in the capacity or capacities indicated below

1. the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K far fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 and anydimesris
thereto;

2. any and all amendments (including supplemamisp@st-effective amendments) to

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

the Registration Statement on Form S-8 redigtesecurities to be sold under the Company’s 20#®y-Term Incentives Plan
(Registration No. 333-180557);

the Registration Statements on Form S-&tegdhg securities to be sold under the Compand@2.ong-Term Incentives Plan
(Registration Nos. 333-150019 and 333-165727);

the Registration Statements on Form S-&tedng securities to be sold under the Compan2.ong-Term Incentives Plan
(Registration Nos. 333-38444 and 333-113041);

the Registration Statement on Form S-8 tegig) securities to be sold under the Company&514) Plan (Registration No. 333-
157203);

the Registration Statements on Form S-&teng securities to be sold under the Compangtirément Savings Plan
(Registration Nos. 333-184400 and 333-149581)

the Registration Statement on Form S-8 tegisy securities to be sold pursuant to the Comyiga2003 Directors Stock Plan
(Registration No. 333-101780); and

3. any and all amendments (including supplememdspast-effective amendments) to the Registratiateghent on Form
S-3 Registration No. 333-24685) registering

a) certain shares of Common Stock acquireddgnjited transferees upon the exercise of transiie@ptions assigned to them by
certain participants in the Company’s 1988 LongrT émcentives Plan in accordance with that Plan; and
b) the offer and resale by any such permittedsferee who may be deemed to be an “affiliateahefCompany within the meaning of
Rule 405 under the Securities Act of 1933, as ameéifdn Affiliate Selling Shareowner), of Common&tso acquired or which
may be acquired by such Affiliate Selling Shareomumon exercise of any such transferable option.
Signature Title Date
/sl Keith D. Nosbusch Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeutiv.  November 6, 2013
Keith D. Nosbusch Officer (principal executive officer)
/sl Betty C. Alewine Director November 6, 2013
Betty C. Alewine
/sl J. Phillip Holloman Director November 6, 2013
J. Phillip Holloman
/sl Verne G. Istock Director November 6, 2013
Verne G. Istock
/sl Barry C. Johnson Director November 6, 2013

Barry C. Johnson



/sl Steven R. Kalmanson

Steven R. Kalmanson

/sl James P. Keane

James P. Keane

/sl Lawrence D. Kingsley

Lawrence D. Kingsley

/s/ Willam T. McCormick, Jr.

William T. McCormick, Jr.

/s/ Donald R. Parfet

Donald R. Parfet

/sl Theodore D. Crandall

Theodore D. Crandall

/sl Douglas M. Hagerman

Douglas M. Hagerman

/sl David M. Dorgan

David M. Dorgan

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

Senior Vice President,General Counsel and Secretary

Vice President and Controller (principal accounting
officer)

November 6, 2013

November 6, 2013

November 6, 2013

November 6, 2013

November 6, 2013

November 6, 2013

November 6, 2013

November 6, 2013



Exhibit 31.]
CERTIFICATION
I, Keith D. Nosbusch, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKil®F Rockwell Automation, Inc

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omistede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedoresaused such disclosure controls and procedares designed under «
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidghsubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

b) Designed such internal control over financigla®ing, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armteutures, as of the end of the period covered tsyréport based on st
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportiftgat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financial reportini
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordx@r financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavwamanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarst
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 18, 2013

/s/ KEITH D. N OSBUSCH
Keith D. Nosbusch
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.z
CERTIFICATION
I, Theodore D. Crandall, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornK16fF Rockwell Automation, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtetie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designed under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

b) Designed such internal control over financigdaing, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadtsclosure controls and procedures and presemtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrald procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based on st
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastt’s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdih on our most recent evaluation of internal abndwer financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmimmittee of the registrasthboard of directors (or persons performing theweden
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordwer financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize abrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invav@anagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 18, 2013

/ s/ T HEODORE D. CRANDALL
Theodore D. Crandall
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT

I, Keith D. Nosbusch, Chairman, President and Chiefcutive Officer of Rockwell Automation, Inc. @iCompany”),hereby certify pursua
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@J1S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compaaythe year ended September 30, 2013 (the “Repfultf) complies with thi
requirements of Section 13(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report faipgesents, in all material respects, the finanaadition and results of operations
the Company.

Date: November 18, 2013

/sl KEITH D. N OSBUSCH
Keith D. Nosbhusch
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT

I, Theodore D. Crandall, Senior Vice President &tdef Financial Officer of Rockwell Automation, In¢the “Company”),hereby certif
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compaay the year ended September 30, 2013 (the “Repfulff) complies with th
requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securitiesharge Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report faiphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
Company.

Date: November 18, 2013

/ s/ T HEODORE D. CRANDALL
Theodore D. Crandall
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




